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Seacoast Financial Services Corporation is the holding company for
CompassBank and Nantucket Bank and is headquartered in New
Bedford, Massachuserts. CompassBank is a $3.2 billion state chartered
savings bank serving Southeastern Massachusetts through a network of
40 full-service branch offices and 7 remote ATMs, a customer call
center and online banking. Nantucket Bank is a $500 million state
chartered savings bank serving Nantucket Island with 3 full-service
branch offices. CompassBank ranks as the second largest Massachusetts-
based savings bank. The Banks provide a wide array of financial services
including consumer banking, mortgage lending, commercial lending,
consumer finance, private banking and alternative investments to retail

and business customers.

Ned's Point Light, Matiapoisert, Massaclseits

GUIDING YOUR FINANCIAL FUTURE




BRANCH LOCATIONS

CompassBank

Main Office
One Compass Place
New Bedford

Assonet
63 South Main Street

Braley Road
1230 Braley Road
New Bedford

Buzzards Bay
50 Cohasset Avenue

Carver
160 North Main Street

Cedarville
2277 State Road

Chatham
895 Main Street

Chilmark
South Road

Dartmouth Mall
88-90 No. Dartmouth Mall

Fairhaven
125 Huttleston Avenue

Fall River Central
141 North Main Street

Falmouth
310 Gifford Street

Four Corners
19 Main Street
Edgartown

Hyannis
North Sireet & Bassett Lane

Kempton
1238 Kempton Street
New Bedford

Long Pond
39 Home Depot Drive
Plymouth

© CompassBank
% Nantucket Bank
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Lunds Corner
2136 Acushnet Avenue
New Bedford

Manomet
715 State Road

Martha's Vineyard Central
75 Main Street
Vineyard Haven

Mattapoisett
2 Fairhaven Road

Mt. Pleasant
440 Mt. Pleasant Street
New Bedford

New Bedford South
58 County Street

New Harbour Mall
430 Wm. S. Canning Boulevard
Fall River

Oak Bluffs
Qak Bluffs Avenue

Orleans
51 Main Street

Pilgrim Hill
2 Pilgrim Hill Road
Plymouth

Plymouth Central
32 Court Street

Pocasset
30 Barlows Landing Road

Rockdale
585 Allen Street
New Bedford

Sandwich Central
100 Old Kings Hwy.

Seekonk
130 Taunton Avenue

Somerset
54 County Street

South Dennis
423 Route 134 & Compass Bank
South Sandwich

331 Cotuit Road

South Yarmouth
1029 Route 28

Swansea

620 GAR Hwy.

Triangle
260 Edgartown Road
Edgartown

Wareham
261 Main Street

West Hyannis
715 West Main Street

Westport
786 Main Road

Limited Service Banking Offices
and Training Facilities

(limited to students and faculry,
open only during school hours)

BMC Durfee High School
360 Elsbree Street
Fall River

New Bedford High School
230 Hathaway Boulevard
Nantucket Bank

104 Pleasant Street

2 Orange Street
1 Amelia Drive

=———
NANTUCKET
BANK
www.contpassbank.com
www.nantu Cke[bank .com

Members FDIC/Members DIF
Equal Housing Lenders




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

At or for the year ended: 12.02 12.01 12.00

(S in thousands)

OPERATING DATa:

Net INterest INCOMIE. . . . . o v v ot it e e e e e e e 121,670 § 102,898 $§ 80,103
Provision for loan losses. . ... .. ... ... . ... .. .. .. 7,247 6,175 4,775
Total noninterest income . .. .. ... ... ... 13,715 16,343 9,987
Total noninterest expense. . . .. ... ... 69,046 63,376 49,071
Minority interest eXpense. . . . . ... ... ... ... 2,851 — —
Income before provision fortaxes. .. ........ ... ... 56,241 47,690 36,244
Provision for iINCOME taxes. . . . v v v v v e e 19,633 16,723 12,315
NELINCOME . . . .o e e e e e 36,608 30,967 23,929
Diluted earnings pershare . .. ............... ... 1.57 1.31 1.01
Cash dividends pershare . .. ........ ... .. .. .. ... .42 34 26
FiNaNciaL CONDITION DATA:

Total assets . . ... ..o $3,701,045 $3,347,467 $2,890,765
LOanS. oo e e e 2,991,171 2,574,334 2,363,332
Allowance for loanlosses . . . . .. ... ... . .. ... . ... 34,354 29,513 25,081
Investment Securities . . . . . . . i e 489,755 467,176 307,557
DeEpOsitS. . o v o ot e 2,403,875 2,192,357 1,989,630
Borrowed funds . ... ... ... ... ... ... 896,704 823,341 590,266
Trust preferred securities .. .. .......... .. ... .. .. 55,041 — —
Stockholders’ equity ... ... ... oL 319,488 305,724 288,188
Non-perforning assets. . . ... ... ... 15,423 14,483 6,193
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Stockholders™ equity to total assets. . ... ... ... ... 8.63% 9.13% 9.97%
Total risk-based capieal .. .. ... ... ... .o o L. 14.33 13.34 14.04
Net interest margin. . ... .. .................... 3.60 3.47 3.63
Net interest rate spread . . .. .................... 3.23 3.00 298
Return on average assets . .. ............. ... ... 1.02 .98 1.03
Return on average equity. . . .. .................. 11.48 10.38 8.54
Efficiency ratio. . . ... ... ... . 50.24 53.01 53.81
Non-performing assets to total assets. ... ........... .42 43 21

NET INCOME

in millions

2000 2001 2002

TOTAL LOANS

in millions

| sz991

2000 2001 2002

TOTAL DEPOSITS

in millions

TUS1990°
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To OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

“UWe recognize that our employees are our greatest asset, and strive to provide them with the tools

they need to meet these demands.”

In a year dominated by economic challenges,
the threat of terrorism and global unrest, we are
particularly pleased to announce the Company’
record performance for 2002, Seacoast Financial
experienced continued earnings growth generated
by solid increases in both loans and core deposit
accounts. Earnings per share increased, and our
balance sheet remained strong.

Net income for the year ended December 31,
2002 was $36.6 million, or $1.57 per diluted share,
compared to net income of $31.0 million, or §1.31
per diluted share, for the year ended December 31,
2001. This represents an increase of $3.6 million or
18.2% in net income and a $0.26 or 19.8% increase
in fully diluted earnings per share.

Addirionally, the Company showed a 20%
increase in its most recent dividend, paying $.12
per share in February 2003 as compared to $.10
per share in February 2002.

We were very gratified to learn that Seacoast
Financial was added to the S&P SmallCap 600
Index in April, 2002. The S&P SmallCap 600 Index
consists of 600 domestic stocks chosen for market
size and industry group representation. Almost
simultaneously, Seacoast Financial was named one
of the Boston Globe 100 top performing companies in
Massachusetts for 2001 and was named a “Superstar
10” by the Boston Hesald in its Herald Hundred
report of top performing Massachusetts companies
for 2001. Seacoast Financial was later added to the
Nasdaq Financial-100 Index in July, 2002. This
index includes 100 of the largest domestic and
international financial organizations listed on The
Nasdaq Stock Market based on market capitaliza-
tion. We consider these events a significant accom-
plishment for a public company that was barely four
years old at the time.

The issuance of Trust Preferred Securites by
Seacoast Financial’s subsidiary, Seacoast Capital
Truse I, occurred in May, 2002. The Company
announced the offering of $55.0 million of 8.50%
Trust Preferred Securities with a liquidation amount
of $25 per security with the intent of utilizing the

proceeds for general corporate purposes including
the repurchase of common stock, the repayment of
debt and/or the funding of possible acquisitions.
The Trust Preferred Securities must be redeemed
by June 30, 2032, however Seacoast Financial

has the option, subject to applicable regulatory
approvals, to redeem the Trust Preferred Securities
at any time after June 30, 2007.

As part of our comprehensive capital manage-
ment program, in September 2002, the Company
completed its third stock repurchase program of
1,254,312 shares at an average price of $§17.37 per
share. Additionally, a fourth repurchase program
was announced September 16, 2002, consisting
of 1,194,284 shares, or 5% of its outstanding
common stock.

CompassBank’s branch network grew in 2002
with the opening of its 40th location, at the Home
Depot Plaza on Long Pond Rooad, its sixth branch
in greater Plymouth. Plans are presently underway
for several new locations in 2003, which will
improve availability and convenience for South
Shore customers and strengthen the Bank’s
presence on Cape Cod. In December 2002, we
announced the execution of a definitive agreement
to acquire Bay State Bancorp, headquartered in
Brookline, Massachusetts. The acquisition will
extend the CompassBank franchise to the attrac-
tive greater Boston metropolitan area and add six
branches in Norfolk and Suffolk counties. In tar-
geting this market for future growth we aim to
turther enhance shareholder and franchise value.
We expect the transaction to be completed within
the second quarter of 2003, pending regulatory
approvals and the approval of Bay State Bancorp
shareholders at a special meeting of shareholders
scheduled for April 30, 2003.

Nantucket Bank, acquired on December 31,
2000, contributed $4.5 million, or 12.2% of the
Company’s core earnings in 2002. Consistently
rated as one of the strongest banks in New England,
Nantucket Bank continues to add value to Seacoast

Financial. Its strong management team and personal




approach to doing business are the keys to its con-

tinued success in meeting the financial service
needs of island residents and businesses.

While 2002 was a banner year for Seacoast;
we were required in March 2003 to reserve
approximately $11.2 million, net of federal tax
benefit, for potential state tax liability related to the
deduction of dividends received by CompassBank
and Nantucket Bank from our real estate invest-
ment trust (REIT) subsidiaries. This provision
relates to legislation signed on March 5, 2003 by
the Governor of Massachusetts that amends the
Massachusetts law to expressly disallow the deduc-
tion for dividends received from a REIT, resulting
in such dividends being subject to state taxation.
This amendment applies retroactively to tax years
ending on or after December 31, 1999. Although
we question the constitutionality of this retroactive
legislation, generally accepted accounting standards
require that Seacoast Financial record this accrued
liability for the tax years 1999 through 2002, thus
impacting earnings for the first quarter of 2003.

‘While continuing to manage these and other
evolving matters, we can expect more challenges
and opportunities in our industry in the coming
vear. To assist us in addressing those challenges and
capitalizing on the opportunities, we will continue
to focus on our strong sales and service culture. We
recognize that our employees are our greatest asset,
and strive to provide them with the tools they
need to meet these demands. One major initiative
will be the conversion of CompassBank’s core data
provider to the FISERV Custom Qutsourcing
Solution platform, which we expect will offer sub-
stantial operational efficiencies as well as signifi-
cantly expanded capabilities. All departments of the
bank have been actively involved in preparing for
a conversion that will provide greater benefits
for our customers.

Internal service standards remain a high prior-
ity for us. According to the American Customer
Satisfaction Index (www.theacsi.org/), financial
services firms overall tend to score well on cus-
tomer satisfaction surveys. However, we recognize
that in the years ahead, we must work harder
than ever to attract and retain our customers. At
CompassBank, we believe that a bank’s success
is driven largely by its people. The caliber of peo-
ple we hire and the training and education we
provide will be instrumental in achieving high
levels of customer satisfaction.

Developing a customer satisfaction strategy
is one of the most important things any successful
business can do. Through the implementation

of recognition programs such as CompassBank’s

employee “Service Stars,” along with ongoing
training and education, sales awards and spot
bonuses, we can build a stronger sales and service
culture, thereby achieving our goals.

In early 2003, Seacoast Financial announced
the appointments of two new members to the
Company and the CompassBank senior man-
agement team. Joseph F. Casey has joined
CompassBank as Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer. Mr. Casey also
serves as a Vice President of Seacoast Financial.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Casey served
as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of
Andover Bancorp, Inc.

Mark T. Langone also joined CompassBank
as Senior Vice President and serves as a Vice
President of Seacoast Financial. He is responsible
for the oversight of the risk management function
for Seacoast Financial. Mr. Langone joins the
Company and Bank with over 12 years experience
as a Bank Examiner for the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.

We are prepared to embrace the future with
optimism. Our strategy for growth has been to take
advantage of industry opportunities through bank
consolidation, as evidenced by the pending acquisi-
tion of Bay State Bancorp. We will continue to
monitor such opportunities for ways to enhance
shareholder value. We are grateful to our dedicated
staff, to our board of directors, and to our share-
holders for their continued confidence in our
Company and in our mission to be the preeminent
comumunity banking franchise in Massachusetts,

Kevin G. Champagne
President and Chief Executive Officer
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“Implemented in 2002,

our Service Star program is

a peer-to-peer recognition

program that acknowledges

and rewards those individu-

als who provide exceptional

service to a fellow employee

7

or customer of the bank.”

Some of the 2002 CompassBank Silver Star Recipients (left to right), John Arruda,
Gloria Vincent, Heather Murach, Gail Snow, Joe Medeiros and Nancy Fernandes.

RETAIL BANKING

Total deposits stood at $2.4 billion at December 31, 2002, an increase of 9.6%, from $2.2 bil-
lion for the prior year. The majority of this growth occurred in lower cost core deposit accounts,
which increased $190.2 million, or 15.8%, during 2002. Much of this growth is attributed to
several factors, including a focus on strong sales performance, expanded delivery systems, and
extensive advertising campaigns promoting core accounts and online banking and bill payment.

CompassBank’s sales program, Navigator, in combination with extra training in the areas of
sales and service, continued to positively impact the numbers of new accounts opened at branches
and through the Bank’s Call Center. As part of the conversion to FISERV COS, slated for Memorial
Day Weekend, our Spanish-speaking customers will soon be able to access CompassDirect in their
language of choice. Additional functionality will also be available for all CompassDirect customers,
including an automated branch locator, free telephone bill payment service, and increased informa-
tion regarding residential, consumer and commercial loans.

CompassBank expanded its branch network in Plymouth during 2002 with its new Long
Pond office in the Home Depot Plaza. With this sixth location situated in greater Plymouth,
we believe that our visibility will be enhanced, allowing us to better serve existing customers
and attract new ones through our broadened network.

New Compass branches are planned for the coming year, including our third Hyannis office,
to be situated on Route 132, Iyanough Road, and a new location in Harwich. An office in
Marshfield will serve to extend the branch network further into the South Shore, where we
have already established a successful residential mortgage lending presence.

Online banking and bill payment services continued to see expanded usage throughout the
year, as more customers opted to transact their business through electronic channels. This is a trend
that should continue, particularly since the FISERV COS conversion will provide Compass Online
customers with added features and capabilities, along with superior security and automated online
banking enrollment—in which many of our customers have expressed interest.

Other alternative delivery systems were popular with our customers throughout the year,
particularly ATM and debit cards, and point-of-sale transactions. Through CompassBank’s mem-
bership in the SUM®™ Program, its customers can use more than 2,800 ATMs without paying a
surcharge fee.

With the many changes ahead, not least of which is the acquisition of Bay State Bancorp and
the assimilation of its six offices into the CompassBank branch network, we feel confident that we
will continue to excel at what we do: providing excellent customer service and beneficial financial

services tO0 our customers.



RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE LENDING

Total assets at December 31, 2002 were $3.7 billion, compared to $3.3 billion at December
31, 2001, representing an increase of 10.6%. Total loans increased by $417 million or 16.2% to $3.0
billion. The net Joan growth was primarily related to increases of $202 million in residential real
estate loans and $171 million in indirect auto loans.

Much of the loan activity seen this past year occurred as a direct result of the low interest rate
environment, which spurred many consumers to refinance existing loans. A majority of all residen-
tial mortgage loan activity in 2002 was attributable to refinancing. While one cannot predict with
certainty when things will change, we are preparing for a slowdown in the refinance market, and
have begun aggressive mortgage marketing efforts to build momentum for such an occurrence.

Financing new home purchases continues to be the primary goal of our residential mortgage
lending team. Through specially-structured, affordable home loans we strive to simplify the borrowing
process for first-time home buyers and low- to moderate-income, credit-worthy borrowers.
These lower market interest rate loans charge no points and require lower closing costs.

By the addition of a Community Development Loan Originator, CompassBank initiated
efforts to increase lending activity to our growing Hispanic market. This individual, who is muldi-
lingual, works closely with home mortgage applicants, with particular emphasis on “inner-city,”
first-time home buyer and affordable home loans in the Greater Fall River area. His success has
been such that the Bank is planning to hire additional Community Development Loan Officers
for its other regions.

Through our diverse origination efforts, both Compass and Nantucket Bank have achieved a
strong market share in all of our regions, ranking #1 in Greater New Bedford, Martha’s Vineyard and
Nantucket. We credit the expertise and accessibility of our external mortgage originators, along with
the regional decision-making authority they possess, for our success. Unlike many other financial
institutions, we retain servicing for all of our originated loans—something most borrowers greatly
appreciate after the loan has closed.

2002 Gold Star Recipient, Genevieve Houtman, Switchboard Operator/Call Center.
Described by a fellow employee as providing “customer service at its best.”

“Through our diverse
origination efforts, both
Compass and Nantucket
Bank have achieved a
strong market share in all

of our regions.”




“The Company’s attention
to credit quality persists as

we head into 2003.”

2002 Gold Star Recipient, Mary Siler, Pocasset branch. Nominated for exceptional
customer service and community commitment.

COMMERCIAL LENDING

Comumercial real estate and commercial and industrial (C&I) lending comprise 16% of the
Company’s loan portfolio. Our commercial lending activities are focused on six regional markets:
New Bedford, Fall River, Plymouth, Cape Cod, Martha’s Vineyard and Nantucket. Within those
markets, regional lenders possess the knowledge and experience that businesses need in their finan-
cial partners.

Despite a slowing economy, concerns about unemployment and international events, and a
low interest rate environment, we sustained acceptable levels of commercial loan activity in 2002.
Although portfolio growth was somewhat hampered by trends in refinancing, the Company’s com-
mercial real estate portfolio grew by approximately $19 million and the C&I portfolio grew by
$12 million. The quality of the commercial loan portfolio remained strong with no charge-offs of
commercial real estate and net charge-offs of under $250,000 in the C&I portfolio.

The Company has no specific concentration of risk in any one area, due to the diversification
of our commercial portfolio. CompassBank provides financing for numerous industries, from the
marine and fishing industries, manufacturers and golf courses, to hospitality and tourism. The aver-
age size of our commercial relationships is close to $1 million.

The Banks offer traditional term loans, letters of credit, equipment purchase financing, and
commercial real estate financing and work closely with the Small Business Administration (SBA)
and others in providing educational seminars for business owners throughout our market.

The Company’s attention to credit quality persists as we head into 2003. The Banks stand ready to
react aggressively to changes in the interest rate environment, as we explore opportunities to build
long-term relationships with our existing borrowers and develop mutually beneficial relationships

with new borrowers.




CONSUMER LENDING

Consumer confidence and a low interest rate environment contributed to a successful year for
retail consumer lending, a division which represents more than one quarter of the Company’s total
lending activity. The largest segment of consumer loans for the Bank are automobile loans origi-
nated through more than 200 dealers in Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New Hampshire. Indirect
auto lending has been a key component of CompassBank’s business plan for nearly 20 years. The
great success of this program is proof of the Bank’s dedication to service excellence and the devel-
opment of long-term relationships with the owners and managers of the dealerships.

Compass makes indirect auto loans for both new and used vehicles. The loans may have ternis
of up to six years for new vehicles and five and a half years for used vehicles.

There are several benefits innate within indirect auto lending. Each dealership becomes an
informal loan center for CompassBank, without the added overhead. While employees of the
dealerships take applications for indirect loans, all auto loans are made pursuant to Compass’ under-
writing standards and a Compass loan officer must approve all indirect auto loans. Additionally,
the network develops a pool of customers to whom we can offer our banking services, thereby
strengthening the relationship. Despite stiff competition from automobile manufacturers offering
low or zero percent financing, we originated over $500 million in indirect loans, representing a
$170 million net increase in indirect auto lending receivables to over $770 million.

Also attracting considerable activity in 2002 were home equity lines of credit, which contin-
ued in popularity as a result of the favorable rate environment. Several marketing campaigns aided
in attracting new equity business, as well as activation of existing lines during 2002.

Other consumer loans offered include home improvement loans, personal installment loans,
education loans, direct auto loans, and passbook loans. These loans are typically offered through the

branch nerwork as well as Compass’ Call Center.

2002 Gold Star Recipient Anne Marie Lizotte, Consumer Lending. Described by a
branch manager as “a role model of efficient, conrteous, friendly customer service.”

“Indirect auto lending has
been a key component of
CompassBank’s business

plan for nearly 20 years.”




10

“Our goal on behalf of
our clients is to preserve
and enhance capital,

by custom-tailoring our
investment advice to each

client’s specific situation.”

1%

“We'll assess your needs and gain a thorough understanding of your goals.”

ComMPASS PRIVATE BANKING

Since April 2001, CompassBank has offered proprietary wealth management services to
customers in our market area with investable assets exceeding $500,000. These include individuals,
families, companies, trusts, and non-profit organizations throughout Southeastern Massachusetts.
Compass Private Banking was introduced through a partnership between CompassBank and a
Boston-based institutional and retail money management firm, EPG Inc., to bring its high net
worth clients a wide range of institutional quality investment services. Additionally, the Institutional
Brokerage Group of Fidelity Investments provides the operational backbone for this service. We
believe that this partnership allows us to offer our customers world-class money management
without traveling to Boston or New York.

In early 2003, CompassBank announced the appointment of Eileen Buckley as First Vice
President/Managing Director of Compass Private Banking. Eileen has over 25 years of investment
management and trust experience with national and regional asset management firms. Her expert-
ise will certainly assist in providing the highest quality services for Compass Private Banking clients.

Like many of the service and fee-related programs banks offer, we do not have Compass Private
Banking offices within every branch. However, our staff is prepared to identify opportunities with
qualified investors, and serve as a liaison with our relationship managers, who will personally serv-
ice customers in any part of our market. Experienced local business development and account man-
agers were hired to provide the level of service for which CompassBank is known. Qur goal on
behalf of our clients is to preserve and enhance capital, by custom-tailoring our investment advice
to each client’s specific situation, needs, and risk-tolerance—in essence, to become a partner in

our clients’ success.




NANTUCKET BANK HIGHLIGHTS

A share of the credit for the success of Seacoast Financial is attributable to its subsidiary,
Nantucket Bank. Like CompassBank, Nantucket is independently operated under the direction
of the board of directors of Seacoast Financial. Nantucket Bank contributed approximately $4.5
million, or 12.2% of the Company’s core earnings in 2002.

Bill Hourihan, CEO, stated, “2002 was a very good year for Nantucket Bank. We originated
a record $232 million in loans to Nantucketers, and we now service nearly $400 million in total
loans. Deposits grew by 9% in 2002 to over $255 million. These accomplishments clearly evidence
the importance of local management and decision-making when it comes to providing banking
services to Islanders.”

“Nantucket Bank continued its long tradition of community support in 2002.”

Providing excellent customer service is the most important factor in every decision made by
Nantucket Bank. Nantucket recently recognized two key employees for their commitment to cus-
tomer service. Denise Ackerman, Call Center and Electronic Banking Manager, and Jennie
Donovan, Accounting Supervisor, were selected for our coveted Customer Service Award for
2002. Additional management resources were added when Phil Stambaugh joined the bank in 2002
as SVP for Branch Administration, Electronic Banking, and Marketing. The phrase “We're Here
For You” that appears in our advertisements is more than just a slogan, it’s the way all of our
employees conduct business every day.

Nantucket Bank continued its long tradition of communiry support in 2002, Well over 100
[sland organizations, including Nantucket Cotrage Hospital, Hospice of Nantucket, Nantucket Boys
and Girls Club, and the Nantucket Historical Association were beneficiaries of our support.

In addition to financial community support, a large number of the Bank’s employees volunteer
their time and expertise to local organizations. For example, John Sweeney, SVP and CFO, com-
pleted two years in 2002 as President of the Nantucket Chamber of Commerce. Quint Waters,
SVP-Lending, serves as Treasurer and was instrumental in the completion of a major, and much
needed, recreational facility for Islanders, the Nantucket Community Ice Rink. Zona Buder, VP
Operations, and Phil Stambaugh, SVP, are Habitat for Humanity Nantucket Board members and
are helping to get the first Habitat house built on Nantucket.

“Providing excellent
customer service is the
most important factor in
every decision made by

Nantucket Bank.”




“The Company recognizes
its responsibility to provide
assistance wherever we

can to sustain the non-
profits and community
organizations that help
individuals within

our communities.”
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“Our employees give selflessly of their own time and energy to serve the community.”
pioyees g Y gy )]

Our COMMUNITIES

During the past year, budget axes have fallen upon many of the social services and non-profit
sources of income. In such circumstances, support from the private sector becomes critically impor-
tant to the survival of many worthwhile organizations. The Company recognizes its responsibility
to provide assistance wherever we can to sustain the non-profits and community organizations that
help individuals within our communities.

Of primary concern are organizations that address economic and social needs, health services,
shelters and food for the homeless, and programs which positively affect youth in our communities.
Of equal importance are groups that assist low- to moderate-income populations or youth, which
positively impact economic development, or which provide credit-related assistance such as home
buyer programs or credit education. We also support programs that focus on job training or busi-
ness education, and cultural arts organizations that impact the economy and our lives.

Among the many worthwhile organizations which our Company has supported in 2002 are
Artworks!, the Association for the Preservation of Cape Cod, Big Brothers and Big Sisters of
Nantucket, Boys and Girls Clubs throughout our communities, the CompassBank Cape Cod
Marathon, Child and Family Services of New Bedford, Fall River and Cape Cod, the Community
Foundation of Cape Cod, the Community Foundation of Southeastern Massachusetts, Fall River
Affordable Housing Corporation, Festival Theatre, Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod, Hispanic
Recognition Awards, Homeowner Options for Massachusetts, Hospice of Nantucket, Hospice
Foundation of Cape Cod, Housing Assistance Corporation, Junior Achievement, the Lloyd Center
for Environmental Studies, Martha Briggs Education Club, Martha’s Vineyard Preservation Trust,
N.A.A.C.P., Nantucket Cottage Hospital, Nantucket Historical Association, National Marine Life
Center, Nemasket Group, New Bedford Half Marathon, New Bedford Symphony Orchestra, New
Bedford Whaling Museum, Plymouth Philharmonic Orchestra, Pops in the Park, Project Arts of
Plymouth, the Salvation Army, Special Olympics, W.H.A.LE., YM.C A, the Zeiterion Theatre,
and many others too numerous to list.

Any company, of course, may provide funding to groups such as these. What sets our
Company apart from the rest, we think, are the many employees of CompassBank and Nantucket
Bank who give selflessly of their own time and energy to serve on boards, committees, task forces,
and the like. They set an example of good citizenship that we encourage others in the community
to emulate. We believe that their generous efforts are the lifeblood of the community, and we
extend our thanks and our gratitude to our volunteers on behalf of the many groups they serve.
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PART I

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. When used in this report, the words or phrases, “will likely result,” “are expected
to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “believe,” or similar expressions are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking

statements. Important factors that might cause such a difference include, among other things, general economic
conditions, particularly the real estate market, in the Company’s primary market area, credit risk management,
asset/liability management, changes in government regulation and supervision, changes in interest rates, the
availability of and costs associated with sources of liquidity and increased competition and bank consolidations in
the Company’s market area.

The Company does not undertake, and specifically disclaims any obligation, to publicly release the result of any
revisions which may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect the occurrence of anticipated events or
circumstances after the date of such statements.

Item 1. Business

General

Until the completion of a mutual to stock conversion and initial public offering of stock on November 20, 1998,
Seacoast Financial Services Corporation (the “Company” or “Seacoast Financial”) was a mutual holding company
created in connection with the reorganization of Compass Bank for Savings (“Compass™) into a mutual holding
company form of organization in 1994. The Company is registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (the “FRB”) as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended (the “BHCA”). Since its formation, the Company has owned 100% of Compass’s outstanding capital
stock.

On December 4, 1998, the Company acquired by merger all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
Sandwich Bancorp, Inc. (“Sandwich”) in a stock-for-stock exchange and merged Sandwich’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, The Sandwich Co-operative Bank (“Sandwich Bank”), into Compass. This acquisition was accounted
for as a pooling of interests and, accordingly, all financial data is presented herein as if the Company and Sandwich
had always been combined.

On December 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of Home Port Bancorp, Inc., the holding
company for Nantucket Bank, a three branch savings bank located on Nantucket Island, Massachusetts. This
transaction was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. As the closing of this acquisition coincided
with the Company’s year-end, the assets and liabilities of Nantucket Bank are included in the consolidated balance
sheet, as well as the various tables presented herein, as of December 31, 2000. The results of operations of
Nantucket Bank are included herein beginning January 1, 2001. The narrative in this Item 1. does not include
Nantucket Bank’s financial operating data, such as the amount of loan originations, for any period prior to 2001.
Compass and Nantucket Bank are collectively referred to herein as “the Banks.”

Compass was organized in 1855 as a Massachusetts-chartered mutual savings bank, and reorganized into
mutual holding company form in 1994. Nantucket Bank was organized in 1834 as a Massachusetts-chartered
mutual savings bank and reorganized to a stock savings bank in 1988. The Banks’ principal business has been, and
continues to be, gathering deposits from customers within its market areas and investing those funds in residential
and commercial real estate loans, indirect automobile loans (Compass only), commercial loans, construction loans,
home equity loans and other consumer loans and investment securities. The Banks’ investment portfolios consist
primarily of U.S. Government and agency securities, corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized
mortgage obligations and, to a lesser extent, marketable equity securities. Individual and business customers have a
variety of deposit accounts with the Banks, including NOW (checking) and other demand deposit accounts,
passbook savings accounts, money market deposit accounts, Individual Retirement Accounts (“IRA’s”) and various
certificates of deposit. In 2001, Compass began to provide private banking services to both individuals and
businesses.

The Banks’ deposits are insured by the Bank Insurance Fund (the “BIF”), as administered by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), up to the maximum amount permitted by law, except that certain
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deposits that Compass acquired from a savings association are insured by the Savings Association Insurance Fund
(the “SAIF”), also administered by the FDIC. Deposit amounts in excess of FDIC insurance limits are insured by
the Depositors Insurance Fund (the “DIF”), a deposit insuring entity for Massachusetts savings banks. The Banks
are voluntary members of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (FHLB), which serves principally as a credit
source in providing funds for residential mortgage lending.

On December 19, 2002, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Bay State Bancorp Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiary Bay State Federal Savings Bank, a federally-chartered savings and loan company with
six banking offices in the greater Boston area. This agreement is subject to a number of conditions, including
regulatory approval. As required by SFAS 142, this transaction will be accounted for as a purchase and goodwill of
approximately $78 million is expected to be recognized. As of December 31, 2002, Bay State had total assets of
$596.9 million, primarily in residential and commercial real estate loans and deposits of $368.2 million. The
transaction is anticipated to be completed in the second quarter of 2003.

Market Area and Competition

At December 31, 2002, the Company and Compass conducted business from their corporate headquarters in
New Bedford, Massachusetts. The Banks conducted business from 43 full-service branches, seven of which are
located in New Bedford and the remaining 36 of which are located in the Massachusetts communities of Fall River
(two branches), Plymouth (five branches), Assonet, Carver, Fairhaven, Mattapoisett, North Dartmouth, Seekonk,
Somerset, Swansea, Warecham, Westport and Cape Cod (eleven branches), and the islands of Martha’s Vineyard
(five branches) and Nantucket (three branches). The Company also has two limited service high school branches
and eight remote ATMs. In addition, Compass’s indirect auto lending business extends into all of Eastern
Massachusetts and the states of Rhode Island and New Hampshire.

The Banks face significant competition both in generating loans and in attracting deposits. The Banks’ primary
market area is highly competitive and they face direct competition from a significant number of financial
institutions, many with either a statewide, a regional or, in some cases, a national presence. Several of these financial
institutions are significantly larger and have greater financial resources than either Compass or Nantucket. The
Banks’ competition for loans comes principally from commercial banks, savings banks, credit unions, mortgage
brokers, mortgage banking companies and insurance companies. Its most direct competition for deposits has
historically come from savings, cooperative and commercial banks and credit unions. In addition, the Banks face
competition for depositors’ funds from non-bank institutions, such as brokerage firms and insurance companies
which offer financial alternatives such as short-term money-market funds, corporate and government securities
funds, mutual funds and annuities. Nantucket Bank is the only bank exclusively serving the island of Nantucket.
Nantucket Bank’s competitive advantage is derived from the fact that all of its products and services are designed to
meet the needs and requirements of its local customers.

The Banks compete for deposits principally by offering depositors convenient branch hours and locations,
personalized customer service, telephone and computer access to accounts, a wide variety of deposit programs,
automated teller machines and competitive interest rates. The competition for loans varies depending on factors
which include, among others, the general availability of lendable funds and credit, general and local economic
conditions, current interest rate levels, conditions in the mortgage market and other factors which are not readily
predictable.

Lending Activities

General. The loan portfolio, excluding loans held-for-sale, totaled $3.0 billion as of December 31, 2002,
representing 81% of total assets on that date. The Banks primarily make residential real estate loans secured by one-
to four-family residences, indirect auto loans (Compass only) and commercial real estate loans. The Banks also
make home equity line of credit loans, residential and commercial construction loans, commercial loans, fixed rate
home equity loans, personal installment loans and passbook loans. The majority of loans, including some loans
classified as commercial loans, are collateralized by real estate.

Interest rates charged on loans are affected primarily by the demand for such loans, the supply of money
available for lending purposes, secondary market mortgage rates and the rates offered by competitors. These factors
are, in turn, affected by national, regional and local economic conditions, the levels of federal government spending
and revenue, monetary policies of the FRB and tax policies.
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Loan Origination and Underwriting — Compass. Loan officers based in each of Compass’s five regions —
Plymouth, Fall River, New Bedford, Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard — originate and underwrite mortgage and
commercial loans. Compass also employs external loan originators, based in each of the regions, who originate
residential mortgage loans. Compass underwrites consumer loans at its main office, although it originates such
loans at its branches and the call center. In originating indirect auto loans, the Company utilizes a network of
automobile dealers located throughout its current market area, Eastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New
Hampshire.

Compass’s loan underwriting varies depending on the type of loan. It generally includes the use of credit
applications, property appraisals and verification of an applicant’s credit history, employment and banking
relationships to the extent management deems appropriate in each case. With respect to indirect auto loans, car
dealers originate the loans and transmit loan applications to Compass for underwriting. Additional information
concerning the underwriting of specific types of loans is set forth in sections that discuss those loans.

Four senior loan officers oversee the loan origination and underwriting functions for commercial and
commercial real estate loans. Individual loan officers may originate loans within certain approved lending limits. A
credit committee, consisting of senior loan and credit officers, and Compass’s Board of Directors, or the executive
committee thereof, must approve all unsecured commercial loans over $1.25 million and all secured commercial
loans, including commercial real estate loans, over $2.5 million. Pursuant to its loan policy, Compass generally will
not make loans aggregating more than $12.5 million to any one borrower. Exceptions to this “house” lending limit
must be pre-approved by the Board. At December 31, 2002, no customers had aggregate borrowing capacity with
Compass exceeding the $12.5 million house limit. Compass’s legal lending limit, which is set at 20% of its capital,
was approximately $53 million at December 31, 2002.

Loan Origination and Underwriting — Nantucket Bank. Loan originations come from a number of sources.
Most real estate loan originations are attributable to referrals from existing customers, real estate brokers, attorneys
and builders as well as walk-in customers and officer calls. Officer calls and referrals are important sources of
commercial and commercial mortgage loan originations. Consumer loans generally are written with existing
depositors.

Each loan originated by Nantucket Bank is underwritten by its personnel with individual lending officers having
the authority to approve loans up to specified limits. A credit committee, consisting of senior loan and other
officers, must approve all loans that exceed $700,000 and Nantucket Bank’s Board of Directors, or the executive
committee thereof, must approve all loans over $1.2 million. Nantucket Bank will generally not make loans to any
one borrower with an aggregate balance in excess of its house lending limit of $2.5 million. At December 31, 2002,
one customer had an aggregate loan balance in excess of such limit. Nantucket Bank’s legal lending limit was
approximately $8 million at December 31, 2002.

Independent licensed appraisers are used to appraise the property intended to secure real estate loans.
Nantucket Bank’s underwriting criteria are designed to minimize the risks of each loan. There are detailed
guidelines concerning the types of loans that may be made, the nature of the collateral required, the information that
must be obtained concerning the loan applicant and follow-up inspections of collateral after the loan is made.




The following table sets forth activity within the loan portfolio for the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 (1)
(In thousands)

Loans outstanding at beginning of year...........ccccoceeerrenrerrnenenee $2,574,334 $2,363,332 $1,747,206
Loans originated:

Real estate loans:

Residential ..........coovievvieiriiiiieeec e 653,518 479,061 219,868

COmMMETCIAL ....c.vvviiviieieiie et e 78,821 78,042 61,541

CONSIIUCHON. ..cvivviveerie ettt ettt et erae s eese et enerenesrens 151,845 146,949 116,067

HOme qUILY «..cooeviiieiiiiiccicien e 61.870 31,905 20,973

Total real estate 10anS.....ceeeeviiveeiiiriiiiiiee e cctineee e 946,054 735,957 418.449

Commercial 1oans ..coovvveviieeiviier i 84,328 82,072 72,705

Indirect auto 10ANS ...oovcvviviecee e 513,620 364,684 307,645

Other consUMEr LOANS .v.vvvevveieiiieernieee e eeiae e 25,832 36,604 34,460

Total loans originated..........ccccoviniiiecnnncnincneneenes 1,570,334 1,219.317 833.259

Purchases of real estate 10ans............cccoccoeeivivei i 29,351 — 19,501
Acquisition of Nantucket Bank.............covveviiinincineiieiniinieee — — 275,918
Less:

Principal repayments ........coccovcvereeieenenenniereienee e 1,151,609 936,748 509,048

Loans SOI......cooeveeirieeeee e 28,197 68,472 1,505

Transfers to other real estate owned.........coceeveiivviivieeennnne 82 832 366

Principal charged-off ... 2,960 2,263 1.633
Loans outstanding at end of year........c.cooeviiiiiiiiiniieiene $2.991,171 $2,574,334  $2.363,332

(1) Loan activity for this year does not include Nantucket Bank which was acquired on December 31, 2000.

The Banks charge origination fees, or points, and collect fees to cover the costs of appraisals and credit reports
on most new residential mortgage loans and on many commercial real estate loans. The Banks also collect late
charges on real estate and consumer loans. For information regarding the recognition of loan fees and costs, see
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loan Maturity and Repricing. The following table presents the contractual maturity and repricing dates of the
Banks’ loan portfolio at December 31, 2002.

Real estate loans QOther
Home Consumer Total
Residential Commercial Construction Equity Commercial  Indirect Loans loans
(In thousands)
Within one year........cocovvvevereiieenenne $138,114 $104,569 $41.381 $66.720 $97.378 $202.612 $ 7.003 §_657.777
After one year:
More than one year to three years ..... 235,718 174,846 23,443 557 17,043 362,965 13,191 827,763
More than three years to five years ... 185,158 53,647 14,130 163 8,339 193,462 12,675 467,574
More than five years to fifteen years. 440,691 18,999 10,890 294 5,062 11,325 12,056 499,317
More than fifteen years............c...c.... 513.707 4.549 20,322 60 — — 102 538,740
Total due after
December 31, 2003 ........coocveveveene 1,375,274 252,041 68.785 1.074 30,444 567,752 38.024 _2.333.3%4
Total amount due........ccocoeveerverecne $1,513,388 $ 356,610 $110,166  $67.794 $127.822 $770364  $45.027 2,991,171
Less: allowance for loan losses............. 34,354
Net 10ans.....c.coeeevevvciiniinincrereeene $2.956.817




The following table sets forth the balances of loans at December 31, 2002, which are contractually due or
scheduled to reprice after December 31, 2003, segregated between fixed and adjustable interest rates:

Fixed Adjustable Total
(In thousands)

Real estate loans:

Residential .oo.ooovivviiieiiieecece e $1,075,739 $299,535 $1,375,274
CommMETCIAl .vivviiiiriiiiiiie et reeea e 36,902 215,139 252,041
CONSIUCHON c11evvereriitve et erree e e ennas 40,455 28,330 68,785
HOmME eqUILY ..oocveviccieiccie e — 1.074 1.074

Total real estate 10aNS..........ccceeeieeveviricnrinen, 1,153,096 544,078 1,697,174
Commercial I0ans .......coccvivevviiieee e, 19,478 10,966 30,444
Indirect auto LOANS.....oovvvevvvirieeireee e ae e 567,752 — 567,752
Other consumer 10ans .....c..o..ocoveveiiiiecinnieeien e, 37.854 170 38.024

TOtal 10AMS .vvvieeeicie et $1,778,180 $555,.214 $2,333,394

Residential Real Estate Loans. As of December 31, 2002, adjustable rate loans represented approximately
22% and fixed rate loans represented approximately 78% of the Banks’ portfolio of residential real estate loans
secured by one-to four-family residences. Residential loans totaled $1.5 billion as of December 31, 2002, for an
increase of $201.8 million, or 15.4%, over the balance at December 31, 2001. Over 90% of this portfolio is secured
by single-family, owner-occupied homes. An additional $6.2 million in residential mortgage loans held for sale
were outstanding at December 31, 2002. During 2002, the Banks purchased $29.4 million in residential real estate
loans.

The Banks regularly assess the desirability of holding long-term, fixed-rate residential loans in its portfolio. A
number of factors are evaluated to determine whether or not to hold newly originated fixed-rate loans in the
portfolio. Some of these factors are: current and projected liquidity, current and projected interest rate risk profile,
projected growth in other loans and investments, and projected interest rates. Generally, the Banks retain the right
and obligation to service all loans that they sell. The Banks receive a fee for servicing loans equal to approximately
.25% per annum on the outstanding balance. Loans serviced for others on a non-recourse basis amounted to $249.0
million and $363.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2002 and 2001. Servicing fee income, net of amortization
and impairment, amounted to $409,000 and $959,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Adjustable rate mortgage loans generally reprice either annually, or are fixed for an initial three, five, or seven
years and adjust annually thereafter. The interest rate adjustments on these loans are indexed to the applicable one-
year or three-year U.S. Treasury CMT Index with corresponding add-on margins of varying amounts generally
ranging from 2.75% to 3.25%. Rates adjust by no more than one or two percentage points in each adjustment period
and by no more than five or six percentage points over the life of a loan.

Compass’s owner-occupied residential mortgage loans are generally written in amounts up to 95% of the
appraised value or selling price, whichever is lower, of the property securing the loan, aithough the majority of such
loans are written with ratios of 80% or less. Compass generally requires borrowers to obtain private mortgage
insurance with respect to loans with a greater than 80% loan-to-value ratio. Nantucket Bank’s residential mortgage
loans are generally written with an original loan-to-value ratio of up to 80% of appraised value.

The Banks each maintain programs to originate residential mortgage loans to low-to-moderate income
borrowers. At Compass, the loans have fixed or adjustable interest rates that are typically lower than prevailing
market rates, are closed without points, have substantially lower closing costs than other residential loans and have
terms of up to 35 years. The loans may have up to a 97% loan-to-value ratio, although borrowers must obtain
private mortgage insurance if the loan-to-value ratio exceeds 80%. At Nantucket Bank, such loans are closed with
no points and may have loan-to-value ratios up to 90% without private mortgage insurance. The Banks partially
fund the loans with borrowings under either the Community Investment Program (“CIP”) or the New England Fund
(“NEF”) housing programs of the FHLB. These programs permit borrowings from the FHLB at below market rates
to finance the loans. The Banks had $11.8 million of CIP-funded loans and $16.1 million of NEF-funded loans in
their residential loan portfolios as of December 31, 2002.



Commercial Real Estate Loans. The Banks make commercial real estate loans throughout their market areas and
at December 31, 2002, had $356.6 million in commercial real estate loans in their loan portfolios, representing
11.9% of total loans.

Properties that are used for borrowers’ businesses, such as small office buildings, golf courses, restaurants, inns,
retail facilities or multi-family income properties, generally collateralize commercial real estate loans. The loans
typically have maturities of 10 years, with amortization periods of up to 20 years, and interest rates that adjust over
periods of one to five years based on one of various rate indices. Commercial real estate loans with fixed interest
rates are written with maturities not to exceed five years. The Banks consider the experience of management, cash
flows and collateral values when underwriting commercial real estate loans. The Banks generally make commercial
real estate loans in an amount equal to no more than 80% of the appraised value of the property securing the loan

and generally require the owners of businesses seeking commercial real estate loans to personally guarantee those
loans.

Commercial real estate lending entails greater credit risk than residential mortgage lending to owner-occupants.
The repayment of commercial real estate loans depends on the business and financial condition of the borrower.
Changes in economic conditions or government regulations, which neither the Banks nor their borrowers control,
could have an adverse impact on the cash flows generated by properties securing commercial real estate loans and
on the value of such properties.

Construction Loans. The Banks make both residential and commercial construction loans throughout their
market area. Compass typically makes the loans to either owner-borrowers who will occupy the properties
(residential construction) or licensed and experienced developers for the construction of single-family home
developments that generally have no more than 30 housing lots and, to a lesser extent, end users of commercial
properties (commercial construction). Commercial construction loans to end users are generally originated with
permanent financing already committed,

The Banks generally increase the loan-to-value ratios on such loans as construction progresses. Before any
work has commenced, and while a construction loan’s only collateral is a plot of land, Compass will typically
finance only up to 70% of the value of that land. Once construction has begun, Compass will generally make
residential construction loans in amounts up to 90% (for primary homes) and 80% (for secondary homes) of the
lesser of the appraised value of the property, as completed, or the property’s cost of construction. Nantucket Bank
generally makes construction loans on owner-occupied primary or secondary residences up to 80% of appraised
value (up to 70% of land value). The Banks generally make commercial construction loans in amounts up to 80% of
the lesser of the property’s appraised value, as completed, or construction costs and generally require developers
seeking commercial construction loans to personally guarantee them. The proceeds of construction loans are
disbursed in stages and require either loan officers or appointed professionals to inspect each project’s progress
before the Banks disburse additional funds and to verify that borrowers have completed project phases.

Residential construction loans to owner-borrowers generally convert to a fully amortizing long-term mortgage
loan upon completion of construction. Commercial construction loans generally have terms of six months to a
maximum of two years. The Banks had $110.2 million in construction loans in their loan portfolios, representing
3.7% of total loans, as of December 31, 2002. Another $56.2 million in funds were available but remain unadvanced
as of December 31, 2002.

Construction lending, particularly commercial construction lending, entails greater credit risk than residential
mortgage lending to owner-occupants. Economic events and changes in government regulations, which neither the
Banks nor their borrowers control, could have an adverse impact on the value of properties securing construction
loans and on the borrowers’ ability to complete projects financed and, if not the borrower’s residence, sell them for
expected amounts at the time the projects were commenced.

Home Equity Loans. The Banks originate fixed-rate loans and revolving lines of credit which are typically
secured by second mortgages on one- to four-family owner-occupied properties. Interest rates on home equity lines
of credit normally adjust based on the prime rate of interest. The lines of credit are available for up to ten years at
the end of which they become term loans which are amortized for periods up to 10 years. The Banks generally do
not originate home equity line of credit loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80% inclusive of the first
mortgage. The Banks had $67.8 miliion in home equity loans outstanding, representing 2.2% of the loan portfolio,
as of December 31, 2002. The undrawn portion of home equity lines of credit totaled $70.6 million as of December
31, 2002.




Commercial Loans. The Banks primarily make commercial loans to businesses that operate in and around their
primary market area of Southeastern Massachusetts including Nantucket, Martha’s Vineyard and Cape Cod.

The Banks review the financial resources, debt-to-equity ratios, cash flows and their own experience with
businesses when underwriting commercial loans and generally require business owners to personally guarantee
commercial loans. Commercial loans are generally collateralized by equipment, leases, inventory and/or accounts
receivable. Many commercial loans are also collateralized by real estate, but are not classified as commercial real
estate loans because such loans are not made for the purpose of acquiring, refinancing or constructing the real estate
partially securing the loan. Commercial loans provide, among other things, working capital, equipment financing,
financing for leasehold improvements and financing for acquisitions. The Banks offer both term and revolving
commercial loans. The former have either fixed or adjustable rates of interest and terms of up to ten years. Term
loans generally amortize during their life, although some loans require a lump sum payment at maturity. Revolving
commercial lines of credit typically have one-year terms, renewable annually, and rates of interest which are
normally indexed to the prime rate of interest.

Commercial borrowers are not concentrated in any one particular industry. As of December 31, 2002, the
commercial loan portfolio included, among others, floor plan loans to auto dealerships, loans to hotels, inns and
other tourism-related businesses, loans to golf courses, loans to building trade companies and loans to retailers. As
of December 31, 2002, the Banks had $127.8 million in commercial loans, representing 4.3% of the loan portfolio.

Commercial lending entails greater credit risks than residential mortgage lending to owner-occupants.
Repayment of both secured and unsecured commercial loans depends substantially on the borrower's underlying
business, financial condition and cash flows. Unsecured loans generally involve a higher degree of risk of loss than
do secured loans because, without collateral, repayment is wholly dependent upon the success of the borrower’s
business. Secured commercial loans are generally collateralized by equipment, leases, inventory and/or accounts
receivable.

Indirect Auto and Other Consumer Loans. Compass emphasizes indirect auto lending through a network of
over 200 automobile dealers. Compass has been in the indirect auto lending business since 1985 and has increased
its portfolio of indirect auto loans to $770.4 million at December 31, 2002, or 25.8% (net of unearned discount) of
the loan portfolio. In developing its network, Compass has historically focused on dealers in its primary market
areas and in Rhode Island. Because of increasing competition for these loans in its market area and management’s
intent to continue to increase this portion of the loan portfolio, Compass has expanded its network of car dealers to
communities throughout Eastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New Hampshire. Although employees of the
dealer take applications for such loans, the indirect auto loans are made pursuant to Compass’ underwriting
standards using Compass’ documentation and a Compass loan officer must approve all indirect auto loans.

Compass makes indirect auto loans collateralized by both new and used cars. The loans have terms of up to six
years for those secured by new vehicles and five and a half years for those secured by used vehicles. As of
December 31, 2002, approximately half of Compass’s indirect auto loans were secured by new car loans. Compass
does not engage in auto lease financing.

In connection with the origination of indirect auto loans, the interest rate charged to the borrower by the dealer
cannot exceed three percentage points over the “buy rate” or the rate earned by Compass. The difference between
the two rates is referred to as the “spread”. At loan inception, the computed dollar value of the spread is prepaid by
Compass to the car dealer. Such prepaid amounts are generally subject to rebate in the event the underlying loan is
prepaid or defaults. In recent years, more dealers have opted to receive either a reduced spread or a flat fee in
exchange for elimination of their rebate obligation. The dealer’s ability to refund any portion of the unearned
prepaid interest, which amounted to $19.7 million at December 31, 2002, is subject to economic conditions
generally, and the financial condition of the dealer. To mitigate this risk, Compass withholds a portion of the spread
at loan origination as a dealer reserve. The amount withheld, in the aggregate, generally approximates 1% of the
outstanding balance of loans originated by each dealer. At December 31, 2002, the balance of the dealer reserve
was $4.8 million, or 0.6% of the balance of indirect auto loans.

Indirect auto lending entails greater risks than residential mortgage lending to owner-occupants. Although
Compass has not historically experienced significant delinquencies in this portfolio, borrowers may be more likely
to become delinquent on a car loan than on a residential mortgage loan secured by their primary residence.
Moreover, car values depreciate rapidly and, in the event of default, principal loss as a percentage of the loan
balance depends upon the mileage and condition of the vehicle at the time of repossession, factors over which
Compass has no control.




The Banks make a variety of other consumer loans, including personal installment loans, education loans, and
passbook loans. The Banks do not offer credit card loans. Other consumer loans totaled $45.0 million, or 1.5% of
the loan portfolio, as of December 31, 2002.

Risk Elements

General. For further information concerning the composition of the loan portfolio, nonaccrual loans, impaired
loans and the allowance for loan losses, see Notes 4 and 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Results of Operations ~ Financial Condition ~ Risk Elements”.

Non-performing Assets. Non-performing assets consist of nonaccruing loans, other real estate owned and
repossessed automobiles. During 2002, non-performing assets increased 6.5% or $940,000 from 2001 levels, to
$15.4 million and amounted to 0.4% of total assets at year-end. The Company places all loans, regardless of
collateral values, on nonaccrual status when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more. Loans for which
payments are less than 90 days past due are placed on non-accrual status where there exists serious doubt as to
collectibility. At December 31, 2002, the Company had $14.1 million in nonaccruing loans and $1.35 million in
other real estate owned and repossessed automobiles.

Provision for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses
charged to the statement of operations. The allowance is reduced by loan charge-offs and increased by loan
recoveries. The Company recorded provision for loan losses of $7.2 million in 2002 as compared to $6.2 million in
2001. Among the factors used to determine that the provision for loan losses was appropriate were the increase in
total loan balances and the increase in non-performing assets and net charge-offs.

Investment Activities

The investment portfolio, an important component of Seacoast’s asset structure, is a source of earnings in the
form of interest and dividends, provides for asset diversification and is a source of liquidity. Overall, the portfolio,
comprised of mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities, short-term
investments and equity securities, represented 13.2% of total assets, or $489.8 million as of December 31, 2002.

In 2002, the total investment portfolio produced interest and dividend income of $24.4 million, or 11.0% of the
total interest and dividend income earned by the Company. The investment portfolio generated net losses of
$277,000 in 2002, as compared to net gains of $99,000 in 2001 on sales, redemptions and the marking of certain
securities to market. For additional information on investments, see Notes 1 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Results of Operations — Financial Condition —
Investments”.

Deposits and Borrowed Funds

The Banks’ major sources of funds are deposits, borrowings, principal payments or payoffs on loans and
mortgage-backed securities, and maturities of investments. Borrowings are generally used to fund long-term assets
and short-term liquidity requirements or to manage interest rate risk. Total deposits amounted to $2,403.9 million at
December 31, 2002. The Banks do not engage in gathering brokered deposits.

The Banks are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLB") and are authorized to borrow
funds to meet withdrawals of savings deposits or to expand the loan or investment portfolios. These borrowings are
subject to collateral requirements and borrowing limitations. The Banks aiso have available various other sources of
funds, including secured borrowings, federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements with various corporate
customers. The Banks may also obtain funds at the discount window of the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. At
December 31, 2002, total borrowings outstanding from all of the Company’s various sources amounted to $896.7
million.

For additional information concerning the composition and maturity of deposits and borrowings, see Notes 7, 8

and 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Results of
Operations ~ Financial Condition — Sources of Funds — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.
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Subsidiaries

In addition to its 100% ownership of the common stock of Compass and Nantucket Bank, Seacoast Financial
directly owns 100% of Lighthouse Securities Corporation and Seacoast Capital Trust 1 and, through its bank
subsidiaries, six other corporations. At December 31, 2002, a summary of the Company’s and the Banks’
subsidiaries, all of which are Massachusetts corporations, were as follows:

Seacoast Capital Trust [. Seacoast Capital Trust I (“SCTI”) was established in 2002 as a business trust. The
trust has no independent assets or operations and exists solely for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities.
As of December 31, 2002, SCTI had total assets of $59.3 million. For further information on the trust preferred
junior subordinated debentures, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Lighthouse Securities Corporation. Lighthouse Securities Corporation (“Lighthouse™), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Seacoast was established in 1998 as a Massachusetts securities corporation and, as such, is authorized
to engage in buying, selling and holding investment securities on its own behalf and not as a broker. The income
earned on Lighthouse’s investment securities is subject to a significantly lower rate of state tax than that assessed on
pretax income earned by the Banks. At December 31, 2002, Lighthouse had total assets of $26.1 million, consisting
primarily of investment securities.

Sandwich Securities Corporation. Sandwich Securities Corporation (“Sandwich Corporation”) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Compass established in 1993 as a Massachusetts securities corporation. Sandwich Corporation
engages exclusively in buying, selling and holding investment securities on its own behalf and not as a broker. The
income earned on Sandwich Corporation’s investment securities is subject to a significantly lower rate of state tax
than that assessed on pretax income earned by the Banks. At December 31, 2002, Sandwich Corporation had total
assets of $133.9 million, consisting primarily of investment securities.

Sextant Securities Corporation. Sextant Securities Corporation (“SSC”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Compass established in 1995 as a Massachusetts securities corporation. SSC engages exclusively in buying, selling
and holding investment securities on its own behalf and not as a broker. The income earned on SSC’s investment
securities 18 subject to a significantly lower rate of state tax than that assessed on pretax income earned by the
Banks. At December 31, 2002, SSC had total assets of $90.1 million, consisting primarily of investment securities.

Compass Preferred Capital Corporation. Compass Preferred Capital Corporation (“Compass Preferred”) is a
subsidiary of Compass. It was established in 1998 to engage in real estate business activities (including the
acquisition and holding of securities and real estate loans) that enable it to be taxed as a real estate investment trust
under federal and Massachusetts tax laws. Compass Preferred had total assets of $679.7 million at December 31,
2002, of which $604.1 million were mortgage loans originated by Compass and $108.5 million was in cash
maintained at Compass. For further information on the assessment by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue of
additional state taxes due to the disallowance of the deduction of dividend income paid by Compass Preferred to
Compass, and the recent legislation disallowing this deduction on a retroactive basis, see Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Sextant Corporation. The Sextant Corporation (“Sextant”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Compass
originally formed to purchase equipment on behalf of Compass for tax favored purposes. Sextant has also engaged
in limited real estate development activities. At December 31, 2002, Sextant had total assets of $2.0 million,
primarily in cash maintained at Compass.

The 1855 Corpoeration. The 1855 Corporation (“1855 Corporation”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Compass
established in 1971 as a Massachusetts corporation. 1855 Corporation is principally engaged in the acquisition and
holding of real estate used for banking purposes. At December 31, 2002, 1855 Corporation had total assets of $1.7
million, of which $1.4 million consisted of real estate used for banking purposes.

N. Realty Corp. N. Realty Corp. (“NRC”) is a subsidiary of Nantucket Bank established in 1998 to engage in
real estate business activities (including the acquisition and holding of securities and real estate loans) that enable it
to be taxed as a real estate investment trust under federal and Massachusetts tax laws. NRC had total assets of
$170.4 million at December 31, 2002, of which $155.2 million were mortgage loans originated by Nantucket Bank.
For further information on the assessment by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue of additional state taxes due
to the disallowance of the deduction of dividend income paid by NRC to Nantucket Bank, and the recent legislation
disallowing this deduction on a retroactive basis, see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Supervision and Regulation

As Massachusetts-chartered stock savings banks, Compass and Nantucket Bank are subject to regulation by the
Massachusetts Division of Banks (the “Division” or the “Commissioner”) and the FDIC. The Banks are required to
file reports with, and are periodically examined by, the FDIC and the Division concerning their activities and
financial condition and must obtain regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions, including, but not
limited to, mergers with or acquisitions of other financial institutions. The Banks are members of the FHLB and are
subject to certain limited regulation by the FRB. Seacoast Financial, as a bank holding company, is subject to
regulation by the FRB and is required to file reports with the FRB.

Massachusetts Bank Regulation

General. Compass and Nantucket Bank are subject to supervision, regulation and examination by the Division
and are subject to various Massachusetts statutes and regulations which govern, among other things, investment
powers, lending and deposit-taking activities, borrowings, maintenance of capital and reserve accounts, distribution
of earnings and payment of dividends. In addition, the Banks are subject to Massachusetts consumer protection and
civil rights laws and regulations. The Commissioner’s approval is required for a Massachusetts bank to establish or
close branches, merge with other banks, organize a holding company, issue stock, engage in insurance agency
activities and undertake certain other activities.

In response to a Massachusetts law enacted in 1996, the Commissioner adopted rules that generally give
Massachusetts banks powers equivalent to those of national banks. The Commissioner also has adopted procedures
reducing regulatory burdens and expense and expediting branching by well-capitalized and well-managed banks.

DIF. All Massachusetts-chartered savings banks are required to be members of the DIF, a corporation that
insures savings bank deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. The DIF is authorized to charge an annual
assessment of up to 1/16th of 1% of a savings bank’s deposits.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC

As an insurer, the FDIC charges deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of and
to require reporting by FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from engaging
in any activity that the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a risk to the insurance fund. The FDIC also
has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against banks, after giving the Commissioner an opportunity to take
such action.

Regulatory Capital Reguirements

The Banks are required to maintain certain levels of regulatory capital in relation to risk-weighted assets. The
ratio of such regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets is referred to as the “risk-based capital ratio.” Risk-based
capital ratios are determined by allocating assets and specified off-balance sheet items to four risk-weighted
categories ranging from 0% to 100%, with higher levels of capital being required for the categories perceived as
representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide a bank’s capital into two tiers. The first tier ("Tier 1") includes common equity,
retained earnings, certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (including trust preferred securities, to a
maximum of 25% of Tier 1 capital) and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less
goodwill and other intangible assets (except mortgage servicing rights and purchased credit card relationships
subject to certain limitations). Supplementary ("Tier 2") capital includes, among other items, cumulative perpetual
and long-term limited-life preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, certain hybrid capital instruments, term
subordinated debt and the allowance for loan losses, subject to certain limitations, less required deductions. Banks
are required to maintain a total risk-based capital ratio equal to at least 8% of risk-weighted assets, and at least half
of such capital must be Tier 1 capital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulations prescribing a minimum Tier 1 "leverage ratio™ (Tier 1 capital
to adjusted average total assets as specified in the regulations). These regulations provide for a minimum Tier 1
leverage ratio of 3% plus an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points. The FDIC may, however, set
higher leverage and risk-based capital requirements for individual institutions when particular circumstances
warrant.
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International bank supervisory organizations, principally the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision,
currently are considering changes to the risk-based capital adequacy framework which ultimately could affect the
FDIC’s guidelines concerning capital adequacy.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcement powers to prohibit a bank from paying dividends if, in its
opinion, the payment of dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Federal law also prohibits the
payment of dividends by a bank that would result in the bank failing to meet its applicable capital requirements on a
pro forma basis. Massachusetts law also restricts a bank from declaring a dividend which would reduce its capital
below (i) the amount required to be maintained by state and federal law and regulations or (ii) the amount of their
liquidation account established in connection with the conversion from mutual to stock form. In addition,
Massachusetts law requires the Commissioner’s approval if the total of dividends declared by a bank in any calendar
year exceeds net income for that year combined with the retained net income of the preceding two years.

Prompt Corrective Action

The federal banking agencies have promulgated regulations to implement a system of prompt corrective action
required by federal law. Under the regulations, a bank is deemed to be: (i) “well capitalized” if it has total risk-
based capital of 10% or more, has a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% or more, has a Tier | leverage ratio of 5%
or more and is not subject to any written capital order or directive; (ii} “adequately capitalized” if it has a total risk-
based capital ratio of 8% or more, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4% or more and Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4% or
more (3% under certain circumstances) and does not meet the definition of “well capitalized”; (iii)
“undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 8%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio that is
less than 4% or a Tier 1 leverage ratio that is less than 4% (3% under certain circumstances); (iv) “significantly
undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio that is
less than 3% or a Tier 1 leverage ratio that is less than 3%; and (v) “critically undercapitalized” if it has a ratio of
tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less than 2%.

Based on the foregoing, Compass and Nantucket Bank are currently classified as “well capitalized” banks.
Holding Company Regulation

General. Seacoast Financial, as a bank holding company, is subject to comprehensive regulation and regular
examinations by the FRB. The FRB also has extensive enforcement authority over bank holding companies,
including, among other things, the ability to assess civil money penalties, to issue cease and desist or removal orders
and to require that a holding company divest subsidiaries (including its bank subsidiaries). In general, enforcement
actions may be initiated for violations of law and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices.

Seacoast Financial is subject to capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companies (on a consolidated
basis) which are substantially similar to those of the FDIC for the Banks.

Under FRB policy, a bank holding company must serve as a source of strength for its subsidiary banks. Under
this policy, the FRB may require, and has required in the past, a holding company to contribute additional capital to
an undercapitalized subsidiary bank.

Seacoast Financial must obtain Massachusetts Board of Bank Incorporation and FRB approval before: (i)
acquiring, directly or indirectly, ownership or control of any voting shares of another bank or bank holding company
if, after such acquisition, it would own or control more than 5% of such shares (unless it already owns or controls
the majority of such shares); (ii) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or bank holding
company; or (iii) merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

The BHCA also prohibits a bank holding company, with certain exceptions, from acquiring direct or indirect
ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company which is not a bank or bank holding
company, or from engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling
banks, or providing services for its subsidiaries.
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Dividends. FRB policy specifies that a bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that
the holding company’s net income for the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of
earning retention that is consistent with the holding company’s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial
condition. Under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the FRB, the FRB may prohibit a bank
holding company from paying any dividends if any of the holding company’s bank subsidiaries is classified as
“undercapitalized.”

Bank holding companies are required to give the FRB prior written notice of any purchase or redemption of its
outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or redemption, when combined with the net
consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptions during the preceding 12 months, is equal to 10% or more of

the consolidated net worth of the bank holding company. The FRB may disapprove such a purchase or redemption
if it determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or would violate any law,
regulation, FRB order or any condition imposed by, or written agreement with, the FRB.

This notification requirement does not apply to any bank holding company that meets the well-capitalized
standard for banks, is “well managed” within the meaning of the FRB regulations and is not subject to any
unresolved supervisory issues.

Patriot Act. The Patriot Act is intended to strengthen U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligent communities’
abilities to work cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of fronts, The potential impact of the Patriot Act on
financial institutions of all kinds is significant and wide ranging. The Patriot Act contains sweeping anti-money
laundering and financial transparency laws and imposes various regulations including standards for verifying client
identification at account opening, and rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators and law
enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering.

Financial Services Modernization. In November 1999, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“Gramm-Leach”), which
significantly altered banking laws in the United States, became law. Gramm-Leach permits combinations among
banks, securities firms and insurance companies. Under Gramm-Leach, bank holding companies are permitted to
offer their customers virtually any type of financial service that is financial in nature or incidental thereto, including
banking, securities underwriting, insurance (both underwriting and agency) and merchant banking.

In order to engage in these new financial activities, a bank holding company must qualify and register with the
FRB as a “financial holding company” by demonstrating that each of its bank subsidiaries is “well capitalized,”
“well managed” and has at least a “satisfactory” rating under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as
amended (“CRA").

A “financial subsidiary” of a national or state bank may engage in the new financial activities authorized by
Gramm-Leach except for insurance or annuity underwriting, insurance company portfolio investments, real estate
investment and development and merchant banking, which must be conducted by a financial holding company. In
order for a financial subsidiary of a national or state bank to engage in the new financial activities, Gramm-Leach
requires that each of the parent bank (and its sister-bank affiliates) be well capitalized and well managed; that the
aggregate consolidated assets of all of the bank’s financial subsidiaries not exceed the lesser of 45% of its
consolidated total assets or $50 billion; that the bank must have at least a satisfactory CRA rating; and, if the bank is
one of the 100 largest national banks, it meet certain financial rating or other comparable requirements.

Gramm-Leach established a system of functional regulation, under which the federal banking agencies will
regulate the banking activities of financial holding companies and banks’ financial subsidiaries, the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission will regulate their securities activities and state insurance regulators will regulate their
insurance activities. Gramm-Leach also provides new protections against the transfer and use by financial
institutions of consumers’ nonpublic, personal information.

To the extent that the Gramm-Leach permits banks, securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate the
financial services industry may experience further consolidation. The Gramm-Leach is intended to grant the
community banks certain powers as a matter of right that larger institutions have accumulated on an ad hoc basis and
which unitary savings and loan holding companies already possess. Nevertheless, the Gramm-Leach may have the
result of increasing the amount of competition that the Company faces from large institutions and other types of
companies offering financial products, many of which may have substantially more financial resources than the
Company has.
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Although the Company meets the qualifications for electing to become a financial holding company under
Gramm-Leach, the Company has elected to retain its pre-Gramm-Leach, or bank holding company status for the
present time.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(“SOA™). The stated goals of the SOA are to increase corporate responsibility, provide for enhanced penalties for
accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded companies and to protect investors by improving the
accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures pursuant to the securities laws.

The SOA is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legislation enacted in some time. The SOA generally applies
to all companies, both U.S. and non-U.S., that file or are required to file periodic reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act. Given the
extensive SEC role in implementing rules relating to many of the SOA’s new requirements, the final scope of these
requirements remains to be determined.

The SOA includes very specific additional disclosure requirements and new corporate governance rules,
requires the SEC and securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, corporate governance and other
related rules and mandates further studies of certain issues by the SEC and the Comptroller General. The SOA
represents significant federal involvement in matters traditionally left to state regulatory systems, such as the
regulation of the accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such as the relationship between a board of
directors and management and between a board of directors and its committees.

The SOA addresses, among other matters:

e audit committees for all reporting companies;

° certification of financial statements by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer;

o  the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensation and profits from the sale of an
issuer’s securities by directors and senior officers in the twelve month period following initial
publication of any financial statements that later require restatement;

a prohibition on insider trading during pension plan black out periods;

disclosure of off-balance sheet transactions;

a prohibition on personal loans to directors and officers;

expedited filing requirements for Form 4;

disclosure of a code of ethics and filing a Form 8-K for a change or waiver of such code;

accelerated filing of periodic reports;

the formation of a public accounting oversight board,

auditor independence; and

various increased criminal penalties for violations of securities laws.

o 0 ® 0 ¢ 0 o @ o

The SOA contains provisions which became effective upon enactment on July 30, 2002 and provisions which
will become effective from within 30 days to one year from enactment. The SEC has been delegated the task of
enacting rules to implement various provisions with respect to, among other matters, disclosure in periodic filings
pursuant to the Exchange Act.

Federal Reserve System

The FRB requires all depository institutions to maintain noninterest-bearing reserves at specified levels against
their transaction accounts (primarily depositor checking and NOW accounts). Banks are authorized to borrow from
the FRB’s “discount window,” but FRB regulations require banks to exhaust other reasonable alternative sources of
funds, including FHLB borrowings, before borrowing from the FRB.

Personnel

As of December 31, 2002, the Banks had 749 full-time equivalent employees. None of the Company’s
employees are represented by a labor union and management considers relations with its employees to be good.
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Item 2, Properties

At December 31, 2002, the Company conducted business through 43 full-service branches, two seasonal and
limited service high school offices, 8 remote ATMs and the corporate headquarters and main banking office in
downtown New Bedford.

In the Greater New Bedford market, Compass operates ten full-service branches, including seven branches in
the City of New Bedford (six of which are owned by Compass or a subsidiary while the other is leased), one owned
branch in Fairhaven and one leased branch in each of Mattapoisett and Dartmouth. Compass’s corporate
headquarters is located in the City of New Bedford. Two of Compass’s remote ATMs and one of its limited service
high school branches are also located in the City of New Bedford.

In the Greater Fall River market, Compass operates seven full-service branches, including one owned and one
leased branch in the City of Fall River, one leased branch in Assonet and owned branches in each of Seekonk
(subject to a land lease), Somerset, Swansea and Westport. One of Compass’s remote ATMs is also located in the
City of Fall River, as is one of Compass’s limited service high school branches. Another remote ATM is located in
Westport.

In the Greater Plymouth market, Compass operates six full-service branches, including two owned and three
leased branches in Plymouth and a leased branch in Carver. Compass also leases a non-branch mortgage office in
Lakeville, which is part of the Greater Plymouth market.

In the Martha’s Vineyard market, Compass operates five full-service branches, including one owned and one
leased branch in Edgartown, and owned branches in each of Chilmark, Vineyard Haven and Oak Bluffs. One of
Compass’s remote ATMs is located on Martha’s Vineyard in West Tisbury.

In the Cape Cod market, Compass operates twelve full-service branches, inciuding two leased offices in
Sandwich, leased offices in Buzzards Bay, South Yarmouth and Wareham, and owned offices in Pocasset,
Falmouth, Hyannis {two), Chatham, South Dennis and Orleans. Two of the Company’s remote ATM’s are located
on Cape Cod, one in South Sandwich and one in Wareham.

In the Nantucket market, Nantucket Bank operates three full-service branches all of which are owned. In
addition, Nantucket Bank leases office space and has a remote ATM on the Island. Nantucket also owns a duplex
house that is used for employee housing. As of December 31, 2002, Nantucket Bank anticipates signing a purchase
and sales agreement for the leased office space mentioned above some time during the first quarter of 2003,

The Company believes that all of its properties are well maintained and are suitable for their respective present
needs and operations. For additional information, see Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routine legal proceedings occurring
in the ordinary course of business. Management believes that those routine proceedings involve, in the aggregate,
amounts which are immaterial to the consolidated financial condition and results of operations of the Company. As
noted further in Item 7. which follows, the Company is intending to vigorously defend its position on the dividends
received deductions from its REIT subsidiaries and challenge the state tax assessment issued by the Massachusetts
Department of Revenue and legislation signed by Governor Romney. For further information, see Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Commeon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Seacoast Financial’s common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol “SCFS”.
At March 17, 2003, there were 23,356,774 shares of common stock outstanding and 5,427 shareholders of record.
This does not reflect the number of persons or entities who hold their stock in nominee or street name through
various brokerage firms. As of that date, the closing sales price, as reported by Nasdaq, was $19.22.

High and low sales prices and dividends declared, stated on a per share basis, are as follows:

Dividends
High Low Declared
2002
Fourth qUarter .........ccocoveviivicrninicineceneieiee e $22.70  $18.59 $0.11
Third QUArLET .....c.cccoveriiiiiireeee e 25.30 16.88 0.11
Second qUATET ..o 25.76 18.80 0.10
FIrst QUATTET...cvevieeeeeic e v 20.36 16.72 0.10
2001
Fourth QUArter ........oooveiie i 17.83 14.13 0.09
Third QUATtET ......oveiveiicr s 17.90 13.25 0.09
Second QUATEET ..o..vcereiieeieie et 16.33 12.88 0.08
FIISt QUATTEr. ..ot 15.38 10.75 0.08

The Company’s Board of Directors reviews the payment of dividends on a quarterly basis. The declaration of
dividends is dependent upon a number of factors, including capital requirements, regulatory considerations, and the
financial condition and operating results of bank subsidiaries and general economic conditions. Based on its
assessment of these factors, the Board of Directors may elect to either pay the same dividend as the previous quarter
or to increase, decrease or omit the dividend. The Company had approximately $9.7 million in cash on hand at the
holding company level as of December 31, 2002.

The Company initiated the payment of a dividend in the third quarter of 1999 and has increased the dividend
rate by $.01 per share semi-annually since then. While there can be no assurance that it will continue to do so, the
Company expects that dividends which are comparable in relation to net income as those currently being paid will
continue to be paid in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data are derived in part from, and should be read in conjunction with, the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto presented elsewhere herein.

At December 31, At October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

(In thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total assets $3,701,045 $3,347,467 $2,890,765 $2,122,785 $1,806,523
Loans (2) 2,991,171 2,574,334 2,363,332 1,747,206 1,320,680
Allowance for loan losses 29,513 25,081 16,828 15,117
Debt securities:
Available for sale 414,426 388,552 236,469 235,620 282,732
Held to maturity 18,721 20,551 29,728 12,408 13,694
Marketable equity securities 12,365 17,236 12,386 9,963 8,200
Deposits 2,403,875 2,192,357 1,989,630 1,515,622 1,531,663
Borrowed funds 896,704 823,341 590,266 314,622 102,906
Trust preferred securities 55,041 — —_ — —
Stockholders’ equity 319,488 305,724 288,188 274,021 153,570
Non-performing loans 14,073 13,408 6,107 5,734 6,514
Non-performing assets 15,423 14,483 6,193 6,286 7.813
Years Ended
December 31, October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 (1) 1998
Selected Operating Data:
INEETEST IMCOMIE wevvvvievieteeere e st sesee st e e e e eseeateeeeve s $217,084 $216,389 $166,439 $137,952 $122,934
TNETESt EXPEISE ..ovviviiriiriiciceieriier e et 95.414 113.491 86.336 63.510 62,692
Net interest iNCOME........ocovevevriervenreieeiesreeeresrneeraeenns 121,670 102,898 80,103 74,442 60,242
Provision for 10an 10SSeS......ccvivevivievriiirieiireneeeeiaeeereenns 7,247 6,175 4,775 2,000 1,736
Net interest income after provision
fOr 1080 10SSES ..evvevvicireeieiietieci et 114,423 96,723 75,328 72,442 58,506
Gains (losses) on sale of securities, N€t...........coeeeeeevenenn. 277) 99 4 164 67
Gains on sales of 10anS, NEL .....oooviviieiee e rereeeveees e 263 1,352 30 56 1,755
Gains (losses) on pension plan curtailment/settlement .... (446) 1,504 — 1,472 —
Other noNINtErest iNCOIME ...vevvveeiiiiiiireresieire e vostresereees s 14,175 13,388 9,953 8,302 8,220
NONINEETESE EXPEINSE. c..evvierarrirerireriiriraniareeicseesresrereeeearrne 69,046 65,376 49,071 44,516 39,807
MinNOority iNterest EXPENSE ..cvcvvrvvrirrrerierirrreereeireeserenerseensns 2.851 — — — —
Income before inCOmMe tAXES...cccvvvveeviiiriieririrvnrrenennn 56,241 47,690 36,244 37,920 28,741
Provision for income taxes ........oceevveveveiviveeveecieseee e 19,633 16,723 12,315 13,394 10,651
NELINCOME 1vivvireiee ettt $ 36.608 $ 30,967 $23929 $ 24,526 $ 18,090
Earning per share — basic (8) ....coovvevvvniinninninceeninnenen, $1.60 $1.32 $1.01 $0.97 N/A
Earnings per share - diluted (8) .....cccocoocvninnninccinnnnns $1.57 $1.31 $1.01 $0.97 N/A
Cash dividends per share (8) .....c.coeccevenvienniiniccnnieinan, $0.42 $0.34 $0.26 $0.10 N/A

—
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December 31, October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Selected financial ratios and other data (3):
Performance ratios:

Return on average assets.......cococcoveerernrernicnenencenens 1.02 % 98 % 1.03% 1.23% 1.06%
Return on average stockholders’ equity........cccoucvnuennnn. 11.48 10.38 8.54 8.97 12.00
Average equity to average total assets........oooevrrenrennsn. 8.91 9.45 12.07 13.77 8.87
Net interest rate spread (4) .o.oocoveeeeeirenenicvirnnienenneene 3.23 3.00 2.98 3.26 3.20
Net interest margin (5) .ococeorvervveereneninnrceernrnneocennes 3.60 3.47 3.63 3.93 3.72
Average interest-earning assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities.......c.ccoovvveiciriiiic s 113.35 11234 116.43 120.12 113.36
Total noninterest expense to average assets................. 1.93 2.07 2.11 2.24 2.34
Efficiency ratio (6) .....ccc.corvrveveiriecernirineeeieecneenns 50.24 53.01 53.81 52.85 55.53
Dividend payout ratio (8).......coccoicvieniciionnieniinecns 26.55 26.12 26.41 10.33 N/A
Regulatory capital ratios (3):
Tier 1 leverage capital.........ccoccooenminiiiinnecis e 8.93 8.04 10.15 13.11 8.34
Tier 1 risk-based-capital.....c.....cccoooniiininininn, 13.05 12.04 12.78 18.98 12.45
Total risk-based capital .........cocecvvvenincciineneiinins 14.33 13.34 14.04 20.17 13.70

Asset quality ratios (3):
Non-performing loans as a percent of

08NS (7) o 0.47 0.52 0.26 0.33 0.49
Non-performing assets as a percent of
TOTALl ASSEIS...uiiuerrirreiiicee e 0.42 043 0.21 0.30 0.43
Allowance for loan losses as a percent
OF 10ANS (2).rviiiieeee s 1.15 1.15 1.06 0.96 1.14
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of
total non-performing 10ans (7) ....ccooeevveiviirennennn 244,11 220.11 41069  293.48 232.07
Number of full-service customer facilities ................. 43 42 41 35 34
(1) In January 1999, the Board of Directors voted to change the Company’s year-end to December 31. Selected consolidated
financial data for the two month transition period ended December 31, 1998 is not presented herein.
(2) Loans are comprised of gross loan balances, less unearned discounts and net unadvanced funds on loans plus net deferred
loan origination costs and fees.
(3) Asset quality ratios and regulatory capital ratios are end-of-period ratios. With the exception of end-of-period ratios, all
ratios are based on average daily balances during the periods indicated.
(4) The net interest rate spread represents the difference between the fully-taxable weighted average yield on average interest-
earning assets and the weighted average cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.
(5) The net interest margin represents net interest income (fully taxable equivalent) as a percentage of average interest-earning
assets.
(6) The efficiency ratio represents the ratio of noninterest expenses (excluding amortization of intangible assets) to the sum of
net interest income and noninterest income (excluding gains (losses) on plan curtailment and settlement).
(7)  Non-performing loans consist of all nonaccrual and restructured loans.
(8) Diluted earnings and cash dividends per share and the dividend payout ratio are not applicable for periods prior to the

Company’s mutual to stock conversion in November 1998,
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. When used in this report, the words or phrases, “will likely result,” “are expected
to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “believe,” or similar expressions are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking
statemments. Important factors that might cause such a difference include, among other things, general economic
conditions, particularly the real estate market, in the Company’s primary market area, credit risk management,
asset/liability management, changes in government regulation and supervision, changes in interest rates, the
availability of and costs associated with sources of liquidity and increased competition and bank consolidations in
the Company’s market area.

The Company does not undertake, and specifically disclaims any obligation, to publicly release the result of any
revisions which may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect the occurrence of anticipated events or
circumstances after the date of such statements.

General

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on its net interest income, which is the difference between
the income earned on its loan and securities portfolios and its cost of funds, consisting of the interest paid on
deposits and borrowings. Results of operations are also affected by the provision for loan losses, as well as
noninterest income and expenses, minority interest expense and income taxes. Noninterest income consists
principally of deposit and other banking fees. Noninterest expenses consist principally of employee compensation
and benefits, occupancy, data processing, marketing and professional services costs. Results of operations are also
significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions and changes in interest rates as well as
government policies and actions of regulatory authorities.

Critical Accounting Policies

Accounting policies involving significant judgments and assumptions by management, which have, or could
have, a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and impact income, are considered critical accounting
policies. Seacoast Financial considers the following to be its critical accounting policies: allowance for loan losses,
accounting for acquisitions and the related review of goodwill and intangible assets for impairment and income
taxes. There have been no significant changes in the methods or assumptions used in the accounting policies that
require material estimates and assumptions.

Allowance for Loan Losses. Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses necessarily involves a
high degree of judgment. The ongoing evaluation process includes a formal analysis of the allowance each quarter,
which considers, among other factors, the character and size of the loan portfolio, business and economic conditions,
loan growth, delinquency trends, nonperforming loans trends, charge-off experience, portfolio migration data and
other asset quality factors. The Company evaluates specific loan status reports on certain commercial and
commercial real estate loans rated “substandard” or worse in excess of a specified dollar amount. Estimated
reserves for each of these credits are determined by reviewing current collateral value, financial information, cash
flow, payment histcry and trends and other relevant facts surrounding the particular credit. Analysis of the
allowance for loan losses on the remaining commercial, construction and commercial real estate loans are based on
pools of similar loans using a combination of historical loss experience and qualitative adjustments. For the
residential real estate and consumer loan portfolios, the range of reserves is calculated by applying loss factors that
represent management’s estimate of inherent losses in their respective categories to the current outstanding loan
balances. Although management uses available information to establish the appropriate level of the allowance for
loan losses, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on estimates that are susceptible to change as
a result of changes in economic conditions and other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral
part of their examination process, pericdically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may
require Seacoast to recognized adjustments to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to
them at the time of their examination.
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Accounting for Acquisitions and Review of Goodwill. Seacoast Financials’ growth in business, profitability
and market share over the past several years has been enhanced by mergers and acquisitions. Seacoast Financials’
acquisition strategy has utilized both pooling and purchase business combination methods of accounting. However,
current accounting methods currently only allow Seacoast Financial to use the purchase method of accounting. For
acquisitions under the purchase method, the Company is required to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
their estimated fair value, which in many instances involves estimates based on third party, internal or other
valuation techniques. These estimates also include the establishment of various liabilities based on planned facilities
dispositions and employee benefit-related considerations, among other acquisition-related items. In addition,
purchase acquisitions typically result in goodwill or other intangible assets, which are subject to ongoing periodic
impairment tests. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment using discounted future cash flows. This valuation
technique contains estimates such as discount rate, projected future cash flows and time period in its calculations.
Furthermore, the determination of which intangible assets have finite lives is subjective, as is the determination of
the amortization period for such intangible assets.

Income Taxes. Seacoast Financial uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. If current available information raises doubt as to the realization of the deferred tax assets, a valuation
allowance is established. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
Management exercises significant judgment in evaluating the amount and timing of recognition of the resulting tax
liabilities and assets, including projections of future taxable income. These judgments and estimates are reviewed
on a continual basis as regulatory and business factors change.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total assets increased $353.6 million, or 10.6%, from $3,347.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $3,701.0
million at December 31, 2002. The increase in total assets during 2002 was most pronounced in the loan portfolio
as it experienced a 16.2% increase.

Total investment securities, consisting of securities available for sale, held to maturity and restricted equity
securities increased $22.6 million, or 4.8%, to $489.8 million as of December 31, 2002. The increase during 2002
occurred despite the high level of paydowns, sales and calls in the securities available for sale portfolio. This
compares to an increase of $159.6 million during 2001 to $467.2 million at December 31, 2001, in the total
investment securities portfolio.  Offsetting the increases in the total investment portfolio was a decline of $91.8
million in federal funds and short-term investments during 2002 to $11.1 million. Due to the extremely low interest
rates earned on these types of investments, the Company has redeployed the cash flows into higher interest-earning
loans while maintaining an overall investment and liquidity strategy.

Total loans, excluding loans held for sale, increased $416.8 million, or 16.2%, from $2,574.3 million at
December 31, 2001 to $2,991.2 million at December 31, 2002. The increases in 2002 were primarily due to
increases in residential mortgage loans ($201.8 million), indirect auto loans ($170.8 million) and home equity loans
($22.1 million). The increases in commercial and commercial real estate loans amounted to $12.3 million and $19.3
million, respectively, during 2002. Net construction loans increased modestly ($1.6 million) and other consumer
loans declined ($11.0 million) during 2002. The growth in residential mortgage loans reflects the lower interest rate
environment experienced throughout the year as well as the purchase of residential whole loans. The overall
balances in the residential loan category for both 2002 and 2001 would have been significantly higher, based on the
high leve] of originations experienced in each year, however, it should be noted that the record level of refinancing
activities caused the loan balances to prepay at a much higher rate than anticipated. Compass continues to expand
its existing network of automobile dealers throughout the region and New Hampshire in order to grow its portfolio
of indirect auto loans. The low interest rate environment, combined with high levels of consumer confidence,
allowed the Company to experience 28.5% growth in its indirect auto portfolio. With growth of 48.3%, home equity
loans experienced the highest growth rate in 2002, although the home equity portfolio only represents 2.2% of the
total loan portfolio. The Company initiated several marketing campaigns to achieve this growth in light of its
preference for adjustable rate loans. The Company’s commercial real estate and commercial loan portfolios both
experienced flat origination levels for 2002 as compared to 2001. In spite of this moderation, the balances in the
respective portfolios increased by 5.7% and 10.6% during 2002. The moderate growth in these types of lending in
2002 reflects the impact of the continued economic slowdown and strong competition for creditworthy customers.
The growth in commercial real estate loans was primarily with existing customers.

21



Total deposits at December 31, 2002 were $2,403.9 million, an increase of $211.5 million, or 9.6%, compared
to $2,192.4 million at December 31, 2001, due to an increase in core deposits (or noncertificate accounts). Core
deposit account balances increased by $190.2 million, or 15.8%, during 2002 due to the continued migration into
insured deposit accounts and away from the volatile stock market. The increase during 2002 was notable
considering that it was on top of a $227.2 million, and 23.4%, increase in core accounts during 2001. The Company
has had extensive marketing promotions to continue to grow this low cost funding source. The increase in both
2002 and 2001 was also reflective of the additional branches opened in each year as the Company expanded its
physical presence throughout the region.

Total borrowed funds were $896.7 million at December 31, 2002, as compared to $823.3 million at December
31, 2001, for an increase of $73.4 million, or 8.9%. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
continued its reliance on borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank in order to fund the strong loan growth.
Management believes that it will continue to rely on Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings in 2003 to augment its
funding sources for anticipated loan growth, subject to available collateral and regulatory limitations.

As of December 31, 2002, trust preferred securities totaled $55.0 million as a result of the issuance of junior
subordinated debentures in June, 2002. These are callable in June 2007 but have a maturity date of June 2032.

Total stockholders’ equity was $319.5 million at December 31, 2002, as compared to $305.7 million at
December 31, 2001, for an increase of $13.8 million. This increase during 2002 resulted from net income of $36.6
million for the year then ended which was partially offset by cash dividends of $9.7 million and stock repurchases of
$21.2 million.

RESULTS OF CPERATIONS

Summary. For the year ended December 31, 2002, net income was $36.6 million, or $1.57 per diluted share,
compared to net income of $31.0 million, or $1.31 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2001, and
$23.9 million, or $1.01 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2000. This represents an increase of $5.6
million, or 18.2%, in net income and a $0.26 increase in fully diluted earnings per share during 2002. Seacoast
Financial’s return on average assets increased in 2002 to 1.02%, as compared to 0.98% in 2001 and 1.03% in 2000.
The return on average stockholders’ equity increased in 2002 to 11.48%, as compared to 10.38% in 2001 and 8.54%
in 2000. Included in the Company’s performance for 2002 was a curtailment loss recorded in relation to Nantucket
Bank’s pension plan of $446,000 as compared to a gain on the settlement of Compass Bank’s pension plan in 2001
of $1.5 million. In addition, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002. As a result, intangible asset amortization declined
$2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Net Interest Income. The Company’s operating performance is highly dependent upon the level of net interest
income. General economic conditions, corporate strategies, asset/liability management, interest rates and the
policies of regulatory authorities all have a significant impact on the level of net interest income achieved. During
the period 2000 to 2002, the Company’s net interest income increased from $80.1 to $121.7 million, an increase of
$41.6 million, or 51.9%. This achievement has been primarily attributable to the growth in the loan portfolio and
the continued reduction in the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities and the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results
as of December 31, 2000.
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The following table presents average balances, interest income and expense and yields earned or rates paid on
the major categories of assets and liabilities for the years indicated.

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000
Average
Average Average yield/ Average
balance balance Interest cost balance Interest
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold and other short-term
TIVESHMENLS 1ot e cen et cen e $ 105,622 $ 95308 $ 3250 341% $§ 11307 $ 832
Debt securities (1)....cooovreriieriiiriecnccneieenne 443,450 284,064 17,278 6.08 233,901 15,265
Equity securities (1) ....cocooiveriieninrenienninnceniee 57,823 51,567 2,829 549 30,332 1,993
Mortgage 10ans (2)...cooceereriienieiicnmencienniereinnene 1,913,127 1,794,617 136,270 7.59 1,327,017 101,513
Commercial 10ans (2) ......cooooeiiieirinieneiencnes 123,338 120,253 9,467 7.87 77,887 7514
Indirect auto 10ans (2) ......cooeevieenvierivenreenninsennnens 690,288 571,295 42,752 7.48 479,084 35442
Other consumer 10ans (2)......ccooovniniiincnne 51,680 57.042 4.823 8.46 47,093 3.880
Total interest-earning assets 3,385,328 2,974,146 216,669 129 2,206,621  166.439
Allowance for 10an 108Ses.....c..ccovveivrciiniiencinnns (31,666) (27,663) (18,428)
Non-interest €arning assets ...........ccovvvericervieninenee 224,440 209.191 134973
Total @SSELS .ooiieiviiiie e e $3.578.102 $3.155,674 $2,323.166
Liabilities and Equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
NOW ECCOUNLS .oocercvrrientierercinreenesncerisie e $278,536 $ 246,034 $ 1,378 0.56% $ 166,776 § 1,210
Savings accounts ..........cccoe.... . 302,946 254,134 4,181 1.65 217,433 4,370
Money market savings acCoOUNtS...........occcvvrueeee 533,350 389,511 10,566 2.71 202,037 8,499
Certificates of deposit.......ccooovvviinnieniiiiiiiinne 1,005,545 1,009,557 55.892 5.54 846,746 _49.,482
Total interest-bearing deposits............ccc..ce... 2,120,377 1.899.236 72,017 3.79 1,522,992 63,561
Borrowed funds:
Short-term borrowings (3).......ccceeeevericrceneanns 40,157 33,979 1,359 4.00 34,471 1,645
FHLB advances........cccccormeerinmcrinnrcenianecanns 826,081 714,248 40.115 5.62 337,733 21,130
Total bOrrOWINES....c.cvevevreeicviireineereeeeeas 866.238 748,227 41474 554 372204 22,775
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,986,615 2,647,463 113,491 4.29 1,895,196 86,336
Non-interest bearing demand
deposit ACCOUNLS .......ccreermriirrriercerren e 220,264 184,979 131,108
Other Habilities ....ccccoeriienmiecniiencicinierecncnene 20,122 25,027 16,527
Trust preferred securities ........co.ccooevcnienccninne 32,183 — —
Total Habilities. .....oceoverieieercrrccts e 3,259,184 2,857,469 2,042,831
Stockholders’ equity 318,918 298,203 280,335
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ eqUItY ...cooveuiencneniierscnnncens $3,578,102 $3.155,674 $2.323,166
Net interest-earning assets ......cc..oevverecercrniinnneens $ 398713 $ 326,683 $ 311425
Net interest income (fully-taxable equivalent)...... 103,178 80,103
Less: fully-taxable equivalent adjustments............ (280) —
Net INLErest INCOME ....vvvivrrreiiireeiereseesierensenns e $102.898 $80,103
Net interest rate spread (4)..cc.oovevvrecereiniiinicnnnc 3.00%
Net interest margin (5)........ccoocvcnininninicins 347%

(1) Average balances include unrealized gains on securities available for sale. Equity securities include marketable equity securities and

restricted equity securities.

(2) Loans on non-accrual status are included in the average balances.
(3) Short-term borrowings include immaterial balances of other borrowings.

(4) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the fully-taxable yield on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing

liabilities.

(5) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets (fully-taxable equivalent) and basis.



Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in volume
of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected the Company’s interest income and interest expense during

the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to: (i) changes attributable to changes in volume
(changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changes attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior
volume); and (iii) the net change (change in rate times change in volume). The net change has been allocated proportionately to
the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate.

Years ended December 31,

2002 vs. 2001 2001 vs. 2000
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(In thousands)

Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold and short-term investments.... $ 320 $ (1,910)  $ (1,590) $ 3,088 $§ (6700 $ 2418

Dbt SECUTTLES ..vovviviireiieeie e 8,420 (3,357) 5,063 3,105 (1,092) 2,013
EqUity SECUTIHES c.coviveiiieir et 313 (998) (685) 1,209 (373) 836
MoOrtgage 10ANS ...c..ceviierirreeie et 8.670 (11,564) (2,894) 35,512 (755) 34,757
Commercial J0ans..........oocooivveviiivveeeecee e 237 (1,966) (1,729) 3,525 (1,572) 1,953
Indirect auto 10ans .......c.ocooeiiiviiiiiiiiee 8,259 (5,099) 3,160 6,896 414 7,310
Other consumer loans..........cccovvveeriivercieecniesennes (444) 124) (568) 839 104 943

Total interest-earning assets .........c..coeeeeo. $25,775 $(25.018) § 757 $54.174  $(3.944)  $50.230

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Deposits:
NOW aCCOUNTS covveiimreienreniiteeiis e e sresiie e e $ 165 $ (533) $  (368) $ 486 $ (318) $ 168
Savings aCCOUNLS .....c.ooverriririireeerreciiece s 732 (738) (6) 673 (862) (189)
Money market $avings aCCOUNLS ....vvcveeverrernreens 3,306 (3,167) 139 2,677 610) 2,067
Certificates of deposit.......coeveviieiiieiiiierieene (221) (19,047) (19.268) 9.121 2.711) 6,410
Total deposits ....cooeceiveeeeiieriieieieceene 3.982 (23.485) (19.503) 12,957 (4.501) 8.456
Borrowed funds:
Short-term borrowings ........c.coooeccoevceireierens 193 (633) (440) (23) (263) (286)
FHLB advances......ccccovvveeierieivnreneconenr e 5,909 (4.043) 1.866 21.349 (2.364) 18.985
Total borroOwings ......cooccovvvecenccrincrecnne 6.102 (4,676) 1,426 21,326 (2,627) 18,699
Total interest-bearing liabilities ...............c........ 10.084 (28.161) 18.077 34,283 (7,128) 27,155
Net interest income (fully-taxable
EQUIVALENT) .evrecetiiiriee e eeaes $15,691 $ 3.143 $18.834 $19.891 $3.184 $23.075

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income amounted to $217.1 million, $216.4 million and $166.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase in total interest income for 2002 was
$757,000 while the increase during 2001 was $50.2 million. During 2002, interest-earning assets increased $411.2
million while the yield earned on those assets declined 87 basis points. During 2001, interest-earning assets increased
$767.5 million and the yield earned on those assets declined 25 basis points. The principal areas of growth in 2002 in
average balances were from debt securities ($159.4 million, or 56.1%), mortgage loans ($118.5 million, or 6.6%) and
indirect auto loans ($119.0 million, or 20.8%). During 2001, the principal areas of growth in average balances were
related to real estate loans (up $467.6 million, or 35.2%) and indirect auto loans (up $92.2 million, or 19.2%). A
significant portion of the increase in 2001 was due to the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results. Most of the real estate
loan growth in 2001 resulted from increased originations of residential mortgage loans while the increase in indirect auto
loans resulted from the continued geographic expansion of the network of participating dealers.

Interest Expense. Total interest expense amounted to $95.4 million, $113.5 million and $86.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Total interest expense for 2002 decreased by $18.1 million as
the rates paid on interest-bearing deposits continued to decline as overall market interest rates continued to fall. Total
interest expense for 2001 increased by $27.2 million over 2001 due to the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results. The
rates paid on all interest-bearing liabilities totaled 3.19%, 4.29% and 4.56% for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Average interest-bearing deposits increased $221.1 million, or 11.6%, during 2002 compared to 2001. The rates
paid on those interest-bearing deposits totaled 2.48% in 2002 compared to 3.79% in 2001 and 4.17% in 2000. Average
interest-bearing deposit balances increased $376.2 million, or 24.7%, during 2001 compared to 2000. The increase in
2002 reflects the continued increases in core deposit accounts while the increase in 2001 reflects the results of Nantucket
Bank.

Interest expense on borrowed funds increased $1.4 million during 2002 and $18.7 million during 2001 due to the
increase in the average balances of such funds in each year, partially offset by 59 basis points and 58 basis points,
respectively, decreases in the average rate paid on borrowed funds for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The net impact of the changes in the average interest-earning assets and liabilities resulted in a net interest margin of
3.60%, 3.47% and 3.63% recognized for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses. The Company provides for loan losses in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses
at a level that management believes is adeguate to absorb future charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible. Assessing
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses involves substantial uncertainties after weighing various factors. In
determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses, management considers many factors, including past
and anticipated charge-off experience, evaluations of underlying collateral, prevailing economic conditions, the nature
and volume of the loan portfolio and the levels of nonperforming, delinquent and other classified loans. Ultimate loan
losses may vary significantly from current estimates and future additions may be necessary. Management assesses the
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis and believes that it has been reasonable in its analysis of the allowance for
loan losses.

The provision for loan losses in 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled $7.2 million, $6.2 million and $4.8 million,
respectively. The increase of $1.0 million in 2002 and $1.4 million in 2001 was attributable to both growth in the loan
portfolio and an increase in non-performing loans. The allowance for loan losses totaled $34.4 million at December 31,
2002 and represented 1.15% of total loans. This compared to $29.5 million and 1.15%, respectively, at December 31,
2001, and $25.1 million and 1.06%, respectively, at December 31, 2000. At December 31, 2002, the allowance for loan
losses as a percentage of non-performing loans was 244.1% compared to 220.1% at December 31, 2001 and 410.7% at
December 31, 2000. The Company experienced a modest increase in non-performing loans during 2002 from $13.4
million at December 31, 2001 to $14.1 million at December 31, 2002, or .47% of total loans. The increase in non-
performing loans was experienced in most of the loan categories and reflects the current economic slowdown. The
increase in non-performing loans during 2001 was primarily attributable to several commercial credits negatively
impacted by the economy. Management has committed additional personnel resources to the credit administration and
collection functions in the past several years to monitor its growing loan portfolio. With the continuing uncertainty in
the economy in 2003, the Company may experience an increase in its non-performing loans but believes that the
resources are in place to appropriately address potential problem loans as they arise.

Noninterest Income. Total noninterest income was $13.7 million, $16.3 million and $10.0 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Included in noninterest income in 2002 was a loss of $446,000
on the curtailment of the pension plan at Nantucket Bank as compared to a $1.5 million gain on the settlement of
Compass’s pension plan in 2001. Also included in 2001 results were gains of $1.4 million on sales of loans as compared
to $263,000 in 2002.

Total deposit and other banking fees increased $1.4 million, or 15.4%, during the year ended December 31, 2002 to
$10.3 million and increased $2.5 million, or 39.5%, during 2001 to $8.9 million. The increase during 2002 was
consistent with the increase in total average deposit balances. The increase experience in 2001 was due to the addition of
Nantucket Bank’s results for the entire year and the significant deposit growth experienced during the year.

Total loan servicing fees amounted to $409,000, $959,000 and $689,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in income during 2002 was the result of increased amortization on the
mortgage servicing rights as well as an impairment charge of $306,000 taken during the year. Amortization expense was
$595,000, $366,000 and $180,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase in
mortgage servicing income during 2001 was due to the higher level of loans serviced for investors.

Other loan fees totaled $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, as compared to $849,000 for

the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in 2001 reflected the increase of Nantucket Bank’s results as well as
increased late fee income.

25




The Company recognized net losses of $277,000 on the sale of investment securities during the year ended
December 31, 2002, as compared to net gains of $99,000 and $4,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.
The largest component of the loss recognized in 2002 was due to the recognition of various impairment adjustments
within the investment portfolio that were deemed to be other than temporary and totaled $894,000.

Other noninterest income totaled $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to $1.5 million in
each of the prior years. While the Company has increased fee income on its private banking and investment
administration business in each of the past two years, other miscellaneous income has declined.

Noninterest Expense. Noninterest expenses totaled $69.0 million, $65.4 million and $49.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Total noninterest expenses increased by $3.7 million, or 5.6%, during 2002
and $16.3 million, or 33.2%, in 2001. The majority of the increase in noninterest expenses in 2002 was due to increased
salary and benefit expense and data processing expenses, offset by a decline in amortization of goodwill and other
intangibles and professional services expense. During the year ended December 31, 2001, increases over the results for
2000 were experienced in each noninterest expense category and reflect the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results as well
as the costs of managing a larger and more geographically diverse financial institution.

Salaries and employee benefit expense totaled $36.9 million, $33.1 million and $26.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase of $3.8 million, or 11.6%, during 2002 was attributable
to salary increases that averaged 4.5%, additions to staff to support various risk management areas and retail banking for
branch expansion, as well as increased sales incentive commissions paid for achieving sales production targets, resulting
in higher deposits. In addition, medical insurance expenses and other employee benefits continued to increase during
2002. The increase of $6.6 million during 2001 was due to the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results as well as the costs
in managing a larger, more geographically diverse financial institution. The Company had increases in staffing as it
began its private banking division and continued to add new branches with their commensurate increases in staffing.
Other employee benefits expense also increased during 2001 as the Company moved away from its defined benefit plan
and contributed higher amounts into the 401(k) plan.

Occupancy and equipment expenses totaled $9.3 million, $8.7 million and $6.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase of $570,000, or 6.5%, during 2002 was attributable to
the costs of the branch expansion and its related maintenance costs. The increase of $2.1 million during 2001 was due to
the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results and higher costs associated with the new corporate offices for an entire year
along with new branch expansion during the year.

Data processing expenses totaled $7.8 million, $6.5 million and $5.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase of $1.4 million, or 21.0%, during 2002 was primarily due to core
processing activities which are volume-related such as item processing, loan and deposit account activity, ATM and
electronic bill payment processing and data line communication expenses. The increase of $1.5 million in 2001 was due
to the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results and increased volume-related services. The increases in 2002 and 2001 were
partially offset by a rate reduction given to the Company’s by its core data processing service provider. During 2002, the
Company made the decision to change their service provider for core processing functions and anticipates the conversion
to occur during the second quarter of 2003. As a result of this conversion, the Company anticipated additional
expenditures for capitalized software, licensing costs and computer equipment of approximately $1.7 million, with the
majority of the expenditures incurred during 2002.

Marketing expenses totaled $2.9 million, $3.1 million and $2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease of $198,000, or 6.4%, during 2002 was primarily due to a reduction in
production costs for television commercials, offset by increases in discretionary promotions, print advertising, direct
marketing and service fees to outside agencies. The increase of $454,000 in 2001 was due to the addition of Nantucket
Bank’s results and higher production and media costs for television commercials.

Professional services expenses totaled $2.4 million, $3.0 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease of $536,000, or 18.0%, during 2002 was attributable to certain non-
recurring costs not being incurred. The costs incurred in 2001 associated with starting the Company’s private banking
division, various tax strategies and other consulting services related to the analysis of different business expansion
opportunities did not recur during 2002. The Company did however, experience increased costs in 2002 for its
outsourced internal audit function and external audit fees. The increase of $1.2 million in 2001 had to do with the
various initiatives mentioned above as well as the addition of Nantucket Bank’s results.
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Amortization of goodwill and intangibles expenses totaled $806,000, $3.0 million and $590,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decline of $2.2 million during 2002 is attributable to the
Company adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” even
though amortization related to the core deposit intangibles increased during 2002. The increase of $2.4 million in 2001
was primarily due to the amortization of the goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Home Port Bancorp, Inc. on
December 31, 2000. For further information regarding goodwill amortization, refer to Notes 1 and 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Other noninterest expense totaled $8.9 million, $8.1 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase of $785,000, or 9.7%, during 2002 was attributable to volume-related
items such as printing, postage, supplies, telephone costs and money transportation costs. In addition, costs related to
running a larger, more geographically diverse institution such as seminars, meetings, meals and travel have increased
during 2002. Lastly, the level of corporate donations made during 2002 increased as the Company meets the increased
needs of the communities it serves. The increase of $1.7 million in 2001 was due to the addition of Nantucket Bank’s
results and increased volume-related expenses as well as deposit insurance premiums due to the increased deposit base.

Minority Interest Expense. Due to the issuance of $55.0 million of the 8.50% trust preferred securities in June 2002,
the Company recognized minority interest expense of $2.9 million in 2002.

Income Taxes. The effective tax rate was 34.9%, 35.1% and 34.0%, respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000. In 2001, the Company completed an analysis addressing the impact of a recent Tax Court decision
on the deductibility of certain merger-related costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of Sandwich Bancorp, Inc.
in 1998. Based on this analysis, the provision for income taxes was reduced by $479,000. Exclusive of this non-
recurring item, the effective tax rate in 2001 was 36.1%. This increase from 2000 reflected the impact of nondeductible
goodwill amortization resulting from the Home Port acquisition.

During 2002, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue (“DOR”) issued notices of intent to assess additional state
excise taxes to various financial institutions in the Commonwealth that have established real estate investment trusts
(“REIT”) in their corporate structures. The DOR contends that dividends received by the Banks from their REIT
subsidiaries are fully taxable in Massachusetts. The Company believes that the Massachusetts statutes that provides for
the dividend received deduction equal to 95% of certain dividend distributions applies to distributions that have been
made by the REIT subsidiaries to the Banks. The Company has two REIT subsidiaries, Compass Preferred Capital
Corporation (under Compass) and N Realty Corporation (under Nantucket Bank). Both subsidiaries were formed in
1998.

The Governor of Massachusetts signed legislation on March 5, 2003 which expressly disallows deductions for
dividends received from a REIT, resulting in such dividends being subject to state taxation. In addition, this legislation
applies retroactively to tax years ending on or after December 31, 1999. The charge to operations incurred by Seacoast
in the first quarter of 2003 totals approximately $11.2 million and includes the state tax liability and interest, less the
federal tax benefit, for the tax years 1999 through 2002. The Company believes that the new legislation will be
challenged, especially the retroactive provisions, on constitutional and other grounds and intends to vigorously defend its
position. As a result of the new legislation, the Company will cease recording the tax benefits associated with the
dividend received deduction in 2003. The impact to the Company is expected to result in a reduction in consolidated net
income for 2003 by approximately $3.1 million, or $0.14 per diluted share.

Asset Quality

Delinquent Loans. Compass’s Managed Asset Group performs a monthly review of all delinquent loans with a
principal balance in excess of $150,000 and reviews the status of each account with the appropriate Lending Department
Manager and/or Account Officer. In addition, Compass’s Board of Directors reviews delinquency statistics, by loan
type, on a monthly basis. Nantucket Bank’s Loan Review Committee, which includes all of its loan officers and other
officers and directors, reviews the status of all delinquent borrowers on a monthly basis. Nantucket Bank’s Board of
Directors and/or Executive Committee thereof reviews all loans past due two or more payments each month.
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The actions taken with respect to delinquencies vary depending upon the nature of the delinquent loans and the
period of delinquency. The Banks’ asset management philosophy is predicated upon early detection and response to
delinquent and default situations. The Banks seek to make arrangements to cure the entire default over the shortest time
frame. Generally, the Banks require that a delinquency notice be mailed no later than the 10th day of delinquency. A
second notice is mailed on the 15th day of delinquency. A late charge is usually assessed on loans where the scheduled
payment is unpaid after 15 days. After mailing the delinquency notices, the Banks’ asset management staff calls the

borrower to ascertain the reasons for delinquency and the prospects for payment. On loans secured by one- to four-
family owner- occupied properties, the Banks attempt to work out a payment schedule with the borrower in order to
avoid foreclosure, If these efforts do not achieve a satisfactory arrangement, the loan is referred to legal counsel and
counsel initiates foreclosure proceedings. At any time prior to a sale of the property at foreclosure, the Banks will
terminate foreclosure proceedings if the borrower is able to work out a satisfactory payment plan. On loans secured by
commercial real estate properties, the Banks also seek to reach a satisfactory payment plan so as to avoid foreclosure.
Prior to foreclosure, the Banks will generally obtain an updated appraisal of the property.

The following table sets forth a summary of certain delinquency information as of the dates indicated:

At December 31, 2002 At December 31, 2001
60-89 days 90 days or more 60-89 days 90 days or more
Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal
of loans balance ofloans balance ofloans balance ofloans balance
(Dolliars in thousands)

Real estate loans:

Residential.........ccoceevennvcriinnaens 13 $2,109 25 $ 2,950 8 $ 546 58 $5,886
Commercial.......ccocoovinrininncnanas 4 495 13 3,430 1 19 18 2,608
Construction ......ccceevereevrvinnnins — — — — 1 653 — —
Home equity.......c.ooeveniiiininnanens 3 122 3 62 7 350 9 209
Commercial loans ........ccceeeeee. 3 62 25 4,558 5 68 28 3,318
Indirect auto loans..........c.covveeee. 263 2,681 118 1,194 257 2,450 119 1,001
Other consumer loans ................. _2 5 1 114 _20 173 _1 15
Total v 288 $5.474 195 $12.108 299 $4.259 233 13.037
Delinquent loans to total loans.... 0.18% 0.40% 0.17% 51%

Loan Review. The Banks use an internal rating system to monitor and evaluate the credit risk inherent in certain
loan portfolios and to identify potential problem loans. At the time of loan approval, all commercial, commercial real
estate and commercial construction loans are assigned a rating based on all of the factors considered in originating the loan.
The initial loan rating is recommended by the loan officer who originated the loan and approved by the individuals or
commiittee responsible for approving the initial loan request.

Loan quality ratings are utilized as major criteria in the compilation of the Asset Watch List. All loans with loan
ratings of 7 (Special Mention), § (Substandard) or 9 (Doubtful) are included in a monthly Asset Watch List. Watch List
ratings are an integral part of the evaluation of the adequacy of the loan loss reserve. Loan officers are expected to submit
appropriate rating changes when facts come to their attention that warrants an upgrade or downgrade in a loan rating. In
addition, loan ratings are generally reviewed on an annual basis.

Loans that are rated Substandard or Doubtful coincide with the classifications used by federal regulators in their
examination of financial institutions. Generally, a loan is considered Substandard if it is inadequately protected by the
current net worth and paying capacity of the borrowers and/or the collateral pledged. Substandard loans include those
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Banks will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans
classified as Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified Substandard with the added characteristic that
the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, highly questionable
and improbable. Loans classified as Loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance
as assets without establishment of a specific loss reserve and/or charge-off is not warranted. Loans which do not currently
expose the Banks to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses
are designated Special Mention.
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Compass also utilizes an independent third party to conduct periodic (generally semi-annual) credit analysis of its
commercial and commercial real estate loan portfolios and to analyze trends in loan delinquency and non-performing
loans. The level of Classified Loans as determined by Compass is reconciled to the level of Classified Loans as
determined by the independent loan review.

On a quarterly basis (monthly at Nantucket Bank), a management group at each bank comprised of senior officers
reviews the status and classification of each loan assigned a rating of Substandard, Doubtful or Loss. Loans, or portions of
loans, classified Loss are charged off against the allowance for loan losses. These groups also assess the overall adequacy
of the allowance for loan losses at each bank, including the general valuation allowance established to recognize the
inherent risk associated with each specific category of lending.

In January 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors formed a Risk Management Committee at which time the
position of Senior Credit Officer at Compass was created. The Senior Credit Officer is responsible for all administrative
matters related to the credit function at Compass and provides management and the Board of Directors with such
information as loan concentrations, risk rating migration, compliance and tracking of exceptions.

The classification of loans and the amount of the valuation allowances set aside for estimated losses is subject to
review by the FDIC and the Commissioner of Banks in Massachusetts. Based on their reviews, these agencies can order
the establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances. The FDIC, in conjunction with the other federal
banking agencies, has adopted an interagency policy statement on allowances for loan and lease losses. The policy
statement provides guidance for banks on both the responsibilities of management for the assessment and establishment of
adequate allowances and guidance for banking agency examiners to use in determining the adequacy of a bank’s valuation
methodology. Generally, the policy statement recommends that banks have effective systems and controls to identify,
monitor and address asset quality problems; that management analyze all significant factors that affect the collectibility of
loans in a reasonable manner; and that management establish acceptable valuation processes that meet the objectives set
forth in the policy statement. While the Banks believe that they have established adequate specific and general allowances
for losses on loans, actual losses are dependent upon future events and, as such, further additions to the allowance for loan
losses may become necessary. See “— Allowance for Loan Losses.”

Potential Problem Loans. At December 31, 2002, loans designated as substandard or lower in the classification
process described above totaled $16.4 million. Of these classified loans, $9.0 million were included as nonperforming
loans at December 31, 2002. The remaining $7.5 million in substandard loans were commercial real estate and commercial
loans that could become potential problem loans. These potential problem loans have evidence of one or more weaknesses
or potential weaknesses and, depending on the regional economy and other factors, may become nonperforming assets in
future periods.
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Risk Elements
The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing assets:

At December 31, At October 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans (1):
Real estate loans:

Residential ..o $ 3,654 $ 5875 $3237 $2,591 $3,685
COomMErCial .ooveeicerrerericrccniieerc e, 3,978 3,363 2312 2,613 2,330
CONSIIUCHON. v i — — 47 56 42
Home equity..... . 77 — — — 42
Commercial loans........ . 5,028 4,170 511 474 415
Indirect auto loans (4) ..... . 1,194 —_ —_ — —
Other consumer 10ans (4) .........oceeevveeerivirvienriieereiereecannns 142 — — — —
Total non-accrual 10ans ........coccevieiiieieie e 14,073 13,408 6,107 5,734 6,514
Restructured 10ans (2) v e —_ — — — —
Other real estate owned and repossessed autos ................... 1,350 1,075 86 552 1.299
Total NON-performing ASSELS ........v..vvrceerererrerrrienseranmseerseces $15.423 $14.483 $6.193 $6.286 $7.813
Loans 90 days overdue and still accruing (4) ......cccovvennee. $  — $ 1,320 $1.446 $1.776 3§ 668
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans........... 1.15% 1.15% 1.06 % 0.96 % 1.14 %
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total....................
non-performing 10ans (3) ..o 244.11 % 220.11 % 410.69 % 293.48% 232.07 %
Non-performing loans as a percent of total loans................. 0.47 % 0.52% 026 % 0.33% 0.49 %
Non-performing assets as a percent of total assets .............. 042 % 043 % 021 % 0.30 % 043 %

(1) Non-accrual loans include loans 90 days or more past due and other loans which have been identified as presenting
uncertainty with respect to the collectibility of interest or principal.

(2) Restructured loans represent performing loans for which concessions have been granted due to borrower’s financial
condition.

(3) Non-performing loans are comprised of non-accrual loans and restructured loans.

(4) In previous years, indirect auto loans were not placed on non-accrual status due to the expedited manner in which these
loans were resolved and the immaterial balance of individual loans. Commencing in 2002, the Banks adopted a new policy
whereby all consumer and indirect auto loans are charged off when they become 120 days past due.

Loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will not be able to collect principal,
interest and fees according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Total impaired loans at December 31,
2002 and 2001 were $9.5 million and $8.1 million, respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for loan losses based on management’s on-going
evaluation of the risks inherent in the loan portfolio. Factors considered in the evaluation process include growth of the
loan portfolio, the risk characteristics of the types of loans in the portfolio, geographic and large borrower concentrations,
current regional economic and real estate market conditions that could affect the ability of borrowers to pay, the value of
underlying collateral and trends in loan delinquencies and charge-offs. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an
amount management considers adequate to cover estimated losses in the loan portfolio which are deemed probable and
estimable based on information currently known to management. See * — Asset Quality.”
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The following table sets forth activity in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated:

Years Ended
December 31, October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $29,513  $25,081 $16,828 $15,914 $14,742
Provision for loan losses.................... 7,247 6,175 4,775 2,000 1,736
Acquired reserves — — 4,557 _ —
Charge-offs:
Mortgage loans:
Residential ...........ccovvveeiicnnnen. — 2 36 — 229
Commercial ......cccoovvivriivieninennne — 22 — — 371
Home equity.....oooveererririrnnnnns — — — — 49
Construction .......coeeeevveeeveen, — — — — —
Commercial 1oans ............cocoeuenne. 419 687 158 379 213
Indirect auto loans.......cccceeevvvrinnen. 2,459 1,438 1,323 1,116 614
Other consumer loans................... 82 114 116 143 124
Total charge-offs............... 2,960 2,263 1.633 1.638 1.600
Recoveries:
Mortgage loans:
Residential......ccoooeviiinnn. i5 169 179 5 32
Commercial ......cccooveivveveeeennnnne, 31 4 59 6 41
Home equity ....coooevevrvvnvennenns — — — — 3
CONSIruCtion .....ccoeevereveivvvereeennns — — — — —
Commercial 10ans........c..cocveerveens 209 82 46 300 213
Indirect auto loans..........cccocooveee.. 198 216 235 185 © 113
Other consumer loans................... 101 49 35 56 114
Total recoveries................. 554 520 554 552 516
Net charge-offs ......cocceceveirriieiniennn, (2.406)  (1.743) (1,079 (1,086) (1,084)
Effect of difference in year-ends ........ — — — — (277)
Balance at end of period.......c..ccovnne. $34.354 29,513 $25,081 $16,828 $15,117
Ratio of net charge-offs
to average loans..........cccoviieicennn 0.08% 0.07% 0.06% 0.07% 0.09%
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The allowance for loan losses is available for offsetting credit losses in connection with any loan, but is internally

allocated among loan categories as part of the process for evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The
following table sets forth information concerning the allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Percent of Percent of Percent of
allowance Percent of allowance Percent of allowanee  Percent of
to total loans to to total loans to to totak loans to

Amount allowance total loans Amount allowance totallcans Amount allowance total loans
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans:

Residential ..................... $6475 18.8% 50.6% $ 6,158 20.9% 509% § 6,083 24.3% 51.3%
Commercial real estate .. 9,368 27.3 11.9 9,060 30.7 13.1 7,341 209.2 13.7
Construction .................. 994 2.9 3.7 1,067 3.6 4.2 912 3.6 4.6
Home equity ....c.ceeeevennn, 556 1.6 2.2 430 1.5 1.8 375 1.5 1.7
Commercial loans................. 4,848 14.1 4.3 4,162 14.1 4.5 2,627 10.5 4.3
Indirect auto loans ................ 7,168 209 25.8 5,345 18.1 233 4,713 18.8 22.1
Other consumer loans........... 650 1.9 1.5 854 2.9 2.2 825 3.3 2.3
Unallocated......c...cccovvvvrrnne, 4295 125 — 2,437 8.2 — 2,200 8.8 _ -
Total..oooveeeiiiieeceen, $34,354 100.0% 100.0% $29.513 100.0% 100.0% $25,08] 100.0% 100.0%
At December 31, At October 31,
1999 1998
Percent of pepcent Percent of
allowance of loans allowance  Percent of
to total  to total to total  loans to total
Amount allowance loans Amount allowance loans

(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans:

Residential ..........c......... $ 4,455 26.5% 51.3% $ 3,548 23.5% 47.7%
Commercial real estate .. 5,311 31.6 12.8 5,434 35.9 15.8
Construction .................. 547 33 4.1 818 54 4.8
Home equity ......ccccenenan 197 1.2 1.5 220 1.5 2.1
Commercial loans................. 1,933 11.5 38 1,767 11.7 3.8
Indirect auto loans ................ 3,855 22.9 24.2 2,837 18.8 23.2
Other consumer loans............ 530 3.0 2.3 493 32 2.6
Unallocated........ccoveevenerennnn — — — — — e

Total.....coeeeeiririiireeeee e, 16,828 100.0% 100.0% $15.117 100.0% 100.0%

Allocations of the allowance for loan losses are determined using both a formula-based approach applied to
groups of loans and an analysis of certain individual loans for impairment.

The formula-based approach evaluates groups of residential, home equity, indirect automobile and other consumer
loans to determine the allocation appropriate within each portfolio segment. Individual loans greater than $250,000
within the commercial real estate, construction and commercial loan portfolio segments are assigned internal risk ratings
to group them with other loans possessing similar credit risk characteristics. The level of allowance apportionable to
each group of risk-rated loans is then determined by management applying a loss factor that estimates the amount of
probable loss in each category. The assigned loss factor for each risk rating is a formula based assessment of historical
loss data, portfolio characteristics, economic trends, overall market conditions, past experience, and management’s
subjective analysis of considerations of probable loan loss based on these factors. Allocations for loan categories are
then determined by applying loss factors that represent management’s estimate of inherent losses in those categories to
the appropriate loan balance outstanding.
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The other method used to allocate the reserve for loan losses entails the assignment of reserve amounts to
individual loans on the basis of loan impairment. Certain loans are evaluated individually and are judged to be
impaired when management believes it is probable that the Company will not collect all of the contractual interest
and principal payments as scheduled in the loan agreement. Under this method loans are selected for evaluation
based on a change in internal risk rating, occurrence of delinquency, loan classification or non-accrual status. An
identifiable reserve amount is allocated to an individual loan when such loan has been deemed impaired and when
the amount of a probable loss is estimated on the basis of fair value of collateral, present value of anticipated future
cash flows or the loans observable fair market price. Loans with an identifiable allowance and the amount of such
allowance totaled $23.5 million and $4.6 million at December 31, 2002, respectively.

A portion of the allowance for loan loss is not allocated to any specific segment of the loan portfolio. This
unallocated reserve is maintained for two primary reasons; there exists an inherent subjectivity and imprecision to
the analytical processes employed and the prevailing business environment, as it is affected by changing economic
conditions and various external factors, which may impact the portfolio in ways currently unforeseen. Moreover,
management has identified certain risk factors, which could impact the degree of loss sustained within the portfolio.
These include: market risk factors, such as the effects of economic variability on the entire portfolio, and unique
portfolio risk factors that are inherent characteristics of the Company’s loan portfolio. Market risk factors may
consist of changes to general economic and business conditions that may impact the Company’s loan portfolio
customer base in terms of ability to repay and that may result in changes in value of underlying collateral. Unique
portfolio risk factors may include industry concentration or covariant industry concentrations, geographic
concentrations, or trends that may exacerbate losses resulting from economic events which the Company may not be
able to fully diversify out of its portfolio. Management, therefore, has established and maintains an unallocated
reserve for loan losses. The amount of this unallocated reserve was $4.3 million at December 31, 2002, compared to
$2.4 million at December 31, 2001. The increase in the unallocated reserve is primarily based upon concerns over
how the overall weakening of the regional economy may affect borrowers in the Company’s loan portfolio.

As of December 31, 2002, the aliowance for loan losses totaled $34.4 million as compared to $29.5 million at
December 31, 2001. Based on the processes described above, management believes that the level of the reserve for
loan losses at December 31, 2002 is adequate.

Investments

The primary objectives of the investment portfolio are to achieve a competitive rate of return over a reasonable
period of time and to provide liquidity. In view of the Banks’ lending capacity and generally higher rates of return
on loans, management prefers lending activities as its primary source of revenue with the securities portfolio serving
a secondary role. The investment portfolio, however, is expected to continue to represent a meaningful (not less than
10%) portion of total assets.

The current investment strategy has emphasized the purchase of U.S. Government and agency obligations and
corporate bonds generally maturing or callable within two to five years. The investment policy permits investments
in mortgage-backed investments, including CMO’s, which typically have longer weighted average lives.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $489.8 million, or 13.2% of total assets, in securities consisting
primarily of U.S. Government and agency obligations ($294.4 miilion), corporate bonds ($93.9 million), mortgage-
backed investments ($39.3 million), and marketable equity securities ($12.4 million). Also included in investments
is $44.2 million in restricted equity securities, $43.8 million of which is in the stock of the FHLB. To avail itself of
services offered by that organization, in particular the ability to borrow funds, the Banks are required to invest in the
stock of the FHLB in an amount determined on the basis of their residential mortgage loans and borrowings from the
FHLB. The stock is redeemable at par and earns dividends at the discretion of the FHLB.

The Company designates its securities as either held to maturity, available for sale or trading depending on
management’s intent at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2002, $426.8 million, or 87% of the portfolio,
was classified as available for sale, $18.7 million, or 4% of the portfolio, was classified as held to maturity and
$44.2 million, or 9% of the portfolio, was invested in restricted equity securities. As of December 31, 2002, the net
unrealized gain on securities classified as available for sale was $13.8 million, consisting of net unrealized gains of
$1.6 million on marketable equity securities and $12.2 million on debt securities.
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The Company’s investment policy requires that corporate bonds be rated investment grade or better at the time
of purchase. Due to deterioration in the credit quality of certain corporate bonds, there were 18 bonds with a book
value of $34.0 million and a market value of $34.8 million, rated below “A” in the portfolio as of December 31,
2002. Included in the above is one issue with a par value of $2.0 million and a market value of $1.9 million at
December 31, 2002, which was rated below investment grade. The issuer of such bond is neither in default as to the
payment of interest nor has it declared bankruptcy. An impairment of $300,000 was recognized in 2002 for this
bond.

During 2002, certain equity holdings significantly declined in value, primarily in the telecommunication and
auto industries. The Company has identified 14 holdings with a cost basis of $1.6 million, whose market value
decline was deemed to be other than temporary. Impairments in the amount of $594,000 were recognized for these
securities in 2002.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s investment securities at the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)

Securities available for sale:
Debt securities:

U.S. Government and agency obligations............ $280,442 $248,221 $123,352
Corporate bonds .......coovcveerenicrieiieircee e 93,930 89,137 44,737
State and municipal obligations.............c.ccccnninn. 1,675 1,584 950
Mortgage-backed investments ............occcveeeeenenn, 38,379 49.610 67.430
Total debt SECUTTLIES. ....vevrevirierrnirriree e, 414,426 388,552 236,469
Marketable equity SECUTIIES ..ovvviririeeecienre e 12,365 17,236 12,386
Total securities available for sale...................... $426,791 $405.788 $248.855
Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government and agency obligations............ $ 13,983 $ 14,975 $ 22,569
Corporate Donds ......cccccveveviveeevieieiceeiee e — 403 800
State and municipal obligations.........c.ccoveevvninncee » 3,846 3,854 4,036
Mortgage-backed investments ........c..c.cooveeereenene 892 1,319 2,323
Total securities held to maturity..........c..coceeen. $ 18721 20,551 $ 29,728
Restricted equity securities:
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston stock.......... $ 43,800 $ 40,394 $ 28,505
LG 11 315 U OO UU PO PRUUTORRPTPR 443 443 469
Total restricted equity Securities............ccceene. $ 44243 $ 40,837 $ 28974
Total investment SECUTILIES .....c.evvvvverveereereeeeeerrrnens $489.755 $467.176 $307,557
Percent of total assets......cccccovvereiiirrininenieeeseccenenns 13.2% 14.0% 10.6%
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The following table sets forth the book value, fully-taxable weighted average yield and contractual maturities
of investment securities as of December 31, 2002:

Securities available for sale:

Debt securities:

U.S. Government and
agency obligations .........ccccecovviveenenrnnn,
Corporate bonds .....c.coeecvveneceenniiinienens
State and municipal obligations ................
Mortgage-backed investments ..................
Total debt securities ........ccooviieiienns
Marketable equity securities .....................

Total securities available

for sale...

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government and
agency Obligations ........co.coveeiiierrinnns
State and municipal obligations ................
Mortgage-backed investments ..................
Total securities held to maturity........

Total investments available for sale
and held forsale.........cc..oooeeiiiiin,

Restricted equity securities:
Federal Home Loan

After one year After five years
One year or less through five years _ through ten years After ten years Total
Book Book Book Book Book
value Yield value Yield value Yield value Yield value Yield
(Dollars in thousands)
$47,297 3.65% $184411 359% $48,734 607% 3 — —% $280,442 4.02%
4,530 6.46 85,116 6.29 4,284 6.20 —_ - 93,930 6.29
—_ - 1,197 591 478 6.04 _ — 1,675 595
38 6.24 2.596 6.90 6.680 6.91 29.065 6.39 38.379  6.51
51,865 3.88 273,320 4.46 60,176 6.17 29,065 6.39 414,426 4.77
12,365 4.18
51,865 3.88 273.320 4.46 60.176 6.17 29.065 6.39 426.791 4.75
75 5.61 10,028 3.67 3,880 3.54 —_ - 13,983  3.64
703 7.67 2,902 6.59 241 7.01 — - 3,846  6.81
— - — 286 6.63 606 6.06 892 6.24
778 7.47 12,930 4.33 4,407 3.93 606 6.06 18,721 4.42
52.643 3.94 286.250 4.46 64,583 6.02 29.671 6.38 445512 4.74
43,800  3.50
443 4.00
44243 351
$52.643 3.94% $286.250 4.46% $ 64,583 6.02% $29.671 6.38% $489.775 4.62%
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Sources of Funds

General. The Banks use deposits, repayments and prepayments of loans, proceeds from sales of loans and
securities and proceeds from maturing securities, borrowings and cash flows generated by operations to fund its
lending, investing and general operations. Deposits have historically represented the Banks’ primary source of
funds. Since the Company’s initial public offering in November 1998 it has relied to a greater extent on borrowings
to fund the growth in the loan portfolio.

Deposits. The Banks offer a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and other terms. The
accounts include passbook savings accounts, NOW accounts (checking), demand deposit accounts, money market
deposit accounts, club accounts and certificates of deposit. The Banks also offer IRA, Roth/IRA, Education IRA,
Simple IRA and SEP accounts. The FDIC insures deposits up to certain limits (generally, $100,000 per depositor).
The DIF fully insures amounts in excess of such limits.

At December 31, 2002, deposits of $2.4 billion were comprised of $196.9 million of non-interest-bearing
checking accounts and $2.2 billion of interest-bearing deposit accounts, of which $1.0 billion were certificates of
deposit. Of the total of certificates of deposit at December 31, 2002, $702.5 million, or 69.3% were scheduled to
mature within one year. Based on the monitoring of historical trends, the current pricing strategy for deposits and
the general avoidance of brokered deposits, management believes that the Banks will retain a significant portion of
their certificate of deposit accounts upon maturity.

Deposit flows are influenced greatly by economic conditions, the general level of interest rates and the relative
attractiveness of competing deposit and investment alternatives. Nantucket Bank’s deposit flows are also affected
by the seasonal economy of its market. In the recent past, the strength of the stock market had adversely affected
deposit flows within the banking industry as some customers opted to place a greater portion of their funds in
instruments, such as mutual funds, not directly offered by the Banks (other than through Compass’s contractual
relationship with INVEST Financial Corporation (INVEST) and Nantucket Bank’s Investment Services Division),
rather than in deposit accounts which they perceived to have less attractive returns.

Compass has generally experienced steady deposit inflows in recent years, primarily influenced by regional
bank consolidations, competitive pricing and its strong community bank image. Compass’s strategy has been to
grow deposit levels through targeted promotions, branch expansion and renovation, and bank acquisition. Due to
the seasonal tourist-related economies on Cape Cod, Martha's Vineyard and Nantucket, the Banks’ deposits
generally peak during the summer months.

Compass maintains a “call center” with extended hours, staffed with individuals trained to answer telephone
inquiries about customer accounts and about Compass’s various products and services. Compass also utilizes a 24-
hour automated touch-tone telephone voice response system, which allows customers to obtain information about
their accounts, to make account transfers, to pay bills and to receive information about Compass’s products and
services. Compass offers several relationship-based checking account products, entitled Flagship Checking,
Compass 50 Checking and Preferred Checking which offer packages of select benefits. Services to commercial
customers also include a Sweep Account, Simple IRA accounts, a touch-tone telephone electronic tax filing service,
merchant credit card services, and web-based cash management products.

Compass uses direct mail and customer service personnel at each of its branches and at its main office to solicit
deposits and advertises its deposits through the print media, on billboards, through its website
(www.compassbank.com) and through radio and television. Compass also offers its on-line banking services,
including a bill payment service, over the Internet. Nantucket Bank also offers a 24-hour automated touch-tone
telephone voice response system, merchant credit card services and on-line banking, with a bill payment service,
over the Internet.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the distribution of the average balance of deposit

accounts and the weighted average interest rate on each ¢

ategory of deposits during the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average average Average average Average average
balance rate balance rate balance rate
(Dollars in thousands)

NOW accounts...coeverereiieieeernenns $ 278,536 0.36% $ 246,034 0.56% $ 166,776 0.73%
Savings accounts............coeeeeenee. 302,946 1.38 254,134 1.65 217,433 2.01
Money market deposit accounts .. 533,350 2.01 389,511 2.71 292,037 2.91
Demand deposit accounts ............ 220,264 — 184,979 — 131,108 —
Total non-certificate accounts 1,335,096 1.17 1,074,658 1.50 807,354 1.74
Certificate of deposit accounts..... 1,005,545 3.64 1,009,557 5.54 846.746 5.84

Total average deposits.............. $2,340,641 2.24% $2.084.215 3.46% $1,654,100 3.84%

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more outstanding as of December 31, 2002 are scheduled to mature as

follows (in thousands):

Three months or 1€SS........cccoveeveviieeeie e, $ 66,227
Over three to siX MONthS....coccvvevivivveiiiiiniineinn, 51,790
Over six to twelve MonthsS .vevvvecvveeeiieiiniecens 66,362
Over twelve months ........ocoovvvvevieiiveiiiiiinecns 101,285

$285,664

Borrowings. The Banks borrow funds from the FH
FHLB advances are collateralized by a blanket-type

LB to partially finance their loan and other funding needs.
pledge on the Banks’ FHLB stock, first mortgages on

residential property and securities issued, insured or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies, including

mortgage-backed securities. The maximum amount that
At December 31, 2002, the Banks have approximately

the FHLB will loan varies based on the FHLB’s policies.
$395.3 million in available borrowing capacity with the

FHLB that is contingent upon the purchase of additional FHLB stock.

Short-term borrowings include funds drawn under
under agreements to repurchase and funds held in connec

the Banks’ lines of credit with the FHLB, securities sold
tion with the U.S. Treasury’s tax and loan note program.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding borrowed funds during the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

Total short-term borrowings:
Average balance
Maximum month end amount
Balance at end of period
Weighted average interest rate during the period
Weighted average interest rate at end of period

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston advances:
Average balance
Maximum month end amount
Balance at end of period
Weighted average interest rate during the period
Weighted average interest rate at end of period

2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
$38,339 $32,099 $32,562
43,142 37,464 57,637
36,128 34,584 31,427
1.95 % 3.69% 4.68 %
1.19 % 2.48% 4.35%
$826,081 $714,248 $337,733
858,804 786,917 556,869
858,804 786,917 556,869
5.08 % 5.62% 6.26%
4.69 % 531% 6.05%

37




Trust Preferred Securities. During 2002, the Company, through a subsidiary trust (Seacoast Capital Trust 1)
issued 2,300,000 shares of 8.50% Trust Preferred Securities, $25.00 face value, due June 30, 2032 but callable at the
option of the Company on or after June 30, 2007. This issuance raised $57,500,000 in gross proceeds and net of
underwriting costs provided $55,041,000 in additional Tier 1 capital. The Trust Preferred Securities are presented in
the consolidated balance sheets of the Company entitled “Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Seacoast
Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures”. The Company records distributions payable on the Trust
Preferred Securities as minority interest expense in its consolidated statements of operations. The minority interest
expense was $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

The cost of issuance of the trust preferred securities totaled $2.5 million and is being netted against the
outstanding balance of the securities and amortized to minority interest over the life of the securities on a straight
line basis. Amortization totaled $41,000 in 2002.

The Company unconditionally guarantees all Capital Trust I obligations under the trust preferred securities.

In November of 2002, the FASB directed its staff to draft a statement to be issued in February 2003 to establish
standards for issuers’ classification of liabilities in the statement of financial position of financial instruments that
have characteristics of both liabilities and equity. If this statement is adopted, the Company may be required to
reclassify its Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures of the
Corporation to borrowings. Currently, the trust preferred securities, or junior subordinated debentures, are classified
as a separate line item between total liabilities and shareholders’ equity on the consolidated balance sheet. In
addition, the interest cost on the trust preferred securities, which is currently considered minority interest on the
consolidated statement of income, may become interest on borrowings. There will be no impact to the results of
operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments. The Company has entered into numerous contractual obligations
and commitments. The following tables summarize the Company’s contractual cash obligations and other
commitments at December 31, 2002.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments by Maturity (In thousamnds)

Payments Bue — By Period

Less than One to Four to After
Total One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years
FHLB advances.......cc.oeveveveivrinvenvenrreneenns $858,804  $230,323 $322,868 $ — $305,613
Mandatorily redeemable trust preferred..... 55,041 — — — 55,041
Lease obligations.......c.ccovvverrenvnnsseeeeeens 11,815 1,185 2,157 1,871 6,602
Other:
TTEL oo e 2,000 2,000 — — —
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase ..o 34,128 34,128 — — —
Total contractual cash obligations.............. $961.788  $267.636 $325.025 1.871 367.25
Amount of Commitment Expiring — By Period
Less than One to Four to After
Other commitments: Total One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years
Lines of credit....cocoeeeivveeiiciiiiiicii e $145,734  $ 75,742 $899 $4,233 $64,860
Other commitments .............oeeeeeeivieeeineeannns 226,324 226,324 — — —
Standby letter of credit.........coooeveevvennnnee 2.564 2,564 e — —
Total cOomMmItMEnts.......cc.ovvererieeceerenenienne $374,622  $304.630 $899 4,233 $64.860

As a result of the legislation signed by the Governor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on March 5, 2003,
the Company has calculated the potential cash payment for the additional state tax liability to be $17.2 million for
the tax years 1999 through 2002. A payment of approximately $4.3 million was made in the first quarter of 2003
and represents the amount attributable to the 2002 tax year. For further information, see Note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Guarantees. FASB interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” considers standby letters of credit, excluding
commercial letters of credit and other lines of credit, a guarantee of the Bank. The Bank enters into a standby letter
of credit to guarantee performance of a customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved is represented by the contractual amounts of
those instruments. Under the standby letters of credit, the Bank is required to make payments to the beneficiary of
the letters of credit upon request by the beneficiary so long as all performance criteria have been met. Most
guarantees extend up to one year. At December 31, 2002 the maximum potential exposure amount of future
payments is $2.6 million.

The collateral obtained is determined based upon management’s credit evaluation of the customer and may
include cash, accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, and equipment and income-producing real estate. The
recourse provisions of the agreements allow the Banks to collect the cash used to collateralize the agreement, if
another business asset is used as collateral and cash is not available, the Banks create a loan for the customer with
the same criteria as its other lending activities. The fair value of the guarantees totaled $14,000 at December 31,
2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s primary sources of funds are dividends from its bank subsidiaries. On a parent-only basis,
commitments and debt service requirements consisted primarily of junior subordinated debentures (including
accrued interest) issued to Seacoast Capital Trust I, in connection with the issuance of 8.50% cumulative trust
preferred securities due 2032. The Company could also access the capital markets to raise additional equity. For
further information, see "Financial Condition — Sources of Funds” and Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Banks’ liquidity, represented by cash and cash equivalents and debt securities is a product of their
operating, investing, and financing activities. The primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowings, principal and
interest payments on outstanding loans and mortgage-backed securities, maturities of investment securities and
funds provided from operations. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans and mortgage related
securities and maturing investment securities are relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and loan
prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates and, in the case of deposits, other instruments available
to the public such as mutual funds and annuities.

As voluntary members of the FHLB, Compass and Nantucket Bank are entitled to borrow an amount up to the
value of their qualified collateral that has not been pledged to others. Qualified collateral generally consists of
residential first mortgage loans, U.S. Government and agency securities and funds on deposit at the FHLB. At
December 31, 2002, the Banks have $395.3 million in unused borrowing capacity that is contingent upon the
purchase of additional FHLB stock. Use of this borrowing capacity may also be impacted by regulatory capital
requirements.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long term function of business management. The measure of a
bank’s liquidity is its ability to meet its cash commitments at all times with available cash or by conversion of other
assets to cash at a reasonable price. At December 31, 2002, the Banks maintained cash and due from banks, short-
term investments and debt securities maturing within one year of $173.1 million, or 4.67% of total assets. The
Banks invest excess funds, if any, in federal funds sold, which provide liquidity to meet lending and other cash
requirements.
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The Company’s and the Banks’ capital ratios at December 31, 2002, were as follows:

Seacoast Financial Compass Nantucket Bank
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) 14.33% 11.87% 14.12%
Tier 1 Capital ( to risk weighted assets) 13.05 10.61 12.86
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 8.93 7.31 9.64

These ratios placed the Company in excess of regulatory standards and the Banks in the “well capitalized”
category as set forth by the FDIC.

Since 1999, the Company has announced four separate stock repurchase programs, the most recent of which
was approved in September 2002, aggregating 4,680,496 shares. As of December 31, 2002, 4,005,312 shares had

been repurchased. Management anticipates repurchasing the remaining 675,184 shares during 2003.

Segment Information

The Company has identified its reportable operating business segment as community banking, based on how the
business is strategically managed by the CEO, who is the chief operating decision-maker. The Company’s
community banking segment consists of commercial banking, retail banking and investment management. The
community banking segment is managed as a single strategic unit which derives its revenues from a wide range of
banking services, including lending activities, acceptance of demand, savings and time deposits, investment
management and mortgage servicing income from investors. The Company does not have a single external
customer from whom it derives ten percent of more of its revenues, and operates its retail branches in the
southeastern area of Massachusetts. Its market area covers eastern Massachusetts, Cape Cod and the Islands as well
as the states of Rhode Island and New Hampshire. The non-reportable segments consist of the parent company and
the Seacoast Capital Trust 1 and are not material to the overall operating results and therefore are not broken out
separately.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets and does not apply to goodwill or intangible assets that are not being amortized and certain other long-lived
assets. This Statement supersedes SFAS No.121, “ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of’ and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30
“Reporting Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions” (“APB Opinion No. 307), for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously
defined in that Opinion). This Statement also amends Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to eliminate the exception to consolidation for a subsidiary for which control is likely to be
temporary. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002, which had no material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections, “SFAS No. 145, among other things, addresses
financial accounting and reporting of gains and losses from extinguishment of debt. SFAS No. 145 requires gains
and losses resulting from the extinguishments of debt to be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the
criteria in APB Opinion No. 30. This statement rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt,” SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements,”
and amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” SFAS No. 145 is effective for fiscal years beginning after May
15, 2002, with early application encouraged. The Company does not believe the adoption of this Statement will
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities. The statement supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002,
with early application encouraged. The Company does not believe the adoption of this Statement will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS Statement No. 123, to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Companies
are able to eliminate a “ramp-up” effect that the SFAS No. 123 transition rule creates in the year of adoption.
Companies can choose to elect a method that will provide for comparability amongst years reported. In addition,
this Statement amends the disclosure requirement of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual
and interim financial statements about the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The amendments to SFAS No. 123 are effective
for financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The Company is currently considering the
adoption of fair value based compensation of stock options, and if the Company does elect to adopt such accounting
the potential impact can be seen on Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which require the measurement of financial position
and operating results in terms of historical dollar amounts without considering changes in the relative purchasing
power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased cost of the
Company’s operations. Unlike industrial companies, nearly all of the Company’s assets and liabilities are monetary
in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on its performance than do the effects of general levels of
inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods
and services.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The chief market risk factor affecting the financial condition and operating results of the Company is interest
rate risk. This risk is managed by periodic evaluation of the interest rate risk inherent in certain balance sheet
accounts, determination of the level of risk considered appropriate given capital and liquidity requirements, business
strategy, performance objectives and operating environment and maintenance of such risks within guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. Through such management, the Company seeks to reduce the vulnerability of
net earnings to changes in interest rates. The Banks’ Asset/Liability Committees, comprised of senior management,
are responsible for managing interest rate risk and reviewing with their Boards of Directors on a quarterly basis their
activities and strategies, the effect of those strategies on operating resuits, the Banks’ interest rate risk positions and
the effect changes in interest rates would have on net interest income. The extent of movement of interest rates is an
uncertainty that could have a negative impact on earnings.

The principal strategies that the Company uses to manage interest rate risk include (i) emphasizing the
origination and retention of adjustable rate loans, origination of indirect auto loans (Compass only) which have
relatively short maturities and origination of loans with maturities at least partially matched with those of the
deposits and borrowings funding the loans, (ii) investing in debt securities with relatively short maturities and (iii)
classifying a significant portion of the investment portfolio as available for sale so as to provide sufficient flexibility
in liquidity management.

The Company and the Banks quantify their interest rate risk exposure using a sophisticated simulation model.
Simulation analysis is used to measure the exposure of net interest income to changes in interest rates over a
specified time horizon. Simulation analysis involves projecting future interest income and expense under various
rate scenarios. Internal guidelines on interest rate risk specify that for every 100 basis points immediate shift in
interest rates, estimated net interest income over the next twelve months should decline by no more than 5%.

In utilizing a 300 basis point increase in rates in its simulation model, the full impact of annual rate caps of 200
basis points common to most adjustable rate mortgage loan products is considered. The rate shocks used assume an
instantaneous and parallel change in interest rates and that no strategies are implemented in response to the change
in rates. Prepayment speeds for loans are based on published median dealer forecasts for each interest rate scenario.
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The following table reflects the estimated percentage exposure of the Company’s net interest income for the 12
months following the date indicated assuming an immediate shift in interest rates as set forth below:

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
300 basis points increase in rates (9.57%) (8.50%) (10.68%)
200 basis points decrease in rates n/m n/m ( 1.39%)
150 basis points decrease in rates (1) n/m (0.50%) n/m
100 basis points decrease in rates (1) 0.31% n/m n/m

- n/m - not meaningful

(1) Due to the low interest rate environment in effect at December 31, 2002 and 2001 (the average Federal Fund
overnight rates were trading below 2.00%.), the simulation model could only be rate shocked down 100 basis points
and 150 basis points, respectively.

The results above are dependent on material assumptions such as (i) changes in the composition and
prepayments speeds of mortgage assets and loans (ii) the shape of the U.S. government securities and interest rate
swap yield curve (iii) the level of U.S. prime interest rates and (iv) the level of rates paid on deposit accounts.
Asymmetrical rate movements could also have a material impact on simulation results.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Seacoast Financial Services Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Seacoast Financial Services Corp. and
subsidiaries, (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. The 2001 and 2000 financial statements of Seacoast Financial Services
Corp. were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors’ report, dated January 22, 2002,
was unqualified.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Seacoast Financial Services Corp. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002, and the results of
their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Standards (“SFAS”™) No. 142, “ Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

/s/ KPMG

Boston, Massachusetts

January 21, 2003, except as to Note 10,
which is as of March 6, 2003.

44




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
Seacoast Financial Services Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation
and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001
and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
January 22, 2002

This Report of Independent Public Accountants is a copy of a previously issued Arthur Andersen LLP
(“Andersen”) report and has not been reissued by Andersen. The inclusion of this previously issued Andersen
report is made pursuant to Section 2.02 (e) of regulation S-X. Note that this previously issued Andersen
report includes references to certain fiscal years which are not required to be presented in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2602,
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SEACOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash and dUE fTOM DANKS ......coviviviieireiereiririieserieasiere e ren ettt e srnsas b esr s easecanens
Federal funds SOLA........voiieeiieei e e
Short-term INVESTINENT......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiteeeiee e oiee et e reee e beessba e e et s saes e e srateseras s e sabenantbenarneeeees
Total cash and cash eqUIVEIENLS ........ccooiriiiiiniiin e
Investment securities (Note 3) —

Available-for-sale, at fair Value .......ocovviriiiieiiii
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value $19,448 and $20,900)..........cccoovevrnnne.
Restricted eqUItY SECULIHES ..c....ovievvviriiiiiii it e
Loans held-for-sale (INOE 1) ..coioiireiiiieier e s s e rerrreea
L0ANS (INOLE 4) .otiiiii et cieeie e iesiiebeees et sa e ettt sh et s e s e et s bt e et saeeas s s e nesr e beanr e ba s

Allowance for loan losses (NOte 5)...ovvrivireien i
NEELOIS 1ouvie ettt ettt et e it e e e e £ eaeces b e eate o meees e smeesab s sbs e s s b s e b e s s sbe s r e s eaa s oa b et e eban s
Accrued INterest TECeIVABIE ... ..c..ooviiiiii e
Banking premises and equipment, Nt (NOIE 6) ..oovovviiiuiiiieiniinin e
Other real estate owned and repossessed AULOS ....oivveeviiciiiiiiin e
Net deferred tax asset (NOE 10) c.ooiiiviiiiriiieiire ettt e
GoodWill (INOES 1 ANA 2)..uuiiiieieereerie ettt st e sas e erne b ssa e
Intangible assets (INOLES 1 and 2) et e
Other assets (INOE 14) .. iiiiiiiieieiiieie it intenie ettt sbe et a et e bent e rn e aseae e e
TOLAL ASSELS ... euveiveieiieteereesteeeeeaebeeseasreste s brreeabesbeessesaeebeeseen e sbean e s b aes e s b e an e b e e eae e en

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

DEPOSIES (INOLE T} 1.vin ettt ittt st bttt r et b s e bbb bbb es e
Short-term borrowings (NOte 8)......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiii s
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (INOte 9) .....cooviiiiiiininiiiiiciev i
Other DOTTOWINZS ..cc.eeiviiiiiirie i
MOrtgagors’ €SCIOW PAYIMIENLS ... .ouiuvviriimiiersirintareiestese e tesssasr sttt ms ettt e
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (Note 14) ..o

TORAL LADIIITIES «.vivieveareriereie ettt st et et b et bt et ea et en s

Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Seacoast Junior Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Debentures (INOE 11) c.viiiiiiiiriieeriie et ssicessss s sae s

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10, 12 and 16)

Stockholders’ equity (Notes 13, 15, and 19):
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 10,000,000 shares;

NONE ISSUEA ...eve vttt e e et b et et ae e ben
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 100,000,000 shares;

26,758,136 Shares 1SSUEA .....ccorvcrirriiireceiiicicreiicre st
Additional paid-in capital
REtaINEd CAIMINES ...eecviiviiiiiiiiiere ettt s ettt
Treasury stock, at cost, 3,385,562 shares in 2002 and 2,439,000 shares in

2007 ittt bRt s bt b bea s
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME...........coiiiiiiininiiiei e
Unearned compensation - ESOP and restricted Stock ..o
Shares held in eMPIOYEE tEUSE.......c.oovviciiiiiiiiin e e

Total StoCKNOIAErS’ EQUILY....ccveireriiieecierie et

Total liabilities and stockholders’ eQUILY ........cccovvieeiiiiiiiiie i

At December 31,
2002 2001
$ 109,223 $ 87,834
11,056 92,899
— 10,000
120,279 190,733
426,791 405,788
18,721 20,551
44,243 40,837
6,183 19,675
2,991,171 2,574,334
(34,354) (29,513)
2,956,817 2,544,821
16,055 15,872
53,945 51,294
1,350 1,075
9,645 9,546
33,903 33,903
1,564 2,370
11.549 11.002
$3.701.045 $3.347.467
$2,403,875 $2,192,357
36,128 34,584
858,804 786,917
1,772 1,840
4,489 4,761
21.448 21,284
3,326,516 3,041,743
55,041 —
268 268
154,361 153,216
216,632 189,743
(49,033) (28,185)
8,330 3,531
(10,766) (12,575)
(304) (274)
319.488 305,724
$3.701.045 $3,347.467

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEACQOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years ended December 31,

47

2002 20061 20060
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
INTETEST O JOAIIS wvvivvieiiiiiieieicreere et e iee v ere sttt es s sbanae s aate e s $ 191,062 $ 193,157 $ 148,349
Interest and dividends on investment securities (Note 9)......c.cecervieernnn 24,362 19,982 17,258
Interest on federal funds sold and short-term investments 1,660 3.250 832
Total interest and dividend INCOME ........ccovvevreeriiireereiieeii e 217,084 216,389 166,439
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest on deposits (Note 7) 52,514 72,017 63,561
Interest on borrowed funds............ 42,900 41.474 22,775
Total interest expense 95,414 113,491 86.336
NEt INTEIEST INCOME 1o.vvirerererieieirieireerereesteserctsstestsserereseserrenssereseeens 121,670 102,898 80,103
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES (NOte 5) .oiovviiieieeiiicre e s 7,247 6.175 4,775
Net interest income after provision
FOI 10AN LOSSES ...ouviviieierieieiir ettt e 114,423 96.723 75.328
NONINTEREST INCOME:
Deposit and other banking fees.........cccovvvviirivernncrnine e 10,326 8,946 6,413
Loan servicing fees, NEt ......cvoveeieriirciiriiie et e 409 959 689
Merchant card fee income, net 631 534 506
Other L0AN TEES ...vcviiieiiiccrece et err e s 1,522 1,453 849
Gain (loss) on sales of investment securities, net (Note 3) .....cocceevveenrnenne 277 99 4
Gain on sales of loans, net 263 1,352 30
Gain (loss) on pension plan curtailment and settlement (Note 14) ........... (446) 1,504 —
Other iNCOME (NOLE 6) c.eeuiriririiiiieieriirie ittt cae e ese e be e 1,287 1.496 1.496
Total NONINIETEST INCOME .ecvevvrieiiiirie v sre e raeia e 13,713 16,343 9.987
NONINTEREST EXPENSE:
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 14).........ccoecevirniiiiniincenen 36,921 33,079 26,469
Occupancy and equipment expenses (Notes 6 and 12)..... 9,285 8,715 6,576
Data processing expenses...... 7.828 6,468 5,003
Marketing eXpenses.........cccooeeeene 2,914 3,112 2,658
Professional Services XPenses.......coceevveereriereercreeeninneaianne 2,434 2,970 1,759
Amortization of goodwill and intangibles (Notes 1 and 2) ..... 806 2,959 590
Other operating eXPenSes ........ccc.errueerrrerenrerinereierecrarenceneenan 8,858 8,073 6,419
Merger-related expense recovery ..... — — (403)
Total NONINEETESt EXPEISE....veveerereicrir vt e 69,046 65.376 49.071
Minority interest expense (Note 11).......cccoviiiiinciiini e 2,851 —_ —
Income before provision for income taxes ..........oeccvvevenerenecennn 56,241 47,690 36,244
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 10)..ccccoiiiviiriieccee e 19,633 16,723 12,315
..................................................................................... $ 36,608 $ 30967 § 23920
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 1):
$ 1.60 $ 1.32 $ .01
$ 1.57 $ 1.31 $ 1.01
Weighted average common shares outstanding ...........c.cccooeeveirnceicincens 24,037,559 24,753,758 25,291,834
Weighted average unallocated ESOP shares
and unvested restricted SLOCK ..ovviivirivreiiiicie e (1,213,246) (1,374,071) (1,525.414)
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic... 22,824,313 23,379,687 23,766,420
Dilutive effect of common stock equivalents......coocoeiveiiininvciinns 542,032 333.770 22,417
Weighted average common and common stock
equivalent shares outstanding - diluted ........coovecerrieveirinnccennnnes 23 45 23.713.457 23,788,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEACOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHEH FLOWS
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOIMIE ...c.ovivriiiiiiietie ettt et eeat e se e e seeenres
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities—

DEPIECIAtION. ...ttt et et et e sr e seaebe e erene
Amortization and acCretion, NEL.........vvcvviiveeveireeetes e eeereeeee it a e ea e nes
Purchase accounting amortization, net
Stock-based COMPENSALION........c.ooviuieiieriirici et
Provision for 10an 10SSeS......coiiiriiiciiiic e
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities, net
Credit for other real estate 10SS€S.......cccuivivcriirririincer e
(Gain) loss on pension plan curtailment and settlement ..............c.cocoeeene
Net increase in deferred tax asset ...........

Originations of loans held-for-sale
Proceeds from sales of loans originated for sale............ccocecrviiniiiniiinnns

Gain on sales Of 10ans, NEL.......ccccoiivriviiire e
Gain on disposal of premises and equipment,

net of iIMPAITMENt TESEIVE .....cccovvivriiiiircireeceie e e
Net increase in accrued interest receivable.....

Net increase in Other SSeIS........coooiiiiiiiciiiii e
Net increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities ..........cococeoveveineces
Net cash provided by operating activities.........coovvieiinnicnniiines
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of securities classified as available-for-sale ............coovviinneee
Purchase of securities classified as held-to-maturity ........c...occovininieenen
Purchase of restricted equity SECUTItIES .. ..ccovereviireererermncrerrrcnrerneneienerene
Proceeds from sales, calls, paydowns and maturities of
securities classified as available-for-sale ...
Proceeds from paydowns, maturities and calls of securities
classified as held-to-maturity .........coocorimiciininiiece s
Acquisition of Home Port Bancorp, Inc., net of cash acquired ..................
Cash from branch acquisition ...
Purchase of premises and equUipmMent..........cocooveeriiiiniinerccrecccncn e
Proceeds from sale of restricted equity securities..........ccocovceienvcnirernnn
Purchase of 108nS ......coeceriicciieiecn e
Net INCrease N I0ANS ...ccueeiiiiieiieei et eie e
Recoveries of loans previously charged off........c.cooveiiinciiniiincs
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned ...,
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment ............ccceceiicrencenannn
Net cash used in investing aCHVILES ....cccvvveevirincciicerircerir e

49

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2060
$36,608 $30,967 $23,929
4,442 4,082 2,867
1,648 453 25
638 2,527 575
2,413 2,077 1,934
7,247 6,175 4,775
277 (99) 4)
(30) (47) (71)
446 (1,504) —
(3,264) (804) (63%)
(14,705) (50,680) (749)
28,460 69,824 1,535
(263) (1,352) (30)
(162) (366) (285)
(183) (945) (3,559)
(4,878) (2,374) (674)
61 4,526 1,043
58,755 62,460 30,673
(239,568) (265,957) (57.277)
(7,646) (5,416) (4,032)
(3,406) (11,959) (9,550)
224,425 112,977 71,751
9,329 14,585 1,000
— — (54,527)
— 22,752 —
(7.471) (4,920) (18,621)
— 96 —
(29,351) — (19,501)
(386,859) (236,946) (321,575)
554 520 554
370 471 621
502 750 208
(439.121) (373.047) (410,949)

Continued on next page



SEACOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(Im thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in NOW, money market deposit and
demand dePOSIt ACCOUMLS ...eivirreeriieiriee et cb e s ns et
Net increase in passbook and other savings aCCOUNTS .........cooceoveiriirinrncicccennene
Net increase (decrease} in certificates of dEpOSit .......cocovcererevciiecinnrciinecee e
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .........c...cccoiiiicci e
Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances.......c..co.ocecevvecccieneicannene.
Repurchase of common StOCK..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Cash divIdends .....cccooiviiiioiiiee e e e
Net proceeds issuance of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures.........
Exercise of Stock OPIONS. ....c..iiiiiiiiiiiii
Tax benefits of stock option and award transactions, Net.........cc.coveercrreerernrecernneaes
Net increase (decrease) in short-term and other borrowings..........ccccovvvcinicnnnne.
Net increase (decrease) in mortgagors’ esCrow PaymMents..........c.covevveereeeuereceunnes
Net cash provided by financing activities .......c.coceevviviinicininiiiecn.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..........o.occocvneieiinciiinninncinnne
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning Of Year..........cccoovceriririincioinrci e erencenene
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds ..o
Income taxes Paid.........ccooiiiiiiiiii s

MINOTity INTETESt EXPEMSE ...eveuiiiieiiiireciie ettt seeee ettt eseee e ae

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions:
Transfer from loans to loans held-for-sale ..........c.cccoivverciiiiiiince e
Transfers from loans to other real estate owned...........ccvevvevereivecreciener e,
Financed other real estate owned Sales.......ccoovvviieinviiinieicnneneneneeoeeneene

The Company purchased all of the capital stock of Home Port Bancorp,
Inc. for $68,150 (Note 2). In conjunction with this acquisition, the
fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:
Fair value of assets acquired .........cocevereniiniininescne e
Cash paid for capital stock and transaction COStS .........ccoccoveererrenreneerrneeeene
Liabilities assumed...........occoveieiiiiciinie e s

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

$ 144,817 $ 183,896 $ 46,554
45,365 39,597 2,481
21,396 (45,007) 193,877
248,000 380,446 525,150
(176,069) (150,443) (316,482)
(21,185) (10,492) (8,680)
(9,719) (8,089) (6,320)
55,041 — —
337 320 —

725 130 —
1,476 3,116 (9,414)
(272) 333 41
309912 393,807 427,207
(70,454) 83,220 46,931
190.733 107,513 60,582
$ 120,279 $ 190.733 $ 107.513
$96,097 $112,375 $ 85,833
25,643 20,991 13,204
2,851 — —
— 23,801 —

82 833 684

76 68 600

$ 380,081

(68.913)

$311.168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEACQOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNEFHCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Compass Bank for Savings (“Compass”), Nantucket Bank and
Lighthouse Securities Corporation (collectively referred to herein as “the Company™). Compass and Nantucket Bank
are collectively referred to herein as “the Banks”. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to regulation of, and periodic examination by, the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Federal Reserve Board, among other agencies. All deposits of the
Banks are insured by the FDIC or the Depositors Insurance Fund, an excess deposit insurer for Massachusetts-
chartered savings banks.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and general practice within the banking industry. In preparing the
financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheets and income
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that
are particularly susceptible to change relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, accounting for
acquisitions and review of goodwill and income taxes. The following is a description of the more significant
accounting policies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, amounts due from banks, federal
funds sold and other short-term investments having an original maturity of 90 days or less. Generally, federal funds
are sold for one-day periods.

Investment Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity and reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, both computed by a
method that approximates the effective yield method. Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally
for the purpose of selling them in the near term are classified as trading and reported at fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses included in earnings. Debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity or trading
are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from
earnings and reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income.

Restricted equity securities are reported at cost and consist principally of the Banks’ investments in the stock of
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston.

Unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary declines in value are charged to operations. When
securities are sold, the adjusted cost of the specific securities sold is used to compute gains or losses.

Loans, Deferred Costs and Fees

Loans are stated at the principal amounts outstanding, adjusted by partial charge-offs, unearned discount and net
deferred loan costs and fees. Unearned discount is recognized on the simple interest basis.

Deferred loan origination fees and certain deferred loan origination costs are amortized over the contractual life
of the related loan using the level-yield method. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had net deferred
loan costs of $16,872,000 and $13,566,000, respectively, including $19,654,000 and $15,311,000, respectively, paid
to auto dealers originating indirect auto loans. Amounts paid to auto dealers are partially rebatable in the event of
loan prepayment or default.
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SEACOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2602
(1) SUMMARY OF SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loans, Deferred Costs and Fees (Continued)

It is the practice of the Company to discontinue the accrual of interest on loans which are in excess of 30 days
past due or sooner if, in the judgment of management, the ultimate collectibility of principal or interest becomes
doubtful. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed
against interest on loans. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.
When there is doubt regarding the ultimate collectibility of principal, all cash receipts thereafter are applied to
reduce the recorded investment in the loan.

Loans are classified as impaired when it is probable that the Company will not be able to collect principal,
interest and fees according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Management considers the payment
history, net worth and earnings potential of a borrower, and the value and cash flow of the collateral as factors to
determine whether a loan will be paid in accordance with its contractual terms. The amount judged to be impaired is
the difference between the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s original
contractual effective interest rate and the net carrying amount of the loan. If foreclosure on a collateralized loan is
probable, impairment is measured based on the fair value of the collateral compared to the net carrying amount. If
appropriate, a valuation reserve is established to recognize the difference between the recorded investment and the
present value. Impaired loans are charged off when management believes that the collectibility of the loan is
remote. The Banks consider nonaccrual loans, except for smaller balance, homogeneous residential mortgage loans,
and troubled debt restructurings to be impaired.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level determined to be adequate by management to absorb
future charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible. This allowance is increased by provisions charged to operations
and by recoveries on loans previously charged off, and reduced by charge-offs on loans.

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses necessarily involves a high degree of judgment.
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
systematic periodic review of the collectability of the loans. Primary considerations in this evaluation are prior loan
loss experience, the character and size of the loan portfolio, business and economic conditions and management’s
estimation of future losses. The Company evaluates specific loan status reports on certain commercial and
commercial real estate loans rated “substandard” or worse in excess of a specified dollar amount. Estimated
allowances for each of these credits are determined by reviewing current collateral value, financial information, cash
flow, payment history and trends and other relevant facts surrounding the particular credit. The remaining
commercial and commercial real estate loans are provided for as part of pools of similar loans based on a
combination of historical loss experience and qualitative adjustments. Smaller balance, homogeneous loans,
including residential real estate loans and consumer loans, are evaluated as a group by applying estimated charge-off
and recovery percentages, based on historical experience and certain qualitative factors, to the current outstanding
balance in each loan category. Based on these analyses, the resulting allowance is deemed adequate to absorb all
probable credit losses in the portfolio.

Although management uses available information to establish the appropriate level of the allowance for loan
losses, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on estimates that are susceptible to change as a
result of changes in economic conditions and other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral
part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may
require the Company to recognize adjustments to the allowance based on their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continzed)
Loan Sales and Servicing Rights

Loans held for sale are valued at the lower of the recorded loan balance or market value. The Company
periodically enters into forward commitments to sell loans for the purpose of reducing market risk associated with
the origination of loans for sale. Market value is estimated based on outstanding investor commitments or, in the
absence of such commitments, current investor yield requirements.

The Company recognizes, as a separate asset, the right to service mortgage loans for others. The amount
capitalized is based on an allocation of the cost of the loan based on the total relative fair value of the loan and the
servicing right. The amortization of servicing rights is recognized in proportion to estimated net servicing revenue
and is recorded as a charge against loan servicing fee income. The value of servicing rights is periodically assessed
for impairment based on the fair value of those rights. In measuring for impairment, servicing assets are stratified
by interest rate, which is the predominant risk characteristic affecting the prepayment of loans.

Included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are mortgage servicing rights of
$580,000 and $1,329,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company recognized $152,000 and
$525,000 of mortgage servicing rights during December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Amortization expense
was $595,000, $366,000 and $180,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
addition, based on the Company’s assessment, an impairment charge of $306,000 was taken for the year ending
December 31, 2002.

Banking Premises and Equipment

Land is stated at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization, computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or
the terms of the leases, if shorter. Maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred; major expenditures for
betterments are capitalized and depreciated.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company review long-lived assets, including premises and equipment, for impairment whenever events or
changes in business circumstances indicate that the remaining useful life may warrant revision or that the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset may not be fully recoverable. The Company performs undiscounted cash flow
analyses to determine if impairment exists. If impairment is determined to exist, any related impairment loss is
calculated based on fair value. Impairment losses on assets to be disposed of, if any, are based on the estimated
proceeds to be received, less costs of disposal.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned (OREOQ) is composed of properties acquired through foreclosure or receipt of a deed in
lieu of foreclosure. Foreclosed assets are presumed to be held-for-sale and are recorded at the lower of the carrying
value of the related loan or the fair value of property, less estimated costs to sell. The excess, if any, of the loan
balance over the fair value of the property at the time of transfer to OREO is charged to the allowance for loan
losses. Subsequent write-downs of the carrying value of the foreclosed assets are charged to expense. Costs relating
to the development and improvement of foreclosed assets are capitalized while other costs are charged to expense.
Such amounts have been insignificant during the periods covered by this report.
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(1) SUMMARY QOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
The valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets is recognized when in management’s judgment, it is more
likely than not, all, or a portion of, such deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”) which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS 142 as of January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 addresses the method of
identifying and measuring goodwill and other intangible assets having indefinite lives acquired in a business
combination, eliminates further amortization of goodwill, and requires periodic impairment evaluations of goodwill
using a fair value methodology prescribed in the statement. As a result of adopting SFAS 142, the Company no
longer amortizes the goodwill balance of $33.9 million, which reduced goodwill amortization and increased net
income by $2.4 million in 2002. An initial impairment test was performed during 2002 and another impairment test
was completed at year-end. The evaluations were made using discounted future cash flows, and in each analysis, it
was determined that an impairment charge was not required. Impairment testing is required at least annually or
more frequently as a result of an event or change in circumstances (e.g. recurring operating losses by the acquired
entity) that would indicate an impairment adjustment may be necessary.

The following table sets forth the reconcilement of net income and earning per share excluding goodwill
amortization for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000.

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
( En thousands, except per share)
Reported Net INCOME ....oociuiieeiiiieienicc et $36,608 $30,967 $23,929
Add back:

Goodwill aMOTtization ........cceceeeccrnrecirnivenioreirnineceneecnas — 2424 —
Adjusted NELINCOME ...ec.cvvieeirireririceiie et rcs $36.608 33,391 $23.929
Basic earnings per share:

Reported NEt INCOME ...c.cccviveereiniinieie et $ 1.60 $1.32 $ 1.01
Add back:

Goodwill aMOItiZation .......ccceovevveeeriienriiese e e — 0.11 —
Adjusted Nt INCOME ...oovveviereeriniec e e se e 1.60 $ 143 $ 1.01
Diluted earnings per share:

Reported Nt INCOMIE ...vvvvivieer et ceerrr e beecare s $ 1.57 $ 1.31 $ 101
Add back:

Goodwill amMOrtiZation ......cocceveeieevireiiir s e — 0.10 —

Adjusted NEt INCOME ...ovvviierirreciiiiaeieneeresace vt eiesre e reenaan $ 1.57 141 $ 101
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill and Intangible Assets (Continued)

The changes in the carrying values of goodwill and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Other Intangible Assets
Core Deposit Other Total
Goodwill Intangibles Intangibles Intangibles
(In thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2000........ccccccevvvereiinecninnnn, $37.,467 $1,235 $ 98 $38,800
Recorded during the period ..........ccccoovivcirinicnnnnn, — 1,522 50 1,572
Adjustment of purchase accounting estimates ........ (1,140) — — (1,140)
AMOItiZAtion EXPENSE ....cveverveirrierernrereererereeeereeneens (2,424) (494) 41) (2,959)
Impairment recognized..........ccocoeeceevncrnirenienrenenn, — — i —
Balance, December 31, 2001 ......ccccccoevivivneiicnnnnnn, $33,903 $2,263 $107 $36,273
Recorded during the period ..., — — — -—
AMOTtiZAtion EXPENSE ..ccvvvveererierrenreiresteeereseenneeneens — (724) (82) (806)
Impairment recognized........c.oovevevnvivcirecieecnreennn, — — - —
Balance, December 31, 2002......cooccvvviiviineiiiininnne $33,903 1,53 $25 $35.467
Estimated amortization expense:
2003 e, 608 18 625
2004 .o 314 7 321
2005 oot e, 208 — 208
2000 .ot 166 — 166
2007 i, 115 — 115
The components of other intangibles assets follow:
December 31, 2002
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
(In thousands)
Core deposit intangibles .........cceceeennen, $4,424 $2.,885 $1,539
Other intangibles...........cccovvvcnirncnniennn, 220 195 25
Total other intangible assets.......... $4.644 $3,088 $1.564

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 in accounting for stocks options which measures compensation cost
for stock-based compensation plans as the difference between the exercise price of options granted and the fair
market value of the Company’s stock at the grant date. This generally does not result in any compensation charges
to earnings. Below, the Company discloses proforma net income and earnings per share as if compensation was
measured at the date of grant based on the fair value of the award and recognized over the service period. This is
required by SFAS No. 123 for all companies that elect to continue using APB Opinion No. 25 for stock option
grants. As further noted in “Recent Accounting Pronouncements”, the Company is considering adopting SFAS No.
148, which is an amendment to SFAS No. 123 and allows for alternative methods of adopting fair value based
compensation on stock option grants.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

Had the Company applied SFAS No. 123 in accounting for its stock option grants, net income and EPS (basic
and diluted) would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2601 2000
(In thousands, except for per share)

Net income:
As reported $36,608 $30,967 $23,929
Pro forma 30,506 23,393
Basic EPS:
As reported . 1.32 1.01
Pro forma . 1.30 0.98
Diluted EPS:
As reported 1.31 1.01

Pro forma 1.29 0.98

The fair value of stock options is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following valuation assumptions:

2602 2001 2666
Expected volatility .....ccccooevvvreinniinricececnne 35% 35% 39%
Risk-free interest rate.........ccccoeirvrvnrerieerreeann. 4.2% 5.0% 6.3%
Expected annual forfeitures.........cccovevvvivennicnnn 5% 5% 5%
Expected dividend yield ... 25% 2.5% 2.5%
Expected life of options.......cocccccvveieniecccinnnnnens 7 years 7 years 7 years

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000, based on the above
assumptions, was $6.64, $5.29 and $3.34 per share, respectively.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. Unallocated ESOP shares and unvested restricted stock awards are not considered outstanding in
computing basic earnings per share. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if contracts to issue
common stock were exercised and has been computed after giving consideration to the dilutive effect of stock
options, stock awards and shares held in an employee trust.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents the change in equity of the Company during a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-stockholder sources. It includes all changes in equity during a period
except those resulting from investments by and distributions to stockholders. The following table shows the

components of other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31:

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
INEEINCOME ... eeecteicie ettt eb ettt e et et ave vt erreeeeeeres $36,608 $30,967 $23,929

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during the period,
net of tax of $3,152, $1,696 and $1,993 for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively .....cceviviiciinncecce 4,619 2,804 3,224
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses included in
net income, net of taxes of $(97), $35, and $1 for

2002, 2001 and 2000, reSpectively .......ccovverreeerracennene. 180 (64) 3

Other comprehensive inCOmMe, NeL......ccoorrrvrviiecvererrcirricarisinn 4,799 2.740 3.221

Comprehensive INCOME ......ovvvivervecceeririnenccnrerreeens 41.4 3,707 $27.150
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the 2002
presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on previously reported net income.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets and does not apply to goodwill or intangible assets that are not being amortized and certain other long-lived
assets. This Statement supersedes SFAS No.121, *“ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of” and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30
“Reporting Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions” (“APB Opinion No. 30”), for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously
defined in that Opinion). This Statement also amends Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to eliminate the exception to consolidation for a subsidiary for which control is likely to be
temporary. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002, which had no material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. SFAS No. 145, among other things, addresses
financial accounting and reporting of gains and losses from extinguishment of debt. SFAS No. 145 requires gains
and losses resulting from the extinguishments of debt to be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the
criteria in APB Opinion No. 30. This statement rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt,” SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements,”
and amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” SFAS No. 145 is effective for fiscal years beginning after May
15, 2002, with early application encouraged. The Company does not believe the adoption of this Statement will
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities. The statement supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002,
with early application encouraged. The Company does not believe the adoption of this Statement will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS Statement No. 123, to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Companies
are able to eliminate a “ramp-up” effect that the SFAS No. 123 transition rule creates in the year of adoption.
Companies can choose to elect a method that will provide for comparability amongst years reported. In addition,
this Statement amends the disclosure requirement of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual
and interim financial statements about the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The amendments to SFAS No. 123 are effective
for financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The Company is currently considering the
adoption of fair value based compensation of stock options, and if the Company does elect to adopt such accounting,
the potential impact can be seen under the discussion of “Stock-Based Compensation” above.

(2) ACQUISITIONS

On December 19, 2002, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Bay State Bancorp Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiary Bay State Federal Savings Bank, a federally-chartered savings and loan company with
six banking offices in the greater Boston area. This agreement is subject to a number of conditions, including
regulatory approval. As required by SFAS 142, this transaction will be accounted for as a purchase and goodwill of
approximately $78 million is expected to be recognized. As of December 31, 2002, Bay State had total assets of
$596.9 million, primarily in residential and commercial real estate loans and deposits of $368.2 million. The
transaction is anticipated to be completed in the second quarter of 2003.

On December 15, 2001, Compass completed its assumption of $24.0 million in deposit liabilities of Chart
Bank’s Hyannis, Massachusetts branch office for cash and an insignificant balance of deposit-related loans. Charter
Bank closed this branch office and customer accounts were transferred to an existing Compass branch office in
Hyannis. The resulting core deposit intangible of $1.5 million is being amortized over 10 years on an accelerated
basis.

On December 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of Home Port for $68.2 million in cash,
exclusive of one-time transaction costs. Home Port was the holding company for Nantucket Bank, a three branch
savings bank located on Nantucket Island, Massachusetts with total assets of approximately $341 million at the date
of acquisition. The assets acquired included loans, investments, bank premises, equipment and other assets. This
transaction was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Based on an allocation of the purchase
price, goodwill from this acquisition totaled $36.3 million.
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(3) INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

December 31, 2062
Gross Gross
Ameortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obligations ...........c......... $273,430 $ 7,012 $ — $280,442
Corporate bonds........coocoveciiieiieeiieieerienec e, 90,000 4,194 (264) 93,930
State and municipal obligations..........cccvvececvnnrernnenan, 1,582 93 — 1,675
Mortgage-backed investments ..........ooccvevceicccncncnnnnnn, 37,232 1,228 (81) 38,379
Total debt seCurities . ....covvvveeeviiiieiirinrer e, 402,244 12,527 (345) 414,426
Marketable equity securities and mutual funds ............. 10.755 1,965 (355) 12.365
Total securities available-for-sale..............cccoeein. 412 $14.492 $(700) $426,791
December 31, 2001
(In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obligations ............ccee.u.., $245,479 $3,174 $ (432) $248,221
Corporate bonds...........cocovciiiiiiniirreiecrrece e, 88,712 1,798 (1,373) 89,137
State and municipal obligations........c..oveceeeveeroevreecennnn, 1,583 10 9 1,584
Mortgage-backed investments...........ccoccvrevvacearninnccnan, 48,905 847 (142) 49,610
Total debt SECUrTHES........cveivieriieceieceeeieee e, 384,679 5,829 (1,956) 388,552
Marketable equity securities and mutual funds .............. 15,160 2,852 (7176) 17,236
Total securities available-for-sale.......................... 399,83 $8,681 $(2,732) $405,788

The amortized cost and fair value of securities held-to-maturity at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

December 31, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obligations ............. $13,983 $475 § — $14,458
State and municipal obligations..........c.cecevveereernnnn 3,846 205 — 4,051
Mortgage-backed investments.........cecoeeceroeererenan. 892 47 = 939
Total securities held-to-maturity........c..ccooeeeen. 18,721 $727 _—— $19,448
December 31, 2001
(In thousands)
U.S. Government and agency obligations ............. $14,975 $303 $(74) $15,206
Corporate bonds ........c.ceevcrvrireriine s 403 — 3) 400
State and municipal obligations........ccccecvcnicneine. 3,854 101 —_ 3,955
Mortgage-backed investments .............ccccoeecrnnn. 1.319 21 _M 1,339
Total securities held-to-maturity.........c.cocveenne. $20,551 $427 $(78) $20,900
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(3) INVESTMENT SECURITEES (Continued)

Restricted equity securities are comprised primarily of stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston and are
carried at par value. See Note 9 for further information.

The maturity distribution of debt securities at December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity
Amortized Fair Amortized
Caost Value Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)

One year or 1ess..........ccocerrreececrnninnnns $ 51,049 $ 51,865 $ 778 $ 789
Over 1 yearto 5 years .....c.ccceevveerveennnn. 265,662 273,320 12,930 13,525
Over 5 years to 10 years ....c.ccccovennee 57,178 60,176 4,407 4,499
Over 10 years......coccocminecinnnncennennens 28,355 29,065 606 635
$402.244 $414,426 $18.721 $19,448

Mortgage-backed investments and collateralized mortgage obligations are shown at their contractual maturity
dates, but actual maturities may differ as borrowers have the right to prepay obligations without incurring
prepayment penalties.

Proceeds from sales of investment securities and related gains and losses for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000 (all classified as available-for-sale) were as follows:

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Proceeds from sales .....ooveevevieeeenieenan, $45,030 $41,647 $16,062
Gross ZaiNS.....ovevveeeerreveerervneeseeseaees 1,926 251 12
Gross JOSSES.uuciiivviriirereieieeeeseerere s 1,309 152 8

For the year ended December 31, 2002, other than temporary impairments of $894,000 were taken on
investments available for sale.

The carrying amounts of callable securities included in investments available for sale and held to maturity
totaled $139.3 million and $1.8 million in 2002 and $128.1 million and $3.2 million in 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, investment securities with an amortized cost of $48,200,000 were pledged to secure
public deposits under the Treasury, Tax and Loan program, deposits held by various municipalities and retail
repurchase agreements. In addition, investment securities carried at $242,600,000 were pledged under a blanket lien
to partially secure the advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (Note 9). Pledged investment securities are
maintained under the Company’s control.
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(4) LOANS

The Company’s lending activities are conducted principally in Southeastern Massachusetts, Cape Cod and the
islands of Nantucket and Martha’s Vineyard and, to a lesser extent, Eastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New
Hampshire. The Company originates single family and multifamily residential loans, commercial real estate loans,
commercial loans, indirect auto loans and a variety of consumer loans. In addition, the Company originates loans
for the construction of residential homes, multifamily properties, commercial real estate properties and land
development.

A significant portion of the loans originated by the Company are collateralized by real estate. The ability and
willingness of the single family residential and consumer borrowers to honor their repayment commitments are
generally dependent on the level of overall economic activity within the geographic areas and real estate values. The
ability and willingness of commercial real estate, commercial and construction loan borrowers to honor their
repayment commitments are generally dependent on the health of the real estate economic sector in the borrowers’
geographic areas, the borrowers’ financial condition and the economy in general.

A summary of the loan portfolio follows:
December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)

Real estate loans:

Residential (one-to-four family)....ccocooooviiroieieeiice e $1,513,388 $1,311,606
COMMETCIAL 1.ivviiiiiiiiiie e e e e et re e e enbeeeeens 356,610 337,277
CONSITUCTION. ... ceviiirt et eee ettt e a e en e eeaeenn 110,166 108,556
Home equity lines of credit ... 67,794 45,709
Total real estate 10anS .......ccvevvevveiiiinieniecrenie e e 2,047,958 1,803,148
CommErcial LOANS ......vviiirieecieieic ettt eee s eneas 127,822 115,562
Consumer loans:
INAIirect AULO LOANS ...vvvviieveciiciec ettt ere s 770,574 601,236
Less: unearned diSCOUNt.........cviviiiiieeiiriieoreecre e creeseeeree e eaene e 210 1,651
Indirect auto 10anS, NEL.......ceeviiiiiririie et ren s 770,364 599,585
OTNEE 1ottt r e creeae e et ere st sae s beern et ennas 45,027 56,039
Total consumer 10ans, NEL.............ccoeivvivvvrieeeeee e eve e eetee e 815,391 655.624
TOtAl JOANS vvvvviieecteeciie et ettt $2,991.171 $2.574,334

Loans serviced for others on a non-recourse basis at December 31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $248,983,000
and $363,123,000, respectively.

Nonaccrual loans amounted to $14,073,000 and $13,408,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
There are no commitments to extend additional credit on these loans.
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(4) LOANS (Continued)
The following table presents information about impaired loans:

December 31,
2602 2001 2000
(In thousands)

At year-end—
Impaired 10a0S .....ccooooviviiiriiicce e $9,494 $8,149 $2,182
Impaired loans with valuation allowance .........ccccoceeeeee. 8,336 6,040 1,600
Total valuation allowances (included in ..........cccovrveenene
allowance for 10an 10SSES)......c.covviivirveieevieeieie e eeeens 2,677 1,649 304
During the year—
Average balance of impaired 10ans ......c.c.cccccerrivcencnnne 9,153 5,759 2,248
Interest income recognized on impaired loans................. 277 290 131

Interest income of approximately $963,000 would have been recorded during 2002 on nonaccruing loans if
those loans had been on a current basis in accordance with their original terms. Interest income actually recognized
in 2002 on nonaccruing loans was approximately $479,000, with interest foregone on those loans of $484,000.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company grants loans to its executive officers, directors and related
parties on substantially the same terms as loans made to unrelated borrowers. Related party loan activity for the

years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, is as follows:

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Balance, beginning of year ..........cocevevvveveveranas $5,889 $4,125
NeWw 10ANS .1iiiiiiiieiii e 3,756 3,272
Payments ......ccoovvevireiciiiieneercrceeir et eeee e 2,714) (1.508)
Balance, end of year.......c..cooveeeciinininnrncrcnen. $6.931 $5.889

(5) ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2601 2000
(In thousands)
Balance, beginning of year ...........ccccovevecnenne $29,513 $25,081 $16,828
Provision for 10an 108S€S.......ccocvvvvvvirineeeeennnn, 7,247 6,175 4,775
Acquired reserves (NOt€ 2) ...cocoeeenvvierrivivnennae —_ — 4,557
Charge-offs ...c.oeceiiicerree e (2,960) (2,263) (1,633)
RECOVETIES .c.uviiiveiceeeii ettt ereae s 554 520 554
Balance, end of year.......c.occceveviinivneiviinieenennan, $34,354 $29,513 $25.081
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(6) BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of banking premises and equipment follows:

December 31, Estimated
2062 2001 Useful Lives
(In thousands)
Land and improvements .........coovuvveveenveieeneieeesveenens $ 9,609 $ 9,734
Buildings and improvements..........ccc.ccoveeverieveenrcnennn, 34,581 33,940 30 to 50 years
Property under capital lease.........cccococenreciciinennne, 1,738 1,738 20 years
Leasehold Improvements........cocoovcvnrecrnreccrieerencnrcrenns 3,514 2,568 8 to 10 years
Furniture and equipment.........cccccovrnvncrccnncnneienns 21,633 16,690 3 to 20 years
ConStruction-iN-ProZress .......coeeririrerereereareneneroreseraens 710 231
71,785 64,901
Less—accumulated depreciation and
AMOTTIZALION ....vvvveveeeerrereeeeertieeesieieieeeesessreseorsrrreees 17.840 13,607
$53.945  $51.204

Depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $4,442,000, $4,082,000 and
$2,867,000, respectively, and is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations.

During 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized net gains of $231,000 and $372,000, respectively, upon the
disposition of banking premises and equipment which are included in other noninterest income in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations.
(7) DEPOSITS

A summary of deposit balances follows:

December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Demand deposit ACCOUMNES .....ccvvrvrveirierriirieriirrereesreenreeenenen: $ 196,869 $ 180,916
NOW and money market deposit aCCOURLS .........ovcerereveennnnn. 873,019 744,155
Passbook and other savings acCoOUNts..........c.ocveveevveeirveenennns 320,528 275,163
Total noncertificate aCCOUNTS .......veieevreiiriiiereecreenieenns 1.390.416 1,200,234
Certificates of deposit—
Certificates of $100,000 and OVer.......covcvvevvevvreeireerneens 285,664 268,326
Certificates less than $100,000 ......ccoevvviincinncnn, 727,795 723.797
Total certificates of depoSit........cccecevviviiirinii s, 1,013.459 992,123
Total deposits........ccoviiiiiiiicic e $2.403,875 $2,192.357

A summary of interest expense on deposits for the years ended December 31, follows:

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
INOW ACCOUNLS «ovveeereeeeeeesreeeesereseeteeeeeeeseesseenesereesoreeons $ 1,010 $ 1,378 $ 1,210
Money market deposit aCCOUNTS .......vecverererrirrcceennns 10,705 10,566 8,499
Passbook and other savings accounts............occceeecevennnnnn, 4,175 4,181 4,370
Certificate of depoSits.......oevcrerreeivrneirniinieeeneeeee s 36,624 55.892 49,482
Total interest expense on deposits.........ccocvevveneee $52,514 $72.017 $63,561
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(7) DEPOSITS (Continued)
A summary of the maturity distribution of certificates of deposit with weighted average interest rates follows:

December 31,
2002 2001
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

Within 1 year $ 702,538 2.83% $791,960 4.02%

Over 1 to 3 years 233,479 4.28 153,915 4.90

Over 3 to 5 years 77.442 4.49 46,248 5.10
$1.013.459 3.29% $992,123 421%

(8) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

A summary of short-term borrowings follows:
December 31,

2642 2001 2060
(In thousands)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $34,128 $33.854 $29,082
Treasury tax and loan note account 2.000 730 2.345

$36,128 $34,584 $31.427

Information concerning short-term borrowings for the years ended December 31, follows:

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
Average balance during the year ........c.c.cceeevveenerineenan $38,339 $32,099 $32,562
Maximum outstanding at month end.........ccccccovevvvneennnne 43,142 37,464 57,637
Weighted average rate during the year........cccooceenen. 1.95% 3.69% 4.68%
Weighted average rate at year end...........cocevevveviinneencnn. 1.19% 2.48% 4.35%

The short-term borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2002 mature within 30 days of year-end.

The Company’s available lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) amounted to $42,500,000
at December 31, 2002. The interest on borrowings under the lines of credit adjusts daily based on a formula. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had no advances outstanding under these lines.

(9) FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

FHLB advances are collateralized by a blanket-type pledge agreement on the Banks” FHLB stock, certain
qualified investment securities, deposits at the FHLB and first mortgages on residential property. As members of
the FHLB, the Banks are required to invest in stock of the FHLB at an amount equal to the greater of 1% of their
outstanding first mortgage residential loans, 3% of total assets or 5% of their outstanding advances from the FHLB.
When such stock is redeemed, the Banks will receive from the FHLB an amount equal to the par value of the stock.

At its discretion, the FHLB of Boston may declare dividends on this stock. Such dividends, which are included

in dividends on investment securities, amounted to $1,555,000, $2,119,000 and $1,352,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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(9) FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES (Continued)

A summary of the maturity distribution of FHLB advances (based on final maturity dates) with weighted

average interest rates follows:

Within 1 year.........cccceceencnne

Over 1 to 5 years ...ccooevvreiinn,
Over5to 10 years .....ocoovveveenee
Over 10 years ....c.covveeceeencennennn.

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
$230,323 434%  $160,587  5.16%  $119,967 6.51%
322,868 4,29 268,939 5.11 171,725 6.03
295,601 5.33 346,130 5.45 252,633 5.80
10,012 6.99 11,261 6.97 12,633 6.91
$858,804 4.69% $786.917 5.30% $556.958 6.05%

At December 31, 2002, outstanding advances of $402,000,000 are callable at the option of FHLB, of which
$297,000,000 are callable at December 31, 2002, $70,000,000 are initially callable in 2003, $33,000,000 are initially
callable in 2004 and $2,000,000 become initially callable thereafter,
substantial penalty upon prepayment of FHLB advances.

(10) INCOME TAXES

The Company is generally subject to a

The components of the provision for income taxes and the reconciliation between the statutory federal income
tax rate and the effective income tax rate for the years indicated, are as follows:

Current—

Deferred (benefit)—

Federal .......oooviivviiiiiicccc e

Total deferred (benefit)................

Total provision for income taxes ........c..........

Statutory tax Tate ......occeovercivrireiennniens
State taxes, net of federal benefit...............
Amortization of goodwill.........cccoceorinne.
Tax CreditS...coviiiiireniicireeeecee e eciree e esnes
METIZEr EXPENSES...vvveericrreirieiiesireeeenrrenanes
Other, NEL......ooiiiieee et

Effective tax Tate ...coovvveeevevir v recineens

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
$22,002 $17,267 $12,499
895 260 454
22.897 17,527 12,953
2,571) (627) 112
(693) 177) (750)
(3,264) (804) (638)
19,633 $16,723 $12.315
35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
0.2 0.1) 0.3
— 1.8 —
0.4) 0.4 (0.4)
— (0.8) (0.8)
0. (0.4) (0.1)
34.9% 351% 34.0%
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(10) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company’s net deferred tax asset consisted of the following tax effects of temporary differences:

December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Gross deferred tax assets:

Allowance for 10an 1OSSES ......ccvevverieiervrieriinrie oo $14,297 $11,937
Deferred compensation and benefits.........ococoeviiicinenne 3,584 3,254
Core deposit intangible .........cccoocciinniiceinnee, 1,081 996
Reserve for asset iMpairment .........cccovveevineeneecnieneneee — 38
Deferred INCOME. . ccvviiireiiiieeiee et sve s 374 434
Deferred gain on sale/leaseback..........cccocovrmecneninncnnan. 187 199
Restricted StOCK ..viiviinieiie i sreseieesiir e 624 584
Other than temporary equity writedOWIl........cccooevereennenenn, 345 —
OtHET ..ottt e 230 9

20,722 17,451

Gross deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities.................. (5,462) (2,407)
REIT dividend......ccccoooeeiiiiiiieiis e (2,809) (1,853)
Gain on sale 0f 10ANS.......ccoviiiiiiciiie e e (173) (470)
Depreciation .....cccecvrrieerieiiiiceesie et (493) (1,040)
L0an feeS ..uviiiiiciiiieeieict e et (808) (812)
Purchase accounting adjustments ..........cooecvevvieiiiervecinnens (1,286) (1,269)
1 144 1<) G U OSSO OUUTI SRR (46) 54
11.077) (7,905

Net deferred tax asset .......ocoeuevieeeenvirienenieieereareeeceees $ 9.645 $9.546

In August 1996, Congress passed legislation which suspended the Banks’ bad debt reserve for income tax
purposes as of their base year (October 31, 1988). Any bad debt reserve in excess of the base year amount is subject
to recapture over a six-year period. The suspended (i.e., base year) amount is subject to recapture only upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as excess distributions to stockholders or failure to qualify as a bank for income
tax purposes. Since the Banks do not intend to use their suspended bad debt reserves for purposes other than to
absorb the losses for which they were established, deferred taxes in the amount of $7,300,000 have not been
recorded with respect to such reserves.

At December 31, 2002, the net deferred tax asset is supported by recoverable income taxes of approximately
$52.1 million. It should be noted however, that factors beyond management’s control can affect levels of taxable
income and that no assurance can be given that sufficient taxable income will be generated to fully absorb gross
deductible timing differences.

STATE TAX ASSESSMENT

During 2002, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue (“DOR”) issued notices of intent to assess additional
state excise taxes to various financial institutions throughout Commonwealth that have established real estate
investment trusts (“REIT”) in their corporate structures. The DOR contends that dividends received by the Banks
from their REIT subsidiaries are fully taxable in Massachusetts. The Company believes that the Massachusetts
statutes that provide for the dividend received deduction equal to 95% of certain dividend distributions applies to
distributions that have been made by the REIT subsidiaries to the Banks. The Company has two REIT subsidiaries,
Compass Preferred Capital Corporation (under Compass) and N Realty Corporation (under Nantucket Bank). Both
subsidiaries were formed in 1998.
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STATE TAX ASSESSMENT (Continued)

The Governor of Massachusetts signed legislation on March 5, 2003 which expressly disallows deductions for
dividends received from a REIT, resulting in such dividends being subject to state taxation. In addition, this
legislation applies retroactively to tax years ending on or after December 31, 1999. The charge to operations to be
incurred by Seacoast in the first quarter of 2003 totals approximately $11.2 million and includes the state tax
liability and interest, less the federal tax benefit, for the tax years 1999 through 2002. The Company believes that
the new legislation will be challenged, especially the retroactive provisions, on constitutional and other grounds and
intends to vigorously defend its position.

(11) GUARANTEED PREFERRED BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN SEACQOAST JUNIOR
SUBORDINATED DEFERRABLE INTEREST DEBENTURES

The Company has one subsidiary business trust—Seacoast Capital Trust 1—of which the Company owns all of
the common securities. The trust has no independent assets or operations and exists for the sole purpose of issuing
trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds thereof in an equivalent amount of junior subordinated
debentures issued by the obligations of the Company. The junior subordinated debentures, which are the sole assets
of the trust, are unsecured obligations of the Company and generally are subordinate and junior in right of payment
to all present and future senior and subordinated indebtedness and certain other financial obligations of the
Company. The principal amount of subordinated debentures held by the trust equals the aggregate liquidation
amount of its trust preferred securities and its common securities. The subordinated debentures bear interest at the
same rate, and will mature on the same date, as the corresponding trust preferred securities. The effect of various
contractual obligations of the Company fully and unconditionally connection with the issuance of trust preferred
securities is that the Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the trust’s obligations under the trust securities.
For information concerning the ability of the Company to obtain funds from banking subsidiaries, see Note 13. The
trust preferred securities may be prepaid at par at the option of the trusts, in whole or in part, on or after their
respective prepayment dates.

At December 31, 2002, excluding trust preferred securities repurchased by the Company, Seacoast Capital Trust
I had $55.0 million of 8.50% trust preferred securities outstanding. These trust preferred securities have a maturity
date of June 30, 2032 but are callable at the option of the Company on or after June 30, 2007.

The trust preferred securities qualify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes.

(12) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Pursuant to the terms of noncancellable leases, future minimum annual rentals for both operating and capital
leases at December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Years Ending Operating Capital
December 31, Leases Lease
(In thousands)
.............. $980 $ 205
.............. 921 205
.............. 826 205
.............. 764 205
.............. 697 205
..... 4,553 2,049
3,074
Less: interest (1,374)
$ 1700
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(12) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Certain leases contain renewal options the potential impact of which is not included above. Rent expense for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $1,042,000, $884,000 and $883,000, respectively,
and is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Rental income on portions of Company owned and occupied premises totaled $109,000, $106,000 and $166,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Aggregate cash reserves (in the form of deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank and vault cash) of $37.5 million
were maintained to satisfy regulatory requirements at December 31, 2002.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is a defendant in litigation matters. Although there can be no
assurance, management believes that, based on its review of current litigation and discussion with legal counsel, the
ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings would not be likely to have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

(13) REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Company and the Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
the Banks must mee( specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Banks
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company and the Banks met all applicable regulatory capital requirements.

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston classified the
Company’s capital as satisfactory and the most recent notifications from the FDIC categorized the Banks as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an
insured depository institution must maintain minimum total capital (to risk weighted assets), Tier 1 capital (to risk
weighted assets) and Tier 1 leverage capital (to average assets) as set forth in the accompanying table and not be
subject to a directive, order, or written agreement to meet and maintain specific capital levels. There are no
conditions or events since such notifications that management believes would have changed these classifications.
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(13) REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

The Company’s and the Banks actual capital amounts and ratios are as follows:

SEACQOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

To Be Well
Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt
Adequacy Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Ameunt Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
As of December 31, 2002:
Company (consolidated) —
Total capital .....cccocovoeveceiiiriirenen $363,176 14.33% = $202,723 > 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital ...c.cccovevvnienecnciencan, 330,674 13.05 > 101,362 > 40 N/A N/A
Tier 1 leverage capital .................. 330,674 8.93 > 148,077 > 40 N/A N/A
Compass —
Total capital ........ccoceveririviciieens $265.307 11.87% > $178,780 > 80% > $223475 > 10.0%
Tier 1 capital...cccocooevecniniiieenn, 237,113 10.61 > 89,390 > 4.0 > 134085 > 6.0
Tier 1 leverage capital .........ccccene. 237,113 7.31 > 129,808 > 4.0 > 162,259 > 5.0
Nantucket Bank —
Total capital .......ccoeverevinircrncnne, $40,718 14.12% >  $23,068 > 8.0% > $28835> 100%
Tier 1 capital.....ccoooeiviiiiiien, 37,079 12.86 > 11,534 > 40 > 17,301 > 6.0
Tier 1 leverage capital ................... 37,079 9.64 > 15381 > 40 > 19,227 > 5.0
As of December 31, 2001:
Company (consolidated) —
Total capital .......coccccnerviencniennn, $294,743 13.34% > $176,756 > 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital......ccoceoeirriiieicninn, 266,011 12.04 > 88,378 > 4.0 N/A N/A
Tier 1 leverage capital .................. 266,011 8.04 > 132,344 > 4.0 N/A N/A
Compass—
Total capital .....c..cocovvvnreieninrene $240,109 12.16% = $157.955 > 8.0% > $197.444 > 10.0%
Tier 1 capital..c...cccovcevervriienienriecene 215,175 10.90 > 78,978 > 4.0 > 118,466 > 6.0
Tier 1 leverage capital ...........c....... 215,175 7.34 > 117,252 > 40 > 146,565 > 5.0
Nantucket Bank—
Total capital .......occcoveirninircenns, $37,542 16.18% > $18565 > 80% > $23206> 100%
Tier 1 capital .....cocovcirirrieinieneenn, 34,613 1492 > 9283 > 4.0 > 13,924 > 6.0
Tier 1 leverage capital .................. 34,613 9.87 > 14,025 > 4.0 > 17,531 = 5.0
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(14) RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

Through October 31, 1999, Compass provided basic and supplemental pension benefits for eligible employees
through the Savings Bank’s Employees Retirement Association Pension Plan (the Compass SBERA Plan). Benefits
were based on an employee’s years of service and annual compensation, as defined. Compass’s funding policy was
to contribute annually the maximum deductible amount for federal income tax purposes. During 1999, the Board of
Directors voted to freeze benefits and to terminate the Compass SBERA Plan. In connection therewith, a
curtailment gain of $1,472,000 was recognized in 1999 representing the difference between the estimated benefit
obligation and the accumulated benefit obligation at the effective date of termination.

In October 2001, all obligations of the Compass SBERA Plan were settled with excess assets of $300,000
returned to Compass. A gain of $1,504,000 was recognized in connection with this settlement principally related to
previously unrecognized deferred gains. )

Nantucket Bank provides pension benefits for its employees through the Nantucket SBERA Plan. This Plan
provides for benefits to be paid to eligible employees at retirement based primarily upon their years of service with
Nantucket Bank and compensation level near retirement. Contributions to this Plan equal the maximum deductible
amount for tax purposes. In August 2002, Nantucket Bank’s Board of Directors voted to freeze benefits under the
Nantucket SBERA Plan effective September 30, 2002 and, at that time, Nantucket recognized a curtailment loss of
$446,000. As of December 31, 2002, Nantucket Bank has not terminated this Plan.

The following tables summarize the components of net periodic pension cost and the funded status of each of
the SBERA Plans for the plan years ended October 31 (in thousands):

Compass Nantucket Bank
2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............ccococovenerrrinen, $11,374 $11,216 $1,929 $1,749

SEIVICE COSE.uririatiaiiiiitiiie e ettt e et ve s ens — — 201 153

TNLETEST COS.uiiriiiiriiie it ettt et e 766 701 135 135

Actuarial (2ain) 10SS ...cocevvvveciireiriiireirrieere s 102 (538) (52) 109

Benefits paid.....ccocoveeriiieiicieei e — (131) (&) (218)

SEIEMENTS ..vvveieieeiiiiiice et e et sbrbe e e esrraree s snenes (12,242) (231) — —

Plan amendments.........ccceevvvevrrreeiiereeniesereseesnsree e eenenns — 357 379 —
Benefit obligation at end of year........c.ccccoeviininnccneiicnnns 3 — $11.374 $1.626 1.92 1.74
Accumulated benefit obligation (fully vested) ........cccoovenenee $ — $11.374 1,23 1,034 1,172
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year.................... $11,874 $11,609 $1,614 $1,932

Actual return on plan assSets.......coccivrreeereeieeeniiee e 668 670 (163) (204)

CONtrIDULIONS ...ttt — — 183 104

Benefits paid.......ccccooieriiinie e — (131) (8) (218)

SEIEIMENTS ...veeiviiiiereee ettt e e eee e ennes (12,242) 274) — —_

Reversion to employer.........ccovicriiiiiiene e (300) — — —

Fair value of plan assets at end of year.......c.coceevecvinnnns 3 — $11.874 $1.626 1.614 1,932

Funding status:

TIANSILON ASSEL.uviviiiviiriiteeeeietserr et ettt e ssen et eereoreesrerneseeans $ — % (310) — $(600) $(601)

Deferred gain (I0SS) ....coecovriiriieresiinecceiceirceeeeee e —  (1,518) — 492 —

ACCTUEA EXPEISC. c..veuiiviriinieriiii e reerese e eener e i — 1,328 — 423 418

Net amount reCOZMZEd ......ocoevrvvrieverirricrierieiirerireeenens h) — $_ 500 h— 3(315) $ 183
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(14) RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Compass Nantucket Bank
2001 2000 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
SEIVICE COSLevriiuiriienrineriiriiereiirecer et $ — $ — $201 $153
INTETESE COST ..ouvinrinrcriiiiriretiniie e, 766 701 110 135
Expected return on plan assets ..........cccvvereen. (711) (907) (129) (155)
Amortization of transition asset........c..cc.evnn., 27 27 (1) (1)
Net amortization and deferral..........ccccccoeeveene, 20) 253 4) 22)
Curtailment 10SS .......ooeveceerevververeirirnecereens, _— e _446 -
Net periodic benefit Cost.......c.ooovrnenrccncnnnne, $ 8 $ 20 $623 $110
Weighted average assumptions:
DISCOUNE TALE ..eoevierereecnieiceeee et eee e, 6.75% 6.75% 7.00% 7.175%
Expected return on plan assets...........ccoverreenn, 6.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
Rate of compensation increase.........c..c.cooveueene, N/A N/A 5.50 5.50

Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions

Compass sponsors a postretirement life insurance plan (the Life Insurance Plan) that primarily covers pre-1996
retirees and a postretirement medical insurance plan that covers certain retirees of the former Sandwich Bank. The
Life Insurance Plan generally provides lifetime coverage to retired employees equal to their final annual rate of pay,
but not more than $50,000, and to active full time employees equal to three times the employee’s annual salary, but
not more than $350,000. The total annual expense for these plans amounted to $105,000, $40,000 and $58,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the accrued
liability was $628,000 and $567,000, respectively, while the accumulated benefit obligation was $824,000 and
$841,000, respectively, measured using a 6.50% discount rate.

Supplemental Retirement Benefits

Compass has entered into agreements with four senior officers to provide supplemental retirement benefits
based on 25% of the average of the three highest years of compensation (salary and bonus) paid to the officer in the
ten years immediately preceding the officer’s retirement. A reduced benefit is payable if the officer retires prior to
age 65, but after age 55. The present value of these future payments is being accrued over the estimated remaining
terms of employment. The accrued supplemental retirement liability was $2,069,000 and $1,839,000 at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The agreements are being funded through a life insurance program with policy
benefits accruing to the Bank. The cash surrender value of the policies is $2,166,000 and $1,918,000 at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Compass has agreed to calculate each year the additional amount that would need to be accrued in order to
result in the executive annually receiving 70% of the average of the three highest years of the compensation paid to
the officer in the ten years of employment immediately preceding the officer’s retirement from a combination of the
Bank’s former defined benefit plan, the 25% supplemental retirement benefit, the employer contribution to the
executive’s 401(k) plan, the ESOP, social security and any supplemental funding. This amount, if any, is added to
the executive’s account under the deferred compensation plan.

In August 2002, the Board of Directors of Nantucket Bank voted to establish a supplemental executive
retirement plan for three of its executive officers. The plan will generally provide a retirement benefit, payable for
15 years, equal to 60% (70% in the case of the President) of the officer’s final three-year average earnings,
proportionately reduced if the officer has less than 20 years of service at the time of separation, and subject to
certain offsets based upon the officer’s social security benefits and other retirement benefits provided to the officer
by Nantucket Bank. Agreements with respect to this plan have not yet been executed.
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Supplemental Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Net expense for the supplemental retirement benefits for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
amounted to $260,000, $309,000 and $276,000, respectively, and is included in salaries and employee benefits in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Incentive Compensation Plan

Each of the Banks maintains a bonus plan providing for awards based on a combination of corporate and
individual performance objectives being met, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. Amounts charged to
operations under the bonus plans amounted to $1,468,000, $1,753,000 and $1,840,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

401(k) Plan

The Banks offer a 401(k) retirement savings plan for employees. Participating employees may generally
contribute up to 15% of their W-2 compensation. The Banks match 50% of a participant’s deferral contribution on
the first 6% of the deferral amount subject to the maximum allowable under federal regulations. Since November
1999, the Compass plan has included a 3% automatic contribution for all eligible participants while Nantucket Bank
has amended its 401(k) Plan to include a 3% automatic contribution for all eligible participants effective January 1,
2003. Total 401(k) expense was $1,093,000, $1,097,000 and $809,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

ESCP

In connection with its conversion from mutual-to-stock form and initial public offering, the Company
established the Compass Bank for Savings Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) which acquired 1,120,000 of
the Company’s shares at a price of $10 per share. The purchase of the shares by the ESOP was funded by a loan of
$11,200,000 from the Company. The loan is being repaid in 80 equal quarterly installments with interest at a fixed
rate of 7.75% and is secured by the unallocated shares of the ESOP. The ESOP covers substantially all of
Compass’s employees who have attained the age of 21 and who have completed at least 1,000 hours of service and
since the beginning of 2002, has covered the qualifying employees at Nantucket Bank.

ESOP expense is based on the market value of the Company’s common stock at the time shares are allocated to
employees, which differs from the $10 cost of those shares. Such changes in market value impact the Company’s
results of operations but have no impact on total stockholders’ equity. ESOP expense for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $1,014,000, $828,000 and $572,000, respectively.

At December 31 2002 and 2001, shares held by the ESOP in suspense and released on an annual basis totaled
890,343 and 945,989, respectively. The fair value of all unallocated ESOP shares was $17,816,000 and $16,224,000
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Dividends on ESOP shares are charged to retained earnings and
ESOP shares commiitted to be released are considered outstanding in determining earnings per share.

Other

The former Sandwich Bank, acquired in December 1998, maintained certain employee and director benefit
programs, including a directors deferred compensation plan and supplemental executive retirement plans, which
have been discontinued. Included in accrued expenses and other liabilities are $3,196,000, and $3.287,000, at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for such plans. The net expense incurred by the Company totaled
$192,000, $198,000 and $180,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Executive Officer Employment Agreements

The Company entered into employment agreements with the President and Chief Executive Officer and four
other senior executives. The employment agreements generally provide for the continued payment of specified
compensation and benefits for two or three years, as applicable, and provide payments for the remaining term of the
agreement after the officers are terminated, unless the termination is for “cause” as defined in the employment
agreements. The agreements also provide for payments to the officer upon voluntary or involuntary termination of
the officer following a change in control, as defined in the agreement. In addition, both Banks have entered into
change of control agreements with certain other senior officers which provide for payments to the officer under
certain circumstances, after a change of control, as defined in their agreements.

(15) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the Stock Incentive Plan) for officers, employees
and directors. The maximum number of shares of common stock issuable under the Stock Incentive Plan is
1,960,000 (subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of a stock dividend, stock split or similar change in
capitalization affecting the Company’s common stock). Of this number, up to 560,000 shares are issuable in
connection with “conditioned stock awards”. A conditioned stock award is an award entitling the recipient to
acquire, at no cost or for a purchase price to be determined by the Compensation Committee, shares of common
stock subject to restrictions and conditions determined at the date of grant. Conditions may be based on continuing
employment and/or achievement of performance goals. The remaining 1,400,000 shares may be either incentive
stock options (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code) or options that do not so qualify (non-qualified options).

Incentive stock options shall have an exercise price that is not less than the fair market value of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant and shall not be exercisable more than ten years after the date of grant. All incentive stock
options and non-qualified options shall vest and become exercisable based on the determination of the
Compensation Committee. Stock options issued to date become exercisable at a rate of 20% per year.

In July 1999, a conditioned stock award of 560,000 shares was approved for a group of officers and directors.
Under the terms of the award, there is no cost to the recipient for the shares, which vest annually over a five year
period conditioned on continued employment with the Company. Shares that do not vest are forfeited and are
returned to the Company. Upon the event of death, a recipient’s shares become fully vested. While the shares
issued under this conditioned stock award are outstanding, recipients have both voting and dividend rights in such
shares.

The total compensation cost of $6,370,000 for the conditioned stock award was determined at the award date
since both the number of shares and price to be paid (zero) were known. The cost, adjusted for any forfeitures and
accelerated vesting, is being amortized ratably over five years when all risks of forfeiture have passed. Forfeitures
will be recognized as a reduction of compensation cost in the period in which they occur. No forfeitures relating to
the conditioned stock awards have occurred since the award date. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, the Company expensed $1,249,000, $1,249,000 and $1,362,000, respectively, in connection with its
conditioned stock award grants,
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Stock option activity is as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Balance, December 31, 1999 1,258,000 $11.375
Granted 20,000 11.375
Balance, December 31, 2000 1,278,000 11.375
Granted 90,000 15.240
Exercised (28,000) 11.375
Forfeited (7,000) 11.375
Balance, December 31, 2001 1,333,000 11.636
Granted 30,000 20.025
Exercised (31,750) 11.375
Forfeited (2,000) 11.375
Balance, December 31, 2002 1,329,250 11.832
Shares reserved for future grants 70,750

The range of per share prices for outstanding and exercisable stock options at December 31, 2002 are as
follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Price QCutstanding Contractual Life Price Qutstanding Price

$10.595-$12.714 1,209,250 6.5 $11.375 708,450 $11.375
$12.715-$14.833 65,000 8.4 14.570 13,000 14.570
$14.834-$16.952 20,000 9.0 16.950 4,000 16,950
$16.953-$19.071 20,000 9.3 18.408 1,000 17.050
$19.072-$21.190 15.000 10.0 21.190 — —
1,329,250 6.7 $11.832 726,450 $11.471

(16) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH GFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to originate loans and
standby letters of credit. The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The contract amounts of those
instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for loan commitments and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as
they do for on-balance sheet instruments.
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(16) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (Continued)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts present credit risk included the following:

December 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)

Unadvanced lines on commercial 10ans.........ccccoevvvvnnee $ 72,513 $ 75,700
Unadvanced lines on home equity and reserve

HNES Of CTEdIt..cvviiiveeiceie e 73,221 53,187
Firm commitments to originate 1oans ..............c.ccoccceucn. 170,133 102,053
Unadvanced construction 10ans..........ceceecvveeeercanveernnans 56,191 52,435
Standby letters of credit ..o, 2,564 1,784

Commitments to originate loans unadvanced lines of credit and unadvanced portion of construction loans are
agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily require future cash requirements. Management evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained upon extension of the credit is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant
and equipment and income-producing commercial real estate.

FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, “ considers standby letters of credit, excluding commercial letters of
credit and other lines of credit, a guarantee of the Bank. The Bank enters into a standby letter of credit to guarantee
performance of a customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private
borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.
Under the standby letters of credit, the Bank is required to make payments to the beneficiary of the letters of credit
upon request by the beneficiary so long as all performance criteria have been met. Most guarantees extend up to one
year. At December 31, 2002, the maximum potential exposure amount of future payments is $2.6 million. The
collateral obtained is determined based upon management’s credit evaluation of the customer and may include cash,
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, and equipment and income producing real estate. The fair value of
the guarantees totaled $14,000 at December 31, 2002.

Forward commitments to sell residential mortgage loans are contracts which the Company enters into for the
purpose of reducing the market risk associated with originating loans for sale. Risks may include the possible
inability of the Company to originate loans to fulfill the contracts.

(17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The reported fair values of financial instruments are based on a variety of valuation techniques. In some cases,
fair values represent quoted market prices for identical or comparable instruments. In other cases, fair values have
been estimated based on assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows, assumed
discount rates reflecting varying degrees of risk and future expected loss assumptions. These estimates involve a
high degree of judgment. The estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering
significant holdings of financial instruments at bulk sale. Tax implications of unrealized gains and losses can also
have a significant effect on fair value of the financial instruments. Changes in economic conditions may
dramatically affect the fair value of financial instruments.
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the Banks’ financial
instruments:

For cash and due from banks and federal funds sold, the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the
short maturity of those instruments.

The fair values of investment securities are based on published market prices or quotations received from
securities dealers.

The fair values of loans are estimated for loan portfolios with similar financial characteristics. Loans are
segregated by type, fixed- and adjustable-rate interest terms and by performing and nonperforming status. The fair
values of performing residential real estate loans are estimated by discounting the anticipated future cash flows at
rates currently required by the secondary mortgage market for the purchase of similar loans. For performing
commercial real estate loans and performing commercial loans, fair values are estimated by discounting the
anticipated future cash flows using estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk
inherent in the loan as determined by the loan’s terms and credit rating. For home equity loans and consumer loans,
fair values are estimated by discounting the anticipated cash flows using current interest rates.

The fair value of deposits does not include the value of long-term relationships with depositors and does not
reflect the value associated with possessing this relatively inexpensive source of funds that may be available for a
considerable length of time. The reported fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is equal to the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of time deposits is estimated by discounting the contractual
future cash flows at rates currently offered for time deposits with similar remaining maturities.

The fair value of FHLB advances is determined by discounting the anticipated future cash payments using rates
currently available for advances with similar terms and remaining maturities. For other borrowings, the carrying
amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments.

The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of
the counterparties. For fixed rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels
of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair value of financial standby letters of credit is based on fees
currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the
obligations with the counterparties. The estimated fair value of all such commitments is insignificant.

Certain items are excluded from disclosure requirements, including banking premises and equipment, the value
of mortgage servicing rights, the intangible value inherent in deposit relationships (i.e. core deposits), leases and
pension benefit obligations, among others. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented in the
accompanying table do not include all data integral to a full assessment of the Company’s financial position and the
market value of its net assets.
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A summary of the estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments follows:

Financial assets:

December 31,

2002 2001

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount [Fair Value Amoumnt Fair Value

Cash and due from banks ............oceveeenn,
Federal funds sold ........ocevvivvrinieirninnenn,
Short-term inVesStmMents....coocvveviiiveeeieennnene

Investment secu

FITIES tovvvriers v

Loans held-for-sale......c.ccccccovvviiviiineniennnne,

Total loans, net
Financial Liabilities:

Deposits (with no stated maturity) .............

Certificates of d

EPOSIE v e,

Short-term and other borrowings ...............

FHLB advances

(In thousands)

$ 109,223 $ 109,223 $ 87.834 § 87834
11,056 11,056 92,899 92,899
— — 10,000 10,000
489,755 490,482 467,176 467,525
6,183 6,255 19,675 19,727
2,956,817 3,082,887 2,544,821 2,552,161

1,390,416 1,390,416 1,200,234 1,200,234
1,013,459 1,014,924 992,123 1,014,086
37,900 37,900 36,424 36,424
858,804 903,501 786,917 878,689
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(18) CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION

The condensed unconsolidated financial statements of the Parent Company follow:

December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)

BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS:
Due from banks (primarily at Compass) $ 1810
Investment securities available-for-sale 3,011 4,444
Residential loans, net 11,232 —
Investment in subsidiaries 345,121 289,482
Other assets 13,646 10,752
Total assets $382.723  $306.488

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities. ... $ 687 § 764

Amounts payable to SUbSIAIANIES. ......cccoveeiirieereniineecee s 3,270 —
Junior subordinated debentures supporting mandatory

redeemable truSt SECUMIES .uuvviiiiiivririeeeierirre et e s rerrne e seneee s 59,278 —

StocKhOlders’ EQUITY.....cccvirvereirciiicrr e e e 319,488 _305.724

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .......cccocverivincnnerienenn. $382.723 $306.488

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

INCOME:
Interest and dividends on investment securities................ $ 174 $ 130 $ 136
Tnterest 0N 10ANS .....oeeoiveeercviie et 236 — —
Dividends from sSubSIidiaries.......ccoovveerieiririnreeeeiinireeeseennns 16,000 16,000 21,514
Gains on sales of investment securities..............c.ccceeuee. 1,363 — —
L0110 T=1 O OO OO PPUTOTOPSRUPRIOt 17 40 —
TOtal INCOME ...c.vevviiiiieeiieecciiir e e e e ere e e e e 17,790 16,170 21,650
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES ..o 12 — —
EXPENSE:
INterest EXPEnse ....ccoivvviiiiiiiiinin s 2,939 — —
Other nONINLETeSt EXPENSE cvvevvrreireeverirrenereerecaereeneenee 1,348 1,563 1.240
Total eXpense .......cccoocciiiiiniiiiin 4,287 1.563 1,240
Income before income taxes and equity in
undistributed net income of subsidiaries.................... 13,491 14,607 20,410
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES ............ (622) (451) 58
Income before equity in undistributed net
income of subsidiaries..............cconiiiii 14,113 15,058 20,352
EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME
OF SUBSIDIARIES........coooiitii et 22,495 15,909 3.577
NELINCOME. ...t $36.608 $30,967 $23,929

The Parent Company’s statements of changes in stockholders equity are identical to the consolidated statements of
changes in stockholders’ equity and therefore are not presented here.
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Years Ended December 31,

Net cash used in investing aCtiVIIES .....cccoevreerviinercnnecreneenae
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Non-operating dividends from subsidiaries .........c.ccoevervenernennnne
Proceeds from subordinated debentures..........c.cooveerreieicenninn.n
Exercise of Stock OpHONS ...occvevviriieniiiiiiiccne e
Tax benefit of stock option and award transactions, net................
Repurchase of common Stock .......c.coeiriieiiininnenec e
Stock award reimbursement by Compass .......c.occoovnirrnrcanianene.
Cash dividends .......cccccoiverennni e
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ...................
Net increase (decrease) in due from banks.........c.cccvveeene.
DUE FROM BANKS BEGINNING OF YEAR .....ccocccevniiiiricennnne
DUE FROM BANKS END OF YEAR .....ccocvniivccicniniccanee
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Income taxes paid ........ccooeriiiiiiiciic e
Interest expense on borrowed funds ..........occovverecencvivcnnnnecnne
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2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NEUINCOMIE ...t ev et re ettt ane e $36,608 $30,967 $23,929
Adjustments to reconcile net inCOME t0 DEL.....covccrvivrerirrencerenieane
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Provision for 10an 1088es .......cccoceeviviiiieninc e 12 — —
Gain on sales of investments available for sale ............ccocoevveennneen. (1,363) — —
Net AMOITIZAION ...evieveivieriie et ctre e et eere et eresve e sss s (83) 3 11
Stock-based COMPENSATION ... .eevverrriieiiiarrirrrerireraesrerserraaesereensences 237 237 349
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries............ccccovcrnucnn. (22,495) (15,909) (3,577)
Net (increase) decrease in Other aSSelS........ccvivvvvcvervvirerairereenennnn (2,797) 449 830
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities, net .........coccovvveenreennane. amn (191) 250
Net (increase) decrease in amounts payable to subsidiaries .......... 3,270 — —
Net cash provided by operating activities ........cc.coeveeviercrnenae 13,312 15,550 21,792
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of Home Port Bancorp, Inc., net.........cccooevvviennennn. - (111) (68,463)
Investment in SUBSIAIAIIES ....cvvvvvivieeeiee et {25,000) — -—
Purchase of securities available for sale..........ccocooveeveivneiivinienean, (516) 87 (1,358)
Proceeds from sales of investments available for sale................... 2,680 — —
Purchase of LOoanS......coovviioiiicee et (12,170) —_ —
Net decrease in LOAnS .. ..covvviiie i seene e e eeenens 927 — —

(34.079) (198) (69.821)

— — 57,486
57,500 — —
337 320 —
725 63 —
(21,185) (10,492) (8,680)
1,012 1,012 1,012
(9.719) (8.089) (6,320)
28.670 (17.186) 43 498
7,903 (1,834) (4,531)
1,810 3.644 8,175
$ 9713 $ 1.810 $3.644
$ 150 $300 30
$2.939 - =
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(19) STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Conversion

As part of the conversion from mutual to stock form in 1998 (the “Conversion”), the Company established a
liquidation account in an amount equal to its net worth as of May 31, 1998. The liquidation account is maintained
for the benefit of eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who maintain their accounts at
Compass after the Conversion. The liquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that such account holders
have reduced their qualifying deposits as of each anniversary date. Subsequent increases do not restore an account
holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event of a complete liquidation, each eligible account holder is
entitled to receive balances for accounts then held.

Stock Repurchase Programs

Since 1999, the Board of Directors has authorized the Company to repurchase shares of common stock in the
open market to meet the anticipated needs of stock awards and stock options issued in connection with the Stock
Incentive Plan. On four occasions, the Board of Directors, with the approval of the Commissioner of Banks, has
authorized the Company to repurchase up to an additional 4,680,496 shares in the open market. The Board of
Directors delegated to the discretion of senior management the authority to determine the timing of the repurchase
programs’ commencement, the timing of subsequent repurchases and the prices at which repurchases will be made.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had repurchased 4,005,312 shares of its common stock under these
stock repurchase programs at a total cost of $56.3 million, for an average cost of $14.055 per share. An additional
675,184 shares remain available to be repurchased under the authorized limits.

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

In October 1999, the Board of Directors authorized a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan “the
Plan” for up to 500,000 shares of common stock. Stockholders owning 100 or more shares are eligible to enroll and
may reinvest part or all of their cash dividends. Participants may also make optional cash payments from $100 to a
maximum of $5,000 per quarter to purchase additional shares of common stock. This plan commenced upon the
Board’s declaration of the Company’s quarterly cash dividend in January 2000. The Company has directed its agent
to acquire shares in open market transactions to meet the needs of this plan. As of December 31, 2002,
approximately 71,000 shares were held by the Plan.
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(20) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes the operating results on a quarterly basis for the years ended December 31,

2002 and 2001.
2002 2001
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second  First
Quarter Quarter Quarter (Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share mounts)

Interest INCOME .....c.ccvivvvivvvevnninnnnn, $54,778  $55,070 $54,036  $53,200 $54,418 $55,349 $53,892 $ 52,730
Interest eXpense ..o.oocevvvvereervnncncenens 23,176 _24.038 23,795 24405 _26.951 29.060 _ 28,749 _ 28,731
Net interest income .......c.coeenen. 31,602 31,032 _30.241 28,795 27467 26,289 _ 25,143 23,999
Provision for loan losses................... 1,862 1,850 2,000 1,535 1,750 1,550 1,475 1,400

Gain (loss) on pension plan
curtailment and settlement (1) ...... — (446) — — 1,504 — —_ —
Other noninterest income (2)............ 3,332 4,003 3,621 3,205 4,590 3,686 3,565 2,998
Noninterest eXpense .....c...c.coeeeenine 17,829 17,240 17,088 16,889 17,511 15,991 16,067 15,807
Minority interest expense (3) ........... 1,222 1,222 407 — — — — —
Income before income taxes ..... 14,021 14,277 14,367 13,576 14,300 12,434 11,166 9,790
Provision for income taxes............... 4,829 5,019 _ 5.083 4,702 5,099 4,400 4,165 3,059
Net income ....oooovevivivienreneeninnn, $ 9192 $ 9258 $9284 $ 8874 §$9201 $80348% 7001 $ 6731

Earnings per share:

BasiC..ioiivieiirie s $0.41 $0.41 $0.40 $0.39 $0.40 $0.34 $0.30 $0.29
Diluted.....ccoooveviiiiriiieieeie s 0.40 0.40 0.39 0.38 0.39 0.34 0.29 0.28
Cash dividends per share.................. 0.11 0.11 0.10 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08 0.08

(1) Refer to Note 14 regarding the curtailment and settlement of the defined benefits plans for the years ended 2002 and 2001.
(2) In the quarter ending December 31, 2001, the Company recorded gains on the sale of mortgage loans of approximately

$1,024,000.

(3) Minority interest expense commenced in the quarter ended June 30, 2002 upon the issuance of the trust preferred securities.

See Note 11 for further information.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Effective May 16, 2002, Seacoast Financial Service Corporation (the “Company”) dismissed Arthur
Andersen LLP (“Arthur Andersen”) as the Company’s independent public accountants. On that date, the Company
appointed KPMG LLP as independent auditors. These actions were recommended by the Company’s Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Arthur Andersen’s reports on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Company’s fiscal
years ended 2001 and 2000 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or
modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During the Company’s two most recent fiscal years and any interim periods preceding the dismissal of
Arthur Andersen, there were no disagreements between the Company and Arthur Andersen on any matter of
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreement(s), if not resolved to the satisfaction of Arthur Andersen, would have caused it to make a reference to
the subject matter of the disagreement(s) in connection with its report.

During the Company’s two most recent fiscal years and any interim periods preceding the dismissal of
Arthur Andersen, there were no reportable events of the type required to be disclosed by Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
regulation S-K.

The Company provided Arthur Andersen with a copy of the foregoing disclosures. See the Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on May 16, 2002.

PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registramt

Information required by Item 10 of this Form is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s
Proxy Statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by Item 11 of this Form is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s
Proxy Statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders
Matters

Information required by Item 12 of this Form is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s
Proxy Statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by Item 13 of this Form is incorporated by reference herein from the Company’s
Proxy Statement related to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures. Within 90 days before filing this report, we evaluated the effectiveness
of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Our disclosure controls and procedures are
the controls and other procedures that we designed to ensure that we record, process, summarize and report in a
timely manner the information we must disclose in reports that we file with or submit to the SEC. Kevin G.
Champagne, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and Francis S. Mascianica, Jr., our Treasurer and Chief
Financial Officer, supervised and participated in this evaluation. Based on this evaluation, Mr. Champagne and Mr.
Mascianica concluded that, as of the date of their evaluation, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Internal controls. Since the date of the evaluation described above, there have not been any significant
changes in our internal accounting controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those controls.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

1. Financial Statements: All financial statements are included in Item 8. of Part II to this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules: All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are
either not required, not applicable or are included in the consolidated financial statements or related

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 19, 2002 by and between Seacoast
Financial Services Corporation, Seacoast Merger Sub, Inc. and Bay State Bancorp,
Inc.+++4+++++

Form of Voting Agreement (attached as Annex A to Exhibit 2. 1)++++++++

Articles of Organization of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation+++

By-Laws of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation+++

Specimen certificate for the common stock of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation++

Form of Employment Agreement by and among Seacoast Financial Services Corporation,
Compass Bank for Savings and Kevin G. Champagne+

Form of Employment Agreement by and among Compass Bank for Savings, Seacoast
Financial Services Corporation and certain Officers of Compass Bank for Savings+

Form of Change in Control Agreements by and among Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation, Compass Bank for Savings, Kevin G. Champagne and certain other Officers of
Compass Bank for Savings+

Form of Change in Control Agreement by and among Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation, Compass Bank for Savings and certain Officers of Compass Bank for Savings +

Form of Executive Salary Continuation Agreements made and entered into by and between
Compass Bank for Savings and Kevin G. Champagne, Arthur W. Short, John D. Kelleher and

Francis S. Mascianica and forms of amendments thereto +

Trust Agreement, made as of December 18, 1992, by and between Compass Bank for Savings
and Shawmut Bank, N.A. +

Compass Bank for Savings January 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan +++++
Compass Bank for Savings Executive Deferred Compensation Plan +

Rabbi Trust for Compass Bank for Savings Executive Deferred Compensation Plan +
Sandwich Co-operative Bank 1992 Directors Deferred Compensation Plan ++
Seacoast Financial Services Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Plan ++++

Junior Subordinated Indenture dated May 31, 2002 between the Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust Company++++++

Trust Agreement of Seacoast Capital Trust 1 and Certificate of Trust dated April 9,
2002 ++++++
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10.23

10.24

10.25

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Seacoast Capital Trust I dated May 31, 2002
among Seacoast Financial Services Corporation, State Street Bank and Trust Company,
Christiana Bank and Trust Company, the Administrative Trustees named therein and the
Several Holders of the Trust Securities++++++

Guarantee Agreement dated May 31, 2002 between Seacoast Financial Services Corporation
and State Street Bank and Trust Company++++++

Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities dated May 31, 2002 between Seacoast Financial
Services Corporation and Seacoast Capital Trust I (incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to
Exhibit 10.23 hereof)++++++

10.26** Data Service Agreement with FISERV +++++++

10.27%

10.28%

10.29%

10.30%

10.31*

11

21

23

99.1

Payments and Waiver Agreement by and among Seacoast Financial Services Corporation,
Bay State Bancorp, Inc., Bay State Federal Savings Bank and John F. Murphy++++++++

Payments and Waiver Agreement by and among Seacoast Financial Services Corporation,
Bay State Bancorp, Inc., Bay State Federal Savings Bank and Denise Renaghan++++++++

Payment and Waiver Agreement by and among Seacoast Financial Services Corporation, Bay
State Bancorp, Inc., Bay State Federal Savings Bank and Michael Gilles++++++++

Consulting and Non-Competition Agreement between Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation and John F. Murphy++++++++

Non-Competition Agreement between Seacoast Financial Services Corporation and Denise
Renaghan++++++++

A statement regarding earnings per share is included in Item 8., Note 1, of this report.
Subsidiaries (See Item 1. of Part I to this report.)
Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification required by section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Management compensatory plan or arrangement.

Certain portions of this Exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (333-
52889), filed with the SEC under the Company’s prior name, “The 1855 Bancorp”, on May
15, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (333-52889), filed with the SEC under the Company’s prior name, “The 1855
Bancorp”, on August 14, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with
the SEC on November 18, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with
the SEC on April 16, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the
SEC on March 28, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s current report on Form 10-Q for the second
quarter of 2002, filed with the SEC on August 14, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s current report on Form 10-Q for the third
quarter of 2002, filed with the SEC on November 14, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on December 23, 2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: Form 8-K dated December 23, 2002 regarding the acquisition of Bay State Bancorp Inc.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Seacoast Financial Services Corporation
DATE: March 27, 2003 By: /s/ Kevin G. Champagne
Kevin G. Champagne
President and Chief Executive Officer

By:_/s/ Francis S. Mascianica, Jr.
Francis S. Mascianica, Jr.
Treasurer, as Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Kevin G. Champagne
Kevin G. Champagne President, Chief Executive March 27, 2003
Officer and Director

/s/ David P. Cameron
David P. Cameron Director March 27, 2003

/s/ Howard C. Dyer, Jr.
Howard C. Dyer, Jr. Director March 27, 2003

/s/ Mary F. Hebditch
Mary F. Hebditch Director March 27, 2003

/s/ Glen F. Johnson
Glen F. Johnson Director March 27, 2003

/s/ Thornton P. Klaren, Jr.
Thornton P. Klaren, Jr. Director March 27, 2003

/s/ J. Louis LeBlanc
J. Louis LeBlanc Director March 27, 2003

/s/ Frederic D. Legate
Frederic D. Legate Director March 27, 2003
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/s/ Reale J. Lemieux
Reale J. Lemieux

/s/ A. William Munro
A. William Munro

/s/ Philip W. Read
Philip W. Read

[s/ Car] Ribeiro
Carl Ribeiro

{s/ Joseph H. Silverstein
Joseph H. Silverstein

/s/ Gerald H. Silvia
Gerald H. Silvia
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Kevin G. Champagne, certify that:
1. 1have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days
prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent
to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date:__3/27/03

/s/ Kevin G. Champagne
Kevin G. Champagne
President and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Francis S. Mascianica, Jr., certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days
prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent
to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: 3/27/03

/s{ Francis S. Mascianica, Jr.
Francis S. Mascianica, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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This annual report contains forward-
looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Such statements are not historical
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management’s confidence and strate-
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tures. Actual results may differ mate-
rially from such forward-looking
statements. Seacoast Financial
assumes no obligation for updating
any such forward-looking statements

at any time.
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